This information is available free of charge in
electronic, audio, Braille and large print versions on
request.
For assistance in understanding or reading this
document or specific information about this Agenda
or on the “Public Participation” initiative please call
Democratic Services on 01629 761133 or
e-mail committee@derbyshiredales.gov.uk
10 September 2014
To:

All Councillors

As a Member or Substitute of the Corporate Committee, please treat this as your
summons to attend a meeting on Thursday 18 September 2014 at 6.00pm in the
Council Chamber, Town Hall, Matlock.
Yours sincerely

Sandra Lamb
Head of Corporate Services
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APOLOGIES/SUBSTITUTES
Please
advise
Democratic
Services
on
01629
761133
or
e-mail
committee@derbyshiredales.gov.uk of any apologies for absence and substitute
arrangements.

2.

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
To enable members of the public to ask questions, express views or present
petitions, IF NOTICE HAS BEEN GIVEN, (by telephone, in writing or by electronic
mail) BY NO LATER THAN 12 NOON OF THE DAY PRECEDING THE MEETING.

3.

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
26 June 2014

4.

INTERESTS
Members are required to declare the existence and nature of any interests they may
have in subsequent agenda items in accordance with the District Council’s Code of
Conduct. Those interests are matters that relate to money or that which can be
valued in money, affecting the Member her/his partner, extended family and close
friends.
Interests that become apparent at a later stage in the proceedings may be declared
at that time.
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This report is addressed to the Authority and has been prepared for the sole use of the Authority. We take no responsibility to any member of staff acting in their
individual capacities, or to third parties. The Audit Commission has issued a document entitled Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies. This
summarises where the responsibilities of auditors begin and end and what is expected from the audited body. We draw your attention to this document which is available
on the Audit Commission’s website at www.auditcommission.gov.uk.
External auditors do not act as a substitute for the audited body’s own responsibility for putting in place proper arrangements to ensure that public business is conducted
in accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and effectively.
If you have any concerns or are dissatisfied with any part of KPMG’s work, in the first instance you should contact Sue Sunderland, the appointed engagement lead to the
Authority, who will try to resolve your complaint. If you are dissatisfied with your response please contact Trevor Rees on 0161 246 4000, or by email to
trevor.rees@kpmg.co.uk, who is the national contact partner for all of KPMG’s work with the Audit Commission. After this, if you are still dissatisfied with how your
complaint has been handled you can access the Audit Commission’s complaints procedure. Put your complaint in writing to the Complaints Unit Manager, Audit
Commission, 3rd Floor, Fry Building, 2 Marsham Street, London, SW1P 4DF or by email to complaints@audit-commission.gsi.gov.uk. Their telephone number is 0303 4448
330.
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Section one

Introduction

This document summarises:

Scope of this report

VFM conclusion

■ the key issues identified
during our audit of the
financial statements for
the year ended 31 March
2014 for the Authority;
and

This report summarises the key findings arising from:

Our External Audit Plan 2013/14 explained our risk-based approach to
VFM work, which follows guidance provided by the Audit Commission.
We have now completed our work to support our 2013/14 VFM
conclusion. This included:

■ our assessment of the
Authority’s arrangements
to secure value for
money.

■ our audit work at Derbyshire Dales District Council (‘the Authority’)
in relation to the Authority’s 2013/14 financial statements; and
■ the work to support our 2013/14 conclusion on the Authority’s
arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in
its use of resources (‘VFM conclusion’).

■ assessing the potential VFM risks and identifying the residual audit
risks for our VFM conclusion; and
■ considering the results of any relevant work by the Authority and
other inspectorates and review agencies in relation to these risk
areas.

Financial statements
Our External Audit Plan 2013/14, presented to you in March 2014, set
out the four stages of our financial statements audit process.

Structure of this report
This report is structured as follows:
■ Section 2 summarises the headline messages.

Planning

Control
Evaluation

Substantive
Procedures

Completion

This report focuses on the second and third stages of the process:
control evaluation and substantive procedures. Our on site work for
these took place during March 2014 (interim audit) and July / August
2014 (year end audit).
We are now in the final phase of the audit, the completion stage. Some
aspects of this stage are also discharged through this report.

■ Section 3 sets out our key findings from our audit work in relation to
the 2013/14 financial statements of the Authority.
■ Section 4 outlines our key findings from our work on the VFM
conclusion.
Our recommendations are included in Appendix 1.
Acknowledgements
We would like to take this opportunity to thank officers and Members
for their continuing help and co-operation throughout our audit work.
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Section two

Headlines

This table summarises the
headline messages.
Sections three and four of

Proposed audit
opinion

We anticipate issuing an unqualified audit opinion on the Authority’s financial statements by 30 September 2014. We
will also report that the wording of your Annual Governance Statement accords with our understanding.

Audit adjustments

We are pleased to report that our audit of your financial statements did not identify any material adjustments. The
Authority made a small number of non-trivial adjustments, most of which were of a presentational nature. There was
no impact on the General Fund.

Accounts production
and audit process

The Authority has good processes in place for the production of the accounts and good quality supporting working
papers. Officers dealt efficiently with audit queries and the audit process has been completed within the planned
timescales.

this report provide further
details on each area.

We have worked with Officers throughout the year to discuss the specific risk areas for this year’s audit. The
Authority addressed the issues appropriately.
We have raised one recommendation arising from our work in respect of related party disclosures which is set out in
Appendix 1.
Control environment

The Authority’s organisational control environment is effective overall.

Completion

At the date of this report our audit of the financial statements is substantially complete. Before we can issue our
opinion we require a signed management representation letter.
We confirm that we have complied with requirements on objectivity and independence in relation to this year’s audit
of the Authority’s financial statements.

VFM conclusion and
risk areas

We have concluded that the Authority has made proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources.
We therefore anticipate issuing an unqualified VFM conclusion by 30 September 2014.
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Section three

Proposed opinion and audit differences

We have identified no issues

Proposed audit opinion

Annual Governance Statement

in the course of the audit of
the audit that are considered

We have reviewed the Annual Governance Statement and confirmed
that:

to be material.

We anticipate issuing an unqualified audit opinion on the Authority’s
financial statements following approval of the Statement of Accounts
by Members on 18 September 2014.

We anticipate issuing an

Audit differences

unqualified audit opinion in
relation to the Authority’s

In accordance with ISA 260 we are required to report uncorrected
audit differences to you. We also report any material misstatements
which have been corrected and which we believe should be
communicated to you to help you meet your governance
responsibilities.

financial statements by 30
September 2014.
The wording of your Annual
Governance Statement
accords with our
understanding.

■ it complies with Delivering Good Governance in Local Government:
A Framework published by CIPFA/SOLACE; and
■ it is not misleading or inconsistent with other information we are
aware of from our audit of the financial statements.
We have reviewed the Authority’s annual report and can confirm it is
not inconsistent with the financial information contained in the audited
financial statements.

We did not identify any material misstatements.
We did identify a small number of presentational adjustments required
to ensure that the accounts are compliant with the Code of Practice on
Local Authority Accounting the United Kingdom 2013/14 (‘the Code’).
We understand that the Authority will be addressing these where
significant.
In common with many local authorities, the Authority has put through a
prior year adjustment to reflect changes in the international accounting
standard IAS19 Employee Benefits. Strict application of accounting
standards say that a prior year adjustment should only be made if
there is a change in accounting policy or results in material
amendments.
The amendment is not material and is not a change in the Authority’s
accounting policy, and therefore the amendment should not have been
made. As the amendment is not material, we have not sought
amendment to the accounts. We have accepted the Authority’s
explanation that it chose to make the amendment in order to that users
of the accounts are aware of what had changed from previous year.
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Section three

Key financial statements audit risks

We have worked with
officers throughout the year
to discuss specific risk
areas. The Authority

In our External Audit Plan 2013/14, presented to you in April 2014, we
identified the key risk affecting the Authority’s 2013/14 financial
statements. We have now completed our testing of this area and set
out our evaluation following our substantive work.

addressed the issues

The table below sets out our detailed findings for the risk that is
specific to the Authority.

appropriately.

Additionally, we considered the risk of management override of

Key audit risk

LGPS
Triennial
Review

controls, which is a standard risk for all organisations.
Our controls testing and substantive procedures, including over journal
entries, accounting estimates and significant transactions that are
outside the normal course of business, or are otherwise unusual, did
not identify any issues.

Issue

Findings

During the year, the Local Government Pension
Scheme for Derbyshire (the Pension Fund) has
undergone a triennial valuation with an effective
date of 31 March 2013 in line with the Local
Government Pension Scheme (Administration)
Regulations 2008. The Authority’s share of
pensions assets and liabilities is determined in
detail, and a large volume of data is provided to the
actuary in order to carry out this triennial valuation.

As part of our audit, we agreed the data provided to
the actuary back to the systems and reports from
which it was derived, and tested the accuracy of this
data.
We liaised with the separate KPMG audit team for
the Pension Fund, where this data was provided by
the Pension Fund on the Authority’s behalf.
There are no issues to report.

The IAS 19 numbers to be included in the financial
statements for 2013/14 will be based on the output
of the triennial valuation rolled forward to 31 March
2014. For 2014/15 and 2015/16 the actuary will
then roll forward the valuation for accounting
purposes based on more limited data.
There is a risk that the data provided to the actuary
for the valuation exercise is inaccurate and that
these inaccuracies affect the actuarial figures in
the accounts. Most of the data is provided to the
actuary by Derbyshire County Council who
administer the Pension Fund.
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Section three

Accounts production and audit process
Accounts production and audit process

production of the accounts

ISA 260 requires us to communicate to you our views about the
significant qualitative aspects of the Authority’s accounting practices
and financial reporting. We also assessed the Authority’s process for
preparing the accounts and its support for an efficient audit.

and good quality supporting

We considered the following criteria:

The Authority has good
processes in place for the

working papers.
Officers dealt efficiently with
audit queries and the audit
process could be completed
within the planned
timescales.
The Authority has
implemented one of the two

Element

Commentary

Accounting
practices and
financial
reporting

The Authority has good financial reporting
arrangements in place.

Completeness
of draft
accounts

We received a complete set of draft accounts on
30 June 2014.

We consider that accounting practices are
appropriate.

recommendations in our ISA
260 Report 2012/13.

Quality of
supporting
working
papers

Our Accounts Audit Protocol, which we issued in
March 2014, and discussed with the finance team.

Response to
audit queries

Officers were proactive in resolving audit queries,
this meant responses were timely and of a good
standard.

The quality of working papers was of a good
standard and assisted the delivery of a smooth
audit engagement.

This meant that the new national arrangements and associated
pooling arrangements presented new accounting challenge for all
councils this year and brought a risk that NNDR income and
associated accounting entries may be misstated.
We reviewed the Authority’s accounting treatment for business rates
and found this to be in line with CIPFA guidance.
This work was additional to our original audit plan but is common issue
across all local authorities. We are currently in discussion with the
Audit Commission about how this additional work is to be funded but
may result in a small additional audit fee.
Prior year recommendations
As part of our audit we have reviewed last years ISA 260 report. There
were two specific recommendations that required follow up this year.
The first related to the Internal Audit Service and action has been
taken to ensure provision via a shared internal audit service.
The second related to members responding promptly to requests for
information on related party transactions. At the commencement of our
audit, related party declarations were still outstanding in respect of
three members. Officers have continued to follow up the missing
returns but one remains outstanding.
Failure to obtain a return from every member undermines the
effectiveness of this important control. It is disappointing that this
remains an issue despite discussion about its importance at full
Council. The member who failed to provide the required information is
Councillor Jenkins.

Other specific issues
NNDR additional work
On 1 April 2013 a new system of business rate retention began. Some
of the national guidance relating to the changed requirements was late
in being issued.
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Section three

Control environment

and control environment is

During March 2014 we completed our control evaluation work. We did
not issue an interim report as there were no significant issues arising
from this work. For completeness we reflect on key findings from this
work.

effective.

Organisational and IT control environment

The Authority’s organisation

Controls operated at an organisational level often have an impact on
controls at an operational level and if there were weaknesses this
would have implications for our audit. We have assessed your IT
environment for own purposes and we have no issues to report.

Controls over key systems
Where we have determined that this is the most efficient audit
approach to take, we test selected controls that address key risks
within the financial systems. The strength of the control framework
informs the substantive testing we complete during our final accounts
visit.
Based on the work of your internal auditors, and our own work on
controls over the year end process, the controls over the financial
systems are sound. Internal audit included recommendations in their
reports as appropriate.

Working with Internal Audit
We work with your internal auditors to assess the control framework
for certain key financial systems and seek to rely on any relevant work
they have completed to minimise unnecessary duplication of work.
Where we intend to rely on internal audit’s work in respect of the
Authority’s key financial systems, auditing standards require us to
complete an overall assessment of the internal audit function and to
evaluate and test aspects of their work.
We have reviewed internal audit’s reports throughout the year to
inform ourselves of any significant risks in relation to our opinion work.
However, there have been no specific instances during the course of
the year where we have sought to rely on the work of internal audit.
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Section three

Completion

We confirm that we have

Declaration of independence and objectivity

complied with requirements

As part of the finalisation process we are required to provide you with
representations concerning our independence.

on objectivity and
independence in relation to
this year’s audit of the
Authority’s financial
statements.
Before we can issue our
opinion we require a signed
management representation

In relation to the audit of the financial statements of Derbyshire Dales
District Council for the year ending 31 March 2014, we confirm that
there were no relationships between KPMG LLP and Derbyshire Dales
District Council, its directors and senior management and its affiliates
that we consider may reasonably be thought to bear on the objectivity
and independence of the audit engagement lead and audit staff. We
also confirm that we have complied with Ethical Standards and the
Audit Commission’s requirements in relation to independence and
objectivity.

letter.

We have provided a detailed declaration in Appendix 4 in accordance
with ISA 260.

Once we have finalised our

Management representations

opinions and conclusions

You are required to provide us with representations on specific matters
such as your financial standing and whether the transactions within the
accounts are legal and unaffected by fraud. We have provided a
template to the Section 151 Officer for presentation to the Audit
Committee. We require a signed copy of your management
representations before we issue our audit opinion.

we will prepare our Annual
Audit Letter and close our
audit.

financial reporting process; and
■ matters specifically required by other auditing standards to be
communicated to those charged with governance (e.g. significant
deficiencies in internal control; issues relating to fraud, compliance
with laws and regulations, subsequent events, non disclosure,
related party, public interest reporting, questions/objections,
opening balances etc).
There are no others matters which we wish to draw to your attention in
addition to those highlighted in this report or our previous reports
relating to the audit of the Authority’s 2013/14 financial statements.

Other matters
ISA 260 requires us to communicate to you by exception ‘audit matters
of governance interest that arise from the audit of the financial
statements’ which include:
■ significant difficulties encountered during the audit;
■ significant matters arising from the audit that were discussed, or
subject to correspondence with management;
■ other matters, if arising from the audit that, in the auditor's
professional judgment, are significant to the oversight of the
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Section four

VFM conclusion

Our VFM conclusion

Background

Work completed

considers how the Authority

Auditors are required to give their statutory VFM conclusion based on
two criteria specified by the Audit Commission. These consider
whether the Authority has proper arrangements in place for:

We performed a risk assessment earlier in the year and have reviewed
this throughout the year.

secures financial resilience
and challenges how it
secures economy, efficiency
and effectiveness.
We have concluded that the
Authority has made proper
arrangements to secure
economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of
resources.

■ securing financial resilience: looking at the Authority’s financial
governance, financial planning and financial control processes; and
■ challenging how it secures economy, efficiency and effectiveness:
looking at how the Authority is prioritising resources and improving
efficiency and productivity.
We follow a risk based approach to target audit effort on the areas of
greatest audit risk. We consider the arrangements put in place by the
Authority to mitigate these risks and plan our work accordingly.
The key elements of the VFM audit approach are summarised in the
diagram below.

VFM audit risk
assessment

Conclusion
We have concluded that the Authority has made proper arrangements
to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of
resources.

VFM criterion

Met

Securing financial resilience



Securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness



No further work required
Assessment of
residual audit
risk
Identification of
specific VFM
audit work (if
any)

Assessment of work by
external agencies

Conclude on
arrangements
to secure
VFM

VFM conclusion

Financial
statements and
other audit work

The following page includes further details of our risk assessment..

Specific local risk based
work
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Section four – VFM conclusion

Specific VFM risks
Work completed
We have identified a single
specific VFM risk.
We are satisfied that internal
scrutiny provides sufficient
assurance that the
Authority’s current

In line with the risk-based approach set out on the previous page, and
in our Audit Plan we have
■ assessed the Authority’s key business risks which are relevant to
our VFM conclusion;
■ identified the residual audit risks for our VFM conclusion, taking
account of work undertaken in previous years or as part of our
financial statements audit; and

arrangements in relation to

■ considered the results of relevant work by the Authority, the Audit
Commission, other inspectorates and review agencies in relation to
these risk areas.
Key findings
Below we set out the findings in respect of those areas where we have
identified a residual audit risk for our VFM conclusion.
We concluded that we did not need to carry out additional work for
these risks as there was sufficient relevant work that had completed by
the Authority in relation to these risk areas.

this risk area is adequate.
Key VFM risk

Savings
plans

Risk description and link to VFM conclusion

Assessment

As at January 2014, the Authority is forecasting that
it will deliver its 2013/14 budget in overall terms
(based on the savings that have already been
delivered). Approved savings of £400,000 have
been identified during 2014/15 to address the
further reductions to local authority funding and
continued cost pressures, and this will allow the
authority to deliver a balanced budget

The Authority delivered its 2013-14 budget with a
significant underspend. As at July 2014, the Authority
is forecasting that it will deliver its 2014/15 budget in
overall terms (based on the savings that have already
been delivered). Savings have already been
identified to address the further expected reductions to
local authority funding and continued cost pressures,
and this will allow the authority to deliver a balanced
budget for both 2015/16 and 2016/17 without the need
for further savings. However, savings of approximately
£1.3 million are still required over the period 2017/18 to
2019/20 should further cuts in Government Grant
materialise as expected.

This is relevant to the financial resilience criteria of
the VFM conclusion

Discussions with the Section 151 Officer supported by
a review of the Medium Term Financial Strategy have
confirmed that adequate arrangements are in place to
manage the Authority’s finances.
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Appendices

Appendix 1: Key issues and recommendations

We have given each
recommendation a risk
rating and agreed what

Priority rating for recommendations



action management will
need to take.

Priority one: issues that are
fundamental and material to your
system of internal control. We believe
that these issues might mean that you
do not meet a system objective or
reduce (mitigate) a risk.



The Authority should closely

Priority two: issues that have an
important effect on internal controls
but do not need immediate action.
You may still meet a system objective
in full or in part or reduce (mitigate) a
risk adequately but the weakness
remains in the system.



Priority three: issues that would, if
corrected, improve the internal control
in general but are not vital to the
overall system. These are generally
issues of best practice that we feel
would benefit you if you introduced
them.

monitor progress in
addressing specific risks
and implementing our
recommendations.
We will formally follow up
this recommendations next
year.

No.

Risk

Issue and recommendation

1



Related party transactions

Management response / responsible officer / due date

At the commencement of our audit, related party
disclosure declarations had not been returned by three
Members despite repeated reminders and discussion of
the importance of the returns following Inclusion of a
similar recommendation in our ISA260 report and
reference to the issue in our Annual Audit Letter in
2012/13. At the time of this report, one return remains
outstanding.
Recommendation
Every member should fulfil their responsibility to respond
promptly to requests for information on related party
transactions.
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Appendices

Appendix 2: Declaration of independence and objectivity

The Code of Audit Practice

Requirements

requires us to exercise our

Auditors appointed by the Audit Commission must comply with the
Code of Audit Practice (the ‘Code’) which states that:

professional judgement and
act independently of both
the Commission and the
Authority.

“Auditors and their staff should exercise their professional judgement
and act independently of both the Commission and the audited body.
Auditors, or any firm with which an auditor is associated, should not
carry out work for an audited body that does not relate directly to the
discharge of auditors’ functions, if it would impair the auditors’
independence or might give rise to a reasonable perception that their
independence could be impaired.”
In considering issues of independence and objectivity we consider
relevant professional, regulatory and legal requirements and guidance,
including the provisions of the Code, the detailed provisions of the
Statement of Independence included within the Audit Commission’s
Standing Guidance for Local Government Auditors (‘Audit Commission
Guidance’) and the requirements of APB Ethical Standard 1 Integrity,
Objectivity and Independence (‘Ethical Standards’).
The Code states that, in carrying out their audit of the financial
statements, auditors should comply with auditing standards currently in
force, and as may be amended from time to time. Audit Commission
Guidance requires appointed auditors to follow the provisions of ISA
(UK &I) 260 Communication of Audit Matters with Those Charged with
Governance’ that are applicable to the audit of listed companies. This
means that the appointed auditor must disclose in writing:
■ Details of all relationships between the auditor and the client, its
directors and senior management and its affiliates, including all
services provided by the audit firm and its network to the client, its
directors and senior management and its affiliates, that the auditor
considers may reasonably be thought to bear on the auditor’s
objectivity and independence.
■ The related safeguards that are in place.

■ The total amount of fees that the auditor and the auditor’s network
firms have charged to the client and its affiliates for the provision of
services during the reporting period, analysed into appropriate
categories, for example, statutory audit services, further audit
services, tax advisory services and other non-audit services. For
each category, the amounts of any future services which have
been contracted or where a written proposal has been submitted
are separately disclosed. We do this in our Annual Audit Letter.
Appointed auditors are also required to confirm in writing that they
have complied with Ethical Standards and that, in the auditor’s
professional judgement, the auditor is independent and the auditor’s
objectivity is not compromised, or otherwise declare that the auditor
has concerns that the auditor’s objectivity and independence may be
compromised and explaining the actions which necessarily follow from
his. These matters should be discussed with the Corporate
Committee.
Ethical Standards require us to communicate to those charged with
governance in writing at least annually all significant facts and matters,
including those related to the provision of non-audit services and the
safeguards put in place that, in our professional judgement, may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and the objectivity
of the Engagement Lead and the audit team.

General procedures to safeguard independence and objectivity
KPMG's reputation is built, in great part, upon the conduct of our
professionals and their ability to deliver objective and independent
advice and opinions. That integrity and objectivity underpins the work
that KPMG performs and is important to the regulatory environments in
which we operate. All partners and staff have an obligation to maintain
the relevant level of required independence and to identify and
evaluate circumstances and relationships that may impair that
independence.
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Appendices

Appendix 2: Declaration of independence and objectivity (continued)

We confirm that we have
complied with requirements
on objectivity and
independence in relation to
this year’s audit of the
Authority’s financial
statements.

Acting as an auditor places specific obligations on the firm, partners
and staff in order to demonstrate the firm's required independence.
KPMG's policies and procedures regarding independence matters are
detailed in the Ethics and Independence Manual (‘the Manual’). The
Manual sets out the overriding principles and summarises the policies
and regulations which all partners and staff must adhere to in the area
of professional conduct and in dealings with clients and others.
KPMG is committed to ensuring that all partners and staff are aware of
these principles. To facilitate this, a hard copy of the Manual is
provided to everyone annually. The Manual is divided into two parts.
Part 1 sets out KPMG's ethics and independence policies which
partners and staff must observe both in relation to their personal
dealings and in relation to the professional services they provide. Part
2 of the Manual summarises the key risk management policies which
partners and staff are required to follow when providing such services.
All partners and staff must understand the personal responsibilities
they have towards complying with the policies outlined in the Manual
and follow them at all times. To acknowledge understanding of and
adherence to the policies set out in the Manual, all partners and staff
are required to submit an annual ethics and independence
confirmation. Failure to follow these policies can result in disciplinary
action.
Auditor declaration
In relation to the audit of the financial statements of Derbyshire Dales
District Council for the financial year ending 31 March 2014, we
confirm that there were no relationships between KPMG LLP and
Derbyshire Dales District Council, its directors and senior management
and its affiliates that we consider may reasonably be thought to bear
on the objectivity and independence of the audit engagement lead and
audit staff. We also confirm that we have complied with Ethical
Standards and the Audit Commission’s requirements in relation to
independence and objectivity.
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NOT CONFIDENTIAL – For public release

Item No. 6

CORPORATE COMMITTEE
SEPTEMBER 2014
Report of the Head of Corporate Services

COMMUNITY GOVERNANCE REVIEW – HATHERSAGE AND OUTSEATS
SUMMARY
This report feeds back on a public consultation exercise on a draft proposal to dissolve the
current parishes of Hathersage and Outseats; to create one new parish council called
Hathersage, and to set the electoral arrangements to elect 14 members to the new parish
council.
RECOMMENDATION
That in the interests of more effective and convenient local governance, the Council
publishes final recommendations as required by the Local Government Public Involvement in
Health Act 2007 to secure:
•

the dissolution of the current parishes of Hathersage and Outseats

•

the creation of a new parish of Hathersage comprising
Appendix 1

•

electoral arrangements to provide for 14 members of the new Hathersage Parish
Council

the area set out in

WARDS AFFECTED
Hathersage
STRATEGIC LINK
The proposal links with the Council’s aim, of ‘Leading the Communities of the Derbyshire
Dales’.
1.

BACKGROUND

1.1

At its June meeting, the Committee approved a draft recommendation to dissolve the
current civil parishes of Hathersage and Outseats and to create a new parish council
called Hathersage, under the Community Governance Review provisions contained in
the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007.
The
recommendation also recommended that 14 members be elected to form the new
parish council of Hathersage.

1.2

The draft recommendation was put to the electorate of Hathersage and Outseats
parishes, together with other interested parties including the County Council, the Peak
District National Park Authority and local businesses.
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1.3

Plan showing the proposed boundary of the new parish of Hathersage is attached at
Appendix 1.

2.

RESPONSE TO THE CONSULTATION

2.1

Representations received during the consultation process, the majority of which are in
support of the proposal, are summarised in Appendix 2.

2.2

The Committee must now take account of the representations received and decide on
whether it wishes to proceed with a final recommendation and ultimate Order. The
overall aim of the Review must be to ensure that the proposed community governance
arrangements reflects the identifies and interests of the community and that the
arrangements are effective and convenient.

3.

FINAL RECOMMENDATION

3.1

If the Committee decides to proceed with a final recommendation, further steps need
to be taken to inform interested parties of the final recommendation and allow a period
within which copies of the proposals may be inspected. The ultimate Order,
containing the final recommendations will then need to be sent to:
•

The Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government

•

The Electoral Commission

•

The Office of National Statistics

•

The Director general of the Ordnance Survey

•

Derbyshire County Council

•

Peak District National Park Authority

3.2

The effective date of the Order will be x date to enable deposit copies

4.

RISK ASSESSMENT

4.1

Legal
The legal provisions are outlined in the report. The risk is therefore low.

4.2

Financial
There are no financial implications other than Officer time.
therefore low.

5.

The financial risk is

OTHER CONSIDERATIONS
In preparing this report the relevance of the following factors has also been
considered: prevention of crime and disorder, equality of opportunity, environmental,
health, legal and human rights, financial, personnel and property considerations.

6.

CONTACT INFORMATION

6.1

Sandra Lamb, Head of Corporate Services, Tel. 01629 761281 or email
sandra.lamb@derbyshiredales.gov.uk
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7.

BACKGROUND PAPERS
None

8.

ATTACHMENTS

8.1

Appendix 1 – Map of proposed new boundary

8.2

Appendix 2 – Submission from Hathersage and Outseats Parish Councils
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No. Name
1 Amanda Foster

Support Any other comments
Yes
2 Parish Councils for this village area is anachronistic
and expensive. To abolish both of the present PC's
and replace them with a unified body would reflect the
present configuration of the population and offer a
more representative local democracy.

2

Geoffrey H Smith

Yes

3
4
5

David Bevan
David Jackson
Pamela Torry

Yes
Yes
Yes

Good idea and will promote community cohesion

6

Dr W M G Turnbridge

Yes

It is logical and makes practical and economic sense

7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14

Claire Firth
Mrs P Robinson
Jacque Bevan
Occupiers
David W Monks
David Palmer
Nick Williams
Jane Palmer

Yes
Yes
Yes
No
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes

15

Robert & Beverly
Minards

Yes

16 Frances Wells

Yes

17 Peter Mander

Yes

18 Alistair Cook

Yes

19 Jean M Hodgkinson
20 Brian Morris
21 Mrs Carol Nixon

Yes
Yes
Yes

I don't want this to happen.

Feels it would unite the entire village, the interests of
the whole village will be met as one parish. The
joining will allo money to be spent and allocated
appropriately - to be spent as needed throughout the
whole parish.
As a business member of the local community we fully
support the proposal.
Can't tell you how pleased I'm with two Parish
becoming one, it has been long over due in my mind
and will be of a true benefit to the resident of the
village of Hathersage
As a former Hathersage Parish Councillor, I have
always been very much in favour of Hathersage and
Outseats Parish Council's joining to become on
Parish Council, thus reflecting the true nature of this
beautiful and important Peak District village. With so
much so take care of - the Swimming Pool, St.
George's Field playing field, bowling green and tennis
courts, the village centre with its toilet block, bus
shelter and olf Parish Rooms - much more public
realm property than most villages in Derbyshire, it
makes sense that these tasks are shared by the
village as a whole. The majority of our population of
approximately 1800 is in favour on this amalgamation;
I trust that the Borough Council will agree with us and
incorporate this change in the current Community
Governance Review.
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22 Prof Roger Plank
Den Pain and Sue
23
Pritchard
24 Brian Ward
25 Peter Smith
26 Sue Boccaccinin
27 Keith and Beti Levick
Steve and Annette
28
Illidge
29 Jane Marsden

Yes

30 Mrs Angela Ward

Yes

31 John Wooddisse

Yes

Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes

32

Liz McWhinnie and
Lydia Keigwin

Yes

33

Bernard and Elisabeth
Madden

Yes

34 Bill Hanley

In my opinion can only be beneficial to the whole
community.
There would be less duplication of workload for the
village in which both parishes have an interest.
Terrific idea. One new parish to serve both areas.
Long overdue.
As residents, please be assured of our support for the
making ONE PARISH COUNCIL out of the existing
two and we trust this will be made into effect.

Yes

35 Bill Hanley

Yes

36 Mrs B J Gowan
Jennifer and Peter
37
Stevens
38 John Hardwick

Yes

I support the proposal to create a single Hathersage Parish
of 14 members from the parishes of Hathersage and
Outseats. I am a resident and parish councillor in Outseats.
I have lived and worked in Harthersage/Outseats parishes
for over 20 years and have always considered myself as
living and working in Hathersage. The creation of a single
parish has, in my view, many advantages not least the
governance and organisation of local facilities and the full
involvement of the community in this thriving village. I can
think of disadvantages.

Yes
Yes
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Item No. 7

CORPORATE COMMITTEE
18TH SEPTEMBER 2014
Report of the Corporate Director

PUBLIC INQUIRY - LAND AT OLD DERBY ROAD, ASHBOURNE
SUMMARY
The report informs Members of the outcome of the Derbyshire Dales Local Plan Examination
in Public and advises that in light of a significant change in circumstances, it is no longer
sustainable for the District Council to seek to defend its original decision to refuse planning
permission for residential development at Old Derby Road, Ashbourne. The report advises of
an alternative approach to the resolution of the matter which will involve the District Council
agreeing not to contest the appeal.
RECOMMENDATION
1.

That the Committee endorse the approach outlined in Section 4 of the report.

2.

That the Statement of Common Ground attached at Appendix 1 be endorsed for
submission to the Planning Inspectorate.

WARDS AFFECTED
Ashbourne South
STRATEGIC LINK
The Council strives to lead the communities of the Derbyshire Dales and provide excellent
services. The proposed action reflects the Council’s corporate aims as stated in the
2014/2015 Corporate Plan.

1

BACKGROUND

1.1

On 26TH March 2014, outline planning permission was refused for residential
development of up to 200 dwellings, highway improvements and landscaping on land
off Old Derby Road, Ashbourne (Application 13/00911/OUT). The reason for refusal
was as follows:‘The proposal entails the development of a greenfield site for housing located
outside of the Settlement Framework boundary of Ashbourne as defined in
the Adopted Derbyshire Dales Local Plan (2005). The development of these
greenfields which will be inherently encroaching and harmful to landscape
character and appearance is considered unwarranted and unsustainable in
the context of the Council being able to demonstrate a housing land supply
comfortably in excess of the requirements of the National Planning Policy
Framework. The development as such is considered contrary to Policies
26

NBE8 and SF4 of the Local Plan, Development Management Policies 2 and
6 of the Pre Submission Draft Derbyshire Dales Local Plan and guidance in
the National Planning Policy Framework taken as a whole.’
1.2

An appeal has been lodged against the Council’s refusal of planning permission and
the matter is to be determined by means of a Public Inquiry which is due to commence
on 7th November 2014 for 3 days.

1.3

At the meeting of Council on 8th May 2014, Members approved expenditure in the
order of £32,000 for the appointment of Counsel and an expert landscape witness in
order to defend the Council’s decision. Professional planning evidence would be given
by the Council’s Corporate Director.

2

NATIONAL PLANNING POLICY CONTEXT

2.1

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) outlines the policy position of
Central Government which is to ‘….boost significantly the supply of housing’. The
Chief Secretary to the Treasury has recently reaffirmed this position 1 stating that a
‘radical building policy was necessary over the longer term’ and that as a nation we
need to be providing 250,000 to 300,000 homes per annum. Last year only 123,000
homes were constructed in England. There is therefore, a very clear expectation that
there will be a significant increase in house building activity and the NPPF is
increasingly being seen as the policy mechanism to achieve this.

2.2

In order to achieve this objective, Paragraph 47 of the NPPF states that:
a)
b)

2.3

Since the publication of the NPPF in March 2012, there has been a plethora of appeal
cases on the interpretation of key provisions within the NPPF, most notably what is
actually meant by Paragraph 47. In December 2013, the Court of Appeal 2 provided a
substantive judgement on this issue and gave a “definitive answer to the proper
interpretation of paragraph 47”. The effect of this is that paragraph 47 requires that:
a)
b)

2.4

b)

2

A local planning authority must ensure that it meets the full objectively assessed
needs for market and affordable housing, and that;
Where there is no Local Plan, then the housing requirement for a local authority
for the purposes of paragraph 47 is the full, objectively assessed need.

Therefore, the key issues arising in the context of this are appeal are:
a)

1

Local Planning Authorities should meet the full objectively assessed needs
(OAN) for market and affordable housing; and
Provide 5 years supply of housing against their housing requirements with an
additional buffer of 5% (or 20% where there has been a record of persistent
under delivery).

The extent to which the Council can demonstrate a 5 year supply of deliverable
housing land against full OAN, as required by paragraph 47 of the Framework;
Whether existing Development Plan policies cited in the reason for refusal are up
to date.

th

Daily Telegraph 30 July 2014
EWCA Civ 1610 (“Hunston”)
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3

APPEAL CONTEXT

3.1

In determining the appeal application, the Local Planning Authority took a conscious
decision to seek to defend a lower than OAN housing provision in the emerging
Derbyshire Dales Local Plan. The Pre-Submission Draft Derbyshire Dales Local Plan
proposed that 4400 dwellings (200 per annum) should be provided for in the period
2006-2028. However, the full Objectively Assessed Need for the Derbyshire Dales is
actually in the order of 6006 dwellings (273 per annum) for the period 2006-2028. The
Local Planning Authority has therefore, intentionally been pursuing a planning strategy
for the area which is based upon not meeting full OAN due to concerns about
environmental capacity and widespread public opposition to greenfield site
development.

3.2.

However, the Inspector (Inspector Holland) who recently conducted the first 2 days of
the Derbyshire Dales Local Plan EIP (22nd and 23rd July 2014) considers that the full
OAN for housing should be at least 6500 due to the current backlog of housing needs
(currently over 500 households), the identified need for affordable housing (180
dwellings per annum) and the Council’s corporate objective of supporting economic
growth and enhancing prosperity, none of which can be achieved by constraining
housing supply to 200 dwellings per annum as is currently proposed in the Draft
Derbyshire Dales Local Plan. As such, the EIP has been temporarily suspended whilst
the District Council considers its position further.

3.3

In light of the above, there are direct implications for the determination of this appeal,
namely:
a)

Inspector Holland has indicated that the bottom line for OAN is at least 6500
dwellings not 4400.

b)

Having regard to the ‘Hunston’ judgement and in the absence of an adopted
Local Plan, the housing requirement for the district will, for the purposes of the
NPPF, be assessed as being at least 6500 dwellings as stipulated by Inspector
Holland.

c)

All planning applications and appeals must therefore be determined on the basis
of an OAN of at least 6500 dwellings not 4400.

d)

An OAN of 6500 dwellings results in the District Council having less than 5 years
supply of housing land, contrary to paragraph 47 of the NPPF.

e)

In the absence of a 5 year supply, there is a policy presumption in favour of
granting planning permission unless any adverse impacts of doing so would
significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits of providing land for
housing.

f)

There is no policy presumption against the development of greenfield sites in the
NPPF. The fact that a site may have a degree of landscape impact is not in itself
sufficient to outweigh the need to provide land for housing.

g)

The landscape harm arising from the development of the appeal site has been
assessed by the Council’s Independent Landscape expert and is not considered
to be sufficient on its own to sustain the reason for refusal.
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h)

In light of recent Court of Appeal judgements 3, Local Plan Policy SF4 is
considered to be out of date pursuant to the operation of paragraph 49 of the
NPPF and cannot be relied upon to defend the decision that has been made.
Accordingly, the presumption in favour of development applies (NPPF paragraph
14)

3.4

In light of the above, the premise upon which the original planning application was
refused has subsequently been rejected by Inspector Holland. As such, the decision
can no longer be reasonably defended and any attempt to do so will almost certainly
result in an adverse award of substantial costs against the District Council.

3.5

Council are therefore strongly advised to acknowledge that there has been a
significant change in circumstances which now makes the appeal unsustainable to
defend. An alternative approach to the resolution of this matter is therefore required.

4

ALTERNATIVE APPROACH TO APPEAL DETERMINATION

4.1

In order to resolve this matter without the Council and the appellants incurring further
substantial costs, it is necessary for the Council to make a formal determination that in
light of changed circumstances, it will no longer seek to defend the original decision.
This can be achieved by the submission of a Statement of Common Ground to the
Planning Inspectorate with a request that the appeal be downgraded to an appeal
hearing (which will not require legal Counsel).
A Statement of Common Ground is attached at Appendix 1. This states that:
1.
2.
3.

The Council will not seek to defend the original reason for refusal due to the
change in circumstances.
In the absence of a 5 year supply, there are no other sustainable planning
objections to the development.
The appellants will not submit an application for costs against the Council.

4.2

Subject to the agreement of the Planning Inspectorate, the appeal will continue to be
determined by means of an informal hearing (1 day only). This will afford third party
interests, including Ward Members and the Town Council, the opportunity to continue
to outline their objections to the proposal to the Inspector, thereby affording the
opportunity for the public to have their say. However, the District Council would not
seek to actively participate in such proceedings.

5

IMPLICATIONS FOR THE FUTURE

5.1

It is acknowledged that this is an extremely difficult and contentious course of action to
take. However, the District Council has a duty to act responsibly with public resources
and it would be inappropriate for the Council to ignore the significant change in
circumstances that has occurred.

5.2

Whilst the implementation of the NPPF has increased the amount of residential
development permitted across the country, as national government intended,
particularly in circumstances where Local Plans have not yet secured a sufficient
supply of deliverable housing sites, it is not intended to encourage a housing
development ‘free-for-all’. However, the presumption in favour of sustainable
development enshrined in paragraph 14 of the NPPF, does require planning

3

South Northamptonshire Council v Sec of State CLG and Barwood Land and Estates Ltd [2014] EWHC 573 (Admin)
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permission to be granted unless any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly
and demonstrably outweigh the benefits. This does not equate to a blanket approval
for residential development in locations that would otherwise have conflicted with
Local Plan policies. On the contrary, if the adverse impacts of a proposal can be
demonstrated to ‘significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits’ then planning
permission should still be refused. Unfortunately, those circumstances do not exist in
this case.
6

RISK ASSESSMENT

6.1

Legal
For the reasons outlined in the report and in regard to the professional advice
received, the lack of a demonstrable supply of housing for the next 5 years, places the
District Council as Planning Authority at high risk of adverse costs in defending an
appeal which may be indefensible. For commercial reasons the alternative approach
seeks to minimise the financial burden on the public purse. Whilst there are no other
third party rights to appeal the decision not to defend may be medium to high risk in
terms of the Council’s reputation. However on balance the legal risk is considered to
be low.
Whilst the Planning Committee took its decision in good faith, a decision not to defend
on commercial and strategic planning grounds is considered to be within the
Committee’s remit and delivers the objectivity required.

6.2

Financial
Adopting the approach outlined in section 4 of this report means that the Council will
not incur legal costs in defending the original reason for refusal and the Council will be
safeguarded against the award of costs to the appellants. The only cost would be in
officer time, which can be met from existing budgets. The financial risk of this
approach is, therefore, low.
If the approach outlined in section 4 of the report is not approved the financial costs
could total £70,000 to £80,000 and would be classed as Medium Risk.

7

OTHER CONSIDERATIONS
In preparing this report, the relevance of the following factors has also been
considered: prevention of crime and disorder, equalities, environmental, climate
change, health, human rights, personnel and property.

8

CONTACT INFORMATION
Paul Wilson, Corporate Director
Tel: 01629 761325 E-mail: paul.wilson@derbyshiredales.gov.uk

9

BACKGROUND PAPERS
Planning Application 13/00911/OUT
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Statement of Common Ground
Appeal against the refusal of Derbyshire Dales District Council
to grant outline planning permission for
residential development of up to 200 dwellings
on land at Old Derby Road, Ashbourne
appellant:
The Trustees of Sir Ian Walker-Okeover
local planning authority:
Derbyshire Dales District Council
Appeal Reference: APP/P1045/A/14/2218952
Date of Report: September 2014
Tom Collins BA (Hons) MSc MRTPI
Fisher German LLP
St. Helens Court
North Street
Ashby de la Zouch
Leicestershire LE65 1HS
Tel: 01530 567479
Fax: 01530 413896
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W71.1 Trustees of Sir Ian Walker-Okeover

Statement of Common Ground
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W71.1 Trustees of Sir Ian Walker-Okeover

Statement of Common Ground

1.0

DESCRIPTION OF THE SITE AND SURROUNDINGS

1.1

This site comprises 9.9 hectares of agricultural grazing land immediately to the south east of
the built up area of Ashbourne. The site is bounded by the A52 bypass to the south with an
intervening planted bund. To the north-west is the recently approved housing site at Willow
Meadow Farm (APP/P1045/A/13/2195546) which adjoins an existing suburban estate that
forms the remainder of the site’s northern boundary. A brook runs along the north-western
boundary of the site with the existing housing beyond.

1.2

The site comprises 4 fields, with the largest being that which fronts onto Old Derby Road. This
field is roughly rectangular and slopes gently down from north east to south west. The field
immediately to the south east is triangular in shape and wraps around the southern edge of
the buildings at Hill Top Farm. This field is fairly level and is screened from the bypass by
established planting. The boundary between these fields is marked by a fence whilst the
perimeter boundaries of the field comprise exiting hedgerow and trees. The fields are well
screened along the southern boundary by mature planting between them and the bypass.

1.3

A public footpath emerges from across the stream to the north and ascends the fields before
crossing the bypass.

1.4

The site lies to the south of Ashbourne and is tightly enclosed by the A52 bypass to the south,
and newly consented residential development (APP/P1045/A/13/2195546) to the north west.
Beyond the north western boundary of the site is existing housing, comprising a mixture of
detached and semi-detached properties varying in size and appearance, defining the built
environment in this location. The north eastern boundary of the site comprises, in part, Old
Derby Road, providing direct access into Ashbourne from the south. Residential properties
including Toll House, Hilltop and two barn conversions comprise the remaining north eastern
boundary.

1.5

Ashbourne itself is a large, well-established market town and a key service and employment
centre not only for its residents, but also those in the surrounding villages and hamlets. The site
is located less than a mile to the south east of Ashbourne town centre. The town centre has a
wide range of shops, community services and leisure facilities.

1.6

Within the immediate vicinity of the site there is a convenience store on Springhill Road, Hilltop
Primary School, public open space, employment areas and multiple bus stops.
1
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Bus services serve the site well, with connections to Ashbourne, Derby, Uttoxeter, Osmaston,
Belper, Brailsford, Kirk Langley, Mackworth, Mayfield, Ellastone, Denstone, Rocester and
Boyleston.
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2.0

DESCRIPTION OF THE DEVELOPMENT

2.1

Outline planning permission is sought for residential development of up to 200 dwellings with
public open space, highway improvements and landscaping. All matters are reserved with
the exception of the access to the site.

2.2

The appellants have detailed the access arrangement with access being taken from Old
Derby Road. The centre line of the access which will run perpendicular to Old Derby Road is
approximately in the position of an existing bus stop 60m from the north eastern corner of the
site.

2.3

The access is designed with a 6.75m carriageway with 2m footways either side. The access
has a 10m kerb radii and 2.4m x 43m visibility splays in either direction. Footways will link with
the existing footway to the west and extend to the east to allow for a dropped kerb crossing
point. The highway works include the realignment of the junction with Derby Road with an
improved 10m kerb radii created to both west and east. The existing bus stop on Old Derby
Road is relocated approximately 55m to the west.

2.4

It is noted that the development of up to 200 dwellings at Old Derby Road, Ashbourne will be
required to deliver some elements that cannot be secured by planning condition and
therefore a legal agreement will be required. The S106 planning obligation will be subject to
meeting the appropriate statutory tests of necessity and reasonableness.

2.5

The draft heads of terms, as submitted with the planning application, are attached at
appendix 1 of this Statement of Common Ground.

2.6

The parties agree that the development falls within that defined by Schedule 2 of the
Environmental Impact Assessment Regulations (2011), but that it does not constitute EIA
development.

3
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3.0

PLANNING HISTORY

3.1

There is no record of any relevant planning history related to the site although schemes in the
mid-1960s and mid-1970s to develop parts of the site fronting Old Derby Road were rejected.
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4.0

THE DEVELOPMENT PLAN

4.1

The Development Plan comprises the saved policies of the Derbyshire Dales Local Plan
(Adopted 2005).

4.2

The 2005 Local Plan is to be replaced by a new Local Plan for the Derbyshire Dales, which
was submitted in May 2014 for Examination in Public. The first hearing sessions for the
replacement Local Plan sat on 22 and 23 July 2014, following which an Examination Note was
published by the Local Plan Inspector on 29 July 2014. This note is attached at appendix 2,
with addition correspondence between the Local Planning Authority and Inspector attached
at appendix 3.

4.3

In light of the Inspector’s initial conclusions, Derbyshire Dales District Council has decided that
the examination should not continue as currently scheduled, in order to allow for additional
work to be undertaken. A formal decision on the next steps will be taken at a meeting of full
Council on 2nd October 2014.

4.4

One of the Inspector’s concerns raised in the Examination Note relates to the Objectively
Assessed Need (OAN) for housing in Derbyshire Dales in the period 2006 - 2028, where he
states in paragraph 14 of appendix 2 that “the OAN for this area is likely to be at least 6,500
for the plan period”. This equates to approximately 295 dwellings per annum, and compares
to the Council’s most recent figure of 244 per annum, as proposed at the initial hearing
sessions. The submission version of the Local Plan proposed a total of 4,400 dwellings for the
plan period, equating to 200 per annum.

4.5

In light of this new OAN figure for Derbyshire Dales, the Local Planning Authority cannot
demonstrate a 5 year supply of deliverable housing land.

4.6

Ashbourne is proposed to be an area of growth in the Council’s emerging Local Plan.

5
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RELEVANCE OF ANY OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING
DOCUMENTS PUBLISHED BY THE LPA

5.1

Reference should be made to the Council’s Affordable Housing SPD which was adopted in
July 2006.

6
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SPECIFIC AREAS OF AGREEMENT
In light of the significant shortfall against the required 5 year supply of housing land, it is
common ground between the appellant and the local planning authority that there are no
longer any grounds on which the proposed development at Old Derby Road could be
refused.

6.2

It is agreed that paragraphs 49 and 14 of the NPPF are engaged. The policies of the plan in
respect of housing land supply are out of date. There is consequently a presumption in favour
of residential development on this site. In addition the local planning authority accept that
the adverse impacts of developing this site are significantly and demonstrably outweighed by
the benefits.

6.3

Accordingly, the local planning authority will not be presenting any defence to the appeal of
the application’s refusal, as the issues raised by the sole reason for refusal no longer apply to
the proposed development.

6.4

The following list details the additional specific areas of agreement between the appellant
and the Local Planning Authority, as considered by the committee report for the
application’s determination:

6.5

•

Sustainability and provision of affordable housing

•

Archaeology

•

Setting of a listed building

•

Highway and pedestrian safety

•

Contributions towards infrastructure

•

Open space

•

Ecology

•

Neighbouring amenity

•

Noise and pollution

•

Drainage

Having regard to the above, and given the shortfall in housing land supply, it is agreed that
the Council has no technical or other objections to the application.

6.6

In light of the significant changes in context between the refusal of the application in March
2014 and submission of this amended Statement of Common Ground in September 2014, the
appellant will not be making any application for costs as part of this appeal.
7
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Tom Collins BA (Hons) MSc MRTPI
Associate
On behalf of The Trustees of Sir Ian Walker-Okeover

Paul Wilson MCD, Dip TP, Dip Mgmt, MRTPI
Corporate Director
Derbyshire Dales District Council
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APPENDIX 1:
Draft heads of terms
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It is noted that the development of up to 200 dwellings at Old Derby Road, Ashbourne will be
required to deliver some elements that cannot be secured by planning condition and
therefore a legal agreement will be required.

1.2.

The S106 planning obligation will be subject to meeting the appropriate statutory tests of
necessity and reasonableness. The following provides for Heads of Terms for a potential
Planning Obligation to ensure any other development impacts are appropriately mitigated.

1.3.

Informal and Formal Open Space – to provide onsite open space, together with
maintenance and management arrangements.

1.4.

Education Contribution – The school catchment comprises Hilltop Primary School and Queen
Elizabeth Grammar School. Payment of an appropriate commuted sum towards the cost of
education provision to serve the development.

1.5.

Highways Improvements – works associated with the site access; minor realignment of the
junction at Old Derby Road/Derby Road; and financial contributions to increase the capacity
of the signalised traffic junction at Station Street/Compton Street/Sturston Road/Derby
Road/Old Hill.

1.6.

Other – Other contributions may be identified through the planning consultation process, and
subject to meeting the appropriate tests of relevance, necessity and reasonableness,
consideration will be given to their inclusion.

1.7.

Affordable Housing – If affordable housing is not dealt with by planning condition, the s106 will
make provision for a scheme of Affordable Housing to be agreed with the Council.
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APPENDIX 2:
Note of Examination
29 July 2014
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APPENDIX 3:
Correspondence between Derbyshire Dales District
Council and the Local Plan Inspector
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Examination of the Derbyshire Dales Local Plan.
1)

I held two days of hearings on 22 and 23 July 2014. These days
covered three topics – the Duty to Cooperate (the Duty), objectively
assessed need for housing (OAN) and the plan making process. The
purpose of the hearings on the two days was to examine these
matters and to establish whether there are any reasons why the
examination should not proceed, especially in the light of the Duty.
The Council requested that in addition to reaching a view on the Duty
I provide details of my findings in relation to the other main matters
discussed.

OAN for Housing
2)

In the light of the anticipated revocation of the regional strategies in
late 2011, housing need work was done with High Peak Borough
Council. At that stage the two councils were working on a joint core
strategy. Nine different demographic and household projections were
produced including one based on Sub- National Population Projections
(SNPP) and three based on the East Midlands Regional Strategy (RS) described as RSS Dwelling Led, RSS less 10% and RSS plus 10%. For
Derbyshire Dales the recommendation to the Council at that time was
to take the three RSS dwelling forecasts forward for consultation.

3)

In the event by April 2012 joint working with High Peak Borough
Council had ceased and Derbyshire Dales Council considered a
Strategic Housing Options Paper. The Options Paper contained nine
forecasts on the same basis as the earlier work but for Derbyshire
Dales only for a plan period of 2006 – 2028. The highest forecast,
based on economic growth, was for the provision of 7,920 dwellings
over the plan period, the SNPP based forecast was for 6,380 dwellings
and the maintain RSS Dwelling Led forecast was for 4,400 dwellings.
The April 2012 report to the Council describes the three RS based
forecasts as “feasible” and recommended setting the preferred
strategic housing requirement for the Local Plan at 4,400 dwellings
(an average of 200 per annum). The recommendation was agreed by
the Council and following a consultation exercise 4,400 dwellings was
adopted in November 2012 as the housing need figure for the District
over the plan period 2006 - 2028.

4)

At the hearing the Council explained that as the report to Members
included the SNPP figure of 6,380 dwellings the Members were alerted
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to the fact that the figure of 4,400 would not meet the OAN for the
District. Further the Council contended that the 4,400, although
identical to the RS figure, was chosen as a “benchmark to
contextualise the consultation process”. The Council argues that this
level of growth represents an appropriate balance between the
housing needs of the area and environmental considerations.
5)

The Council justifies the figure of 4,400 on the basis of what it calls
available evidence and the sustainability work undertaken. In my
view neither the evidence that I have seen nor the sustainability work
clearly points to 4,400 as being the appropriate balance. The
Council’s argument is a generic one and I am unable, on the basis of
what I have read or been told, to make an informed judgement as to
whether it represents an appropriate balance or not. However I note
that the latest Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment
(SHLAA) work undertaken in November 2013 by the Council suggests
that there is sufficient potential housing land, including sites with
planning permission, for 6419 dwellings over the plan period. This
SHLAA work takes account of environmental considerations which
suggests that it may be possible to get closer to meeting the OAN for
housing without having a serious adverse impact on the high quality
Derbyshire Dales landscape. At the very least the Council should
reconsider whether its assessment of the appropriate balance between
meeting housing needs and the environment is supported by the
available evidence.

6)

In August 2013 the Council recognised that the work undertaken
hitherto on identifying housing needs was not wholly in accordance
with the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) published in
March 2012. Accordingly in October 2013 the Council commissioned
Atkins to undertake an objective assessment of housing and economic
needs in the area. Atkins were also asked to establish what the
Strategic Housing Market Area (SHMA) is for Derbyshire Dales.

7)

Reporting in February 2014 Atkins defined the SHMA as extending
across Derbyshire into East Staffordshire and the Sheffield area. The
Atkins report notes that the Council will need to work closely with
other authorities in the Housing Market Area (HMA) to consider how
the needs of the HMA can best be met. At the hearing consultants for
the Council introduced the idea of Derbyshire Dales being a selfcontained market area based on 50 % self-containment – in effect a
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smaller submarket within the wider SHMA. However the consultants
accepted that within this submarket the consultants the strategy
would not meet the OAN. Atkins concluded in February 2014 that
while the OAN is for 273 dwellings per annum a target of 200 “remains
appropriate”. Pressed at the hearing Atkins accepted that its
conclusion about the 200 dwelling target does not flow from any of the
material in their report – rather it is a reflection of the Council’s
preferred approach. The OAN figure of 273 in the Atkins report is
based on demographics and does not reflect any policy requirements
in relation to, for example, boosting the local economy.
8)

At the hearing the Council introduced new evidence regarding OAN.
This evidence sought to bring the position up-to-date by applying
headship rates to the 2012 based SNPP. This work is again purely
demographically based and does not include policy considerations.
The conclusion of the updated work is that the 2012 SNPP based OAN
for Derbyshire Dales is 251 dwellings pa (2012 - 2028) if the 2011
headship rates are used, or 287 pa if the 2008 headship rates are
used.

9) The Council prefers the use of the 2011 headship rates and for the
calculation to be based on the plan period of 2006 – 2028, giving an
OAN of 244 dwellings pa. However the Council did agree at the
hearing that it would be logical to use 2012 as the base date given
that the aim is to produce a plan to meet existing and future needs
rather than looking back to 2006. The essential demographics of the
revised figures are broadly accepted by others at the examination.
10) I agree that it is sensible to use the latest available SNPP data. The
Council argues that there may have been long term structural changes
in the mortgage market and in household formation patterns and
hence it is unclear whether the higher 2008 based household
formation rate will return. It seems clear that the lower household
formation rate in recent years has been, at least in part, a
consequence of the economic downturn. With the recovering
economic situation it would be prudent to assume that the low 2011
headship rates are unlikely to remain in place over the whole plan
period. It would be sensible to work on the basis that the household
formation rate will gradually return to higher levels as the economy
recovers. I therefore consider that a “blended” rate that assumes the
2011 rate until 2020 and the higher 2008 rate thereafter is
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appropriate. Whilst this may be a relatively unsophisticated approach,
it is a practical one in the light of the uncertainties about future
household formation rates. In any event the situation should be
monitored and the approach refined if and when necessary.
11) While the use of national population statistics is the starting point for
assessing needs, policy considerations also need to be taken into
account. Where a council is seeking to promote economic growth, as
this Council is, it is logical to allow for an additional element of
housing growth to support the creation of new jobs. One of the
Council’s Corporate priorities is to increase business growth and job
creation. How much additional housing should be provided to support
this priority is difficult to say because the relationship between homes
and jobs is a complex one. It is affected by a series of factors
including changing working patterns and practices, changing
retirement arrangements and complicated commuting patterns.
However the Council’s Strategic Housing Options Paper concludes that
the 200 dwelling per year approach (2006 – 2028) would lead to a fall
in the labour force of 3,775 and that the maintain jobs and support
economic growth approach would require some 360 additional
dwellings per year. These figures suggest that the Council’s Strategic
Objectives SO6 and SO7 that are aimed at supporting the rural
economy and enhancing prosperity and its Corporate business priority,
cannot realistically be delivered if housing growth is limited to around
200 dwellings per year.
12)

Another consideration is the current backlog of households in need.
Based on the Council’s Housing Register there are over 500 household
whose housing need is not presently being met.

13) Finally the council recognises that the identified need for affordable
housing at around 180 dwellings pa compared with the proposed total
provision of 200 pa is a market signal that needs to be considered.
Atkins notes that median house prices in Derbyshire Dales are
consistently higher than for the East Midlands and that lower quartile
prices increased by 193.6% between 2000 and 2012. The market
signals evidence, which the NPPF says authorities should take into
account, suggests that restricting the supply of housing to about 200
pa will make the situation regarding the provision of affordable
housing worse than it currently is. Furthermore it should also be
noted that the Council told the examination that the good record of
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providing affordable housing in recent years has largely been through
the use of sites owned by the Council but that this supply of land is
now largely exhausted.
14) Taking all these considerations into account and the dwellings
completed in the plan area between 2006 and 2013 the OAN for this
area is likely to be at least 6500 for the plan period. This figure
should not be taken as definitive as the chosen figure involves
judgements about considerations such as market signals and policy
aspirations which are difficult to quantify with any precision and which
the Council needs to weight in accordance with its priorities

Plan Making Process
15) I note that the Council’s Statement of Community Involvement
dated February 2007 claims that the Council will provide the public
with sufficient information to ensure that the community can
understand the chosen strategy. I acknowledge that the Council
produced an impressive number of documents during the plan
making process and arranged a large number of community based
consultation events.
16) Notwithstanding these efforts my primary concern relates to how the
strategy is presented in the Pre Submission Draft Plan dated June
2013. This is a critical public consultation document. In numerous
places that document makes reference to facilitating the required
housing growth in the plan area. However other than one general
sentence about the housing requirements being set below the
household projections for the area, the document is not specific
about what the OAN for housing is in the area. Nor does it make it
clear that the strategy is to meet considerably less than the OAN –
the strong impression is given that the plan allows for the housing
needs of the area to be met while protecting the high quality
Derbyshire Dales environment. The way the strategy is expressed
gives the impression that the “policy on” figure of housing need
(4,400) is the same as its OAN. There is no explicit reference to the
quantum of unmet need that arises from the use of a “policy on”
housing target, no discussion about the implications of setting a
target well below OAN and no indication of what steps, if any, the
Council has taken to address this unmet need.
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17) I appreciate that Members of the Council and anybody taking a close
professional interest might well be aware of the implications of the
proposed strategy. Conversely it is probably not clear to many
members of the public who may reasonably have relied on the PreSubmission Draft for their information. The Council has recently
suggested a series of post submission changes to the plan which go
some way the address the problem but the public have not had the
opportunity to comment on these changes.
18) My second concern is that the Council has produced relevant and
significant evidence – for example the Atkins report – after the
consultation pre submission consultation document was produced and
long after the consultation period closed. No further consultation has
been carried out and members of the public may not be aware of very
significant material that has a direct bearing on the contents of the
Plan
19) My conclusion is that the Council has failed to meet one of the
important objectives of its Statement of Community Involvement.

Duty To Cooperate
20) Initially Derbyshire Dales and High Peak Borough Council worked
together on a joint core strategy. Clearly this work involved
cooperation between the two authorities and apparently the two
authorities believed that they could meet their housing needs without
assistance from other authorities. Consequently no steps were taken
to use the Duty to Cooperate to achieve a wider than district strategic
distribution of housing. Derbyshire Dales and presumably High Peak
seem to have adopted that approach because they regarded their
housing need as the “policy on” target - in other words a requirement
that was less than the OAN. Such an approach became untenable
once the RS was revoked.
21) Notwithstanding the introduction of the Duty in the Localism Act
2011 and the clear guidance in the NPPF (March 2012) the Council
persisted with the view that it did not need help from other authorities
apparently until October 2013. One justification provided by the
Council at the hearing is that the application of the Duty was met by
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the joint working with High Peak that had occurred. This is
unconvincing as it is very unlikely that these two authorities would in
combination be able to meet the OAN for the two areas given that
both authorities are areas with sensitive landscapes. Another
unconvincing argument advanced by the Council at the hearing is that
until the Atkins work was done the Council could not quantify the
extent of unmet need. This contradicts other evidence from the
Council that in April 2012 it quantified the OAN on the basis of the
SNPP.
22) In October 2013 a report to Local Plan Advisory Committee noted the
Duty, reported that initial discussions had taken place with
neighbouring local planning authorities and noted that further
discussions would be required as a consequence of establishing the
Council’s OAN.
23) Unfortunately the documentary evidence before the examination
contradicts the contention by the Council that it sought to use the
Duty to help address its unmet need in 2013. For example email
correspondence with East Staffordshire Borough Council in mid-2013
records that following a query from East Staffs the Council informed
East Staffs that “we are not looking to have any of our housing
requirement met outside of the plan area nor are we asking our
neighbouring authorities to meet the shortfall between forecasts set
out in DCLG Household Projections and our target of 200 dwelling per
annum (4,400 of the plan period for the whole of the District Council
area including that within the National Park) which is a continuation of
the strategy of protecting the environmental quality of the Peak Sub
Region, rather than delivering all the identified housing forecasts –
and as set out in the former East Midlands Regional Plan”. East Staffs
say that the first indication that Derbyshire Dales may need to ask
neighbouring authorities for help came in February 2014 followed by a
formal request for help in March 2014.
24) In July 2013 in a report to the Derbyshire County Council the
proposal to follow the target of 200 pa was described as “a
continuation of the target between 2006 and 2026 previously set out
in the recently revoked East Midlands Regional Plan”. The report
notes that this approach is a long- standing one of restraint and that
the target would be below the population and household projections
of the Office of National Statistics. Despite this there is nothing in the
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report about any request from the Derbyshire Dales for help under the
Duty.
25) In March 2014 the Council wrote to nine authorities asking if they
could help take some of your unmet housing need under the Duty. On
behalf of the Derby Housing Market Area partners Derby responded
saying that none of the Partners could help. Derby expressed “their
surprise to receive this request, especially as this does not reflect the
nature of preceding discussions regarding key strategic issues which
have comprised our dialogue up to this point. As you will be aware the
Local Plans of all three HMA authorities are at an advanced stage.
These strategies have been developed on a clear understanding that
Derbyshire Dales had no need to decant any housing requirements
into the HMA”
26) The Council has clearly sought cooperation with a large number of
stakeholders over several years. It has been actively involved in
discussions with other planning authorities, including initially working
on a joint Core Strategy with High Peak Borough Council. Albeit very
late in the day, the Council did seek help to address the anticipated
unmet housing need before submitting the plan for examination.
Hence I do not consider that the Council has failed the legal test
relating to the Duty. However the Council has comprehensively failed
to achieve effective cooperation.
27) This failure arises from the fact that the Council apparently did not
recognise until shortly before submission that it needed to:
1) Identify its OAN
2) Detail the constraints that apply in the area
3) Assess the OAN against the constraints
4) Take all reasonable steps, starting as soon as possible, to try
to get help from other authorities if the constraints meant that
the OAN would not be met.
28) This 4 step approach is an important element of positive planning
outlined in the NPPF. I appreciate that the Council argues that it did
identify its OAN on the basis of the SNPP and that it assessed the
implications of meeting that need against the environmental
constraints in the area. The conclusion reached by the Council was
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that the RS restraint approach was appropriate and that the balance
would best be struck by a housing target of 4,400 dwellings,
coincidentally the same as the RS figure.
29) That being the case, why did the Council in April 2012 not initiate
discussions with other authorities in the area to explore how its unmet
need could be accommodated? The evidence points to the Council
disregarding the unmet need until shortly before submitting the Plan
for examination in 2014. Indeed the evidence is that until early 2014
at Duty meetings the Council was telling other authorities that it did
not need help from them. This view appears to flow from the Council
focussing on its “policy on” figure of 4,400 rather than the OAN.
30) With the abolition of regional planning authorities have the
responsibility to undertake whatever strategic planning is necessary.
In relation to housing this frequently requires cooperation between
authorities about the quantum of development and its distribution
within the SHMA. The NPPF states (paragraph 159) that authorities
should prepare a SHMA to assess their full housing needs (working
with neighbouring authorities where necessary) and address the need
for all types of housing. Despite this clear guidance the Council has
not, in cooperation with other authorities, identified the housing needs
for the Strategic Housing Market Area that it is part of. Furthermore it
took no steps until very late in the process to ask for assistance in
meeting its full housing need.
31) It is fully appreciated that the Duty is not a duty to agree. However
the expectation is that authorities should make every effort to secure
the necessary cooperation on strategic cross-boundary matters
throughout the preparation of the local plan.
32) The Council argue that there is little point in seeking to get
cooperation from neighbouring authorities at this late stage, especially
as most are at a more advanced stage and some even have adopted
plans. It may well be that the Council is right about the difficulty of
getting cooperation now. This rather reinforces the conclusion that
the Council failed to seek to use the Duty early enough or effectively
enough. It is acknowledged that seeking to use the Duty now will
delay the plan making process but I cannot simply ignore the
requirements of the Duty legislation and national planning policy.
Furthermore promoting further discussions even at this late stage
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may, if nothing else, serve to re-focus the minds of the authorities in
the SMHA on the requirements of the Duty. It may also serve to
remind authorities with a plan in place of the advice in the Planning
Practice Guidance (reference 9-020-20140306) about cooperating with
an authority that is bringing forward its plan.
Overall Conclusions.
33) The Derbyshire Dales Local Plan will not be found sound in its current
form. Although the modifications suggested by the Council go some
way to making the strategy clear, these modifications have not been
subject to consultation and the requirements of the Council’s SCI for
clarity and transparency have not been complied with.
34) There is a need for the Council to review the relationship between its
OAN and the environmental constraints that apply in the area.
Depending on what judgements are made by the Council about the
extent to which it can meet its OAN there may be a need to re-open
discussions with adjoining authorities under the provisions of the Duty
to Cooperate.

35) There are three choices available to the Council. The examination
can continue but the dangers of doing so are clear and obvious. The
examination can be suspended to allow the Council to undertake
further work and consultation. This option is only realistic if the
Council considers that this work can be done within a reasonable
period – say 6 months - and is able to set out a realistic timetable for
the work. Finally the Plan can be withdrawn and re-submitted once
the issues identified have been addressed.

Keith Holland
Examining Inspector
29 July 2014
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Please ask for:
Direct Dial No:
Fax No:
Your Ref:
My Ref:
E-mail:

Mr. P. L. Wilson
01629 761325
01629 761163
PHS-PW/HG
planning@derbyshiredales.gov.uk

30th July 2014
Ms. Ros Hession
Local Plan Programme Officer
Town Hall
Bank road
Matlock
Derbyshire
Dear Ms. Hession,
EXAMINATION OF THE DERBYSHIRE DALES LOCAL PLAN
Thank you for forwarding the note from the Local Plan Inspector in respect of the above, the
contents of which are noted.
The District Council acknowledges that whilst the Inspector does not consider that the
Council has failed the legal test relating to the Duty to Co-operate, it has failed to achieve
effective co-operation in respect of plan preparation. As such, I can formally advise that the
District Council does not wish the examination to continue in accordance with the
provisional timetable.
In light of the above, the Inspector in his note outlines two potential options. The first option
is to suspend the examination for a reasonable period of time (upto 6 months) in order to
enable the Council to undertake further work on the issues raised. The second option is to
withdraw and re-submit the Local Plan once the issues have been addressed.
It is my intention to present a report to a meeting of full Council (provisional date 25th
September 2014) in order to seek further instructions on this important matter. Following
consideration of the matter by Council, should it be determined that a suspension of upto 6
months is to be requested, I am confident that the further work and consultation can be
undertaken in order that the Examination in Public can be re-opened in February 2015 i.e.
in accordance with the Inspectors 6 month timescale.
In regard to the content of the Inspectors note, the District Council would appreciate further
clarification from the Inspector in respect of the following points:

Paul Wilson, MCD, Dip TP, Dip Mgmt, MRTPI
Corporate Director
Town Hall, MATLOCK, Derbyshire. DE4 3NN
For general enquiries telephone 01629 761100
or visit www.derbyshiredales.gov.uk
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Paragraph 7

Does the Inspector accept or reject the proposition advanced at the hearing
that the Derbyshire Dales is a self-contained market area based upon 50%
self-containment which effectively operates within a wider SHMA?

Paragraph 9

Does the Inspector consider that the start of the plan period should be 2006
or 2012? If 2012, what is the end date of the plan period?

Paragraph 14

The District Council assume that the requirement for at least 6500 dwellings
relates to a plan period 2006 – 2028?

Paragraph 30

Does the Inspector expect the District Council to undertake further work in
regard to the identification of the housing needs for the SHMA - particularly
in light of the conclusions at paragraph 14 and clarification of the points
raised in paragraph 7?

The above points of clarification would be of assistance to the Council in order to ensure
that any re-convened hearing can be undertaken in the context of a clear understanding of
the Inspectors views and requirements.
Yours sincerely,

Paul Wilson
Corporate Director
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Response to queries 30/07/2014 from Derbyshire Dales District Council
Paragraph 7. No evidence was produced which counters the claim that based on
50% self-containment Derbyshire Dales operates as a self-contained sub market
within the wider SHMA. Accordingly the point is accepted. However it should
not be assumed that this obviates the need to take into account strategic cross
boundary matters. Net in-migration is an important factor in the Derbyshire
Dales housing market that has to be taken into account when assessing the need
for housing in the area. The issue of any unmet housing need in Derbyshire
Dales being accommodated elsewhere in the SHMA if possible is similarly not
eliminated by treating Derbyshire Dales as a self-contained sub-market
Paragraph 9. The most logical plan period would be 2012 to 2028 for the
reasons outlined. Having said that it is not considered that the soundness of the
plan depends on whether the start date is 2006 or 2012
Paragraph 14. The Council’s assumption is correct
Paragraph 30. An objective assessment of the housing need in the SHMA should
have been undertaken. Such an assessment would have allowed for informed
and coordinated choices to be made regarding the distribution of housing growth
in the SHMA. However there is a pressing need to get a local plan in place if
possible. Bearing that in mind and because Derbyshire Dales is very unlikely to
be providing any significant assistance under the Duty to Cooperate to any other
authority in the SHMA, it would not be reasonable to require the Council, acting
on its own, to assess the housing needs within the SHMA.
Nevertheless in any discussions with other authorities in the SHMA the Council
should attempt to persuade the authorities to pool their knowledge so that there
is at least some quantification of the overall need for housing in the SHMA to
assist discussions under the Duty to Cooperate

Keith Holland
31/07/2014
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Item No. 8

CORPORATE COMMITTEE
18 SEPTEMBER 2014
Report of the Head of Regeneration and Policy

DERBYSHIRE DALES ECONOMIC PLAN 2014-2019
SUMMARY
The report proposes an Economic Plan for the Derbyshire Dales to take forward
Members’ economic development priority.
RECOMMENDATIONS
1.
2.
3.

4.

The Derbyshire Dales Economic Plan 2014-2019 is adopted
Actions are brought back to Members for consideration as appropriate for
implementing the Plan
Council is recommended to make £100,000 available from the Economic
Development Reserve to support priority projects from the ‘Enterprise Peak
District’ plan
The reallocation of officer resources is noted

WARDS AFFECTED
All
STRATEGIC LINK
Economic development is highlighted in the District Council’s Corporate Plan
2014/15, in which one of the two improvement priorities is to Increase business
growth and job creation. The three specific target areas for 2014/15 are to help new
businesses to start, to help existing businesses to grow, and to promote key
development sites.. The Peak District Partnership envisages in its Community
Strategy that the Peak District will have high-wage, high-skill jobs. Providing support
to help Dales businesses grow aligns with the priorities in the Business Peak District
Concordat Agreement which the District Council has signed.

1

BACKGROUND

1.1

Members have established economic development as one of only two
improvement priorities for the District Council (Council, November 2013). At
the Corporate Committee meeting on 20 March 2014, Members noted the
economic circumstances of the district and resolved to produce a Derbyshire
Dales Economic Plan.

1.2

A Members Workshop on economic development was held on 5 June 2014,
at which possible initiatives for inclusion in the Economic Plan were explored.
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Members wished these initiatives to be developed further, and as a result the
draft Economic Plan attached includes five of the six initiatives.
1.3

The draft Economic Plan is a response to the evidence of need in the
Derbyshire Dales reported by Ekosgen in their ‘The case for the Peak District’
report earlier this year. It is based on the workshop held with district
councillors in June 2014, and it reflects the well-understood need for more
higher-value jobs in the Dales to replace low-skill, low-pay jobs. Whilst job
creation is central to the Plan, this is not expected to result in a large net
increase in employment; indeed unemployment is low so a net increase in
jobs in not called for at present. Instead, our growth ambition is to substitute
existing jobs with better jobs.

1.4

The four economic priorities for the district agreed by Members (Corporate
Committee, September 2013) are:
i.
ii.
iii.
iv.

1.5

Growing microbusinesses
Vibrant market towns as employment and service centres
Broadband speed and access in rural communities
Increasing employment opportunities for young people in rural areas.

In putting actions to the District Council’s existing economic priorities, the draft
Plan links with wider economic strategies including:
•
•
•
•
•
•

D2N2 Strategic Economic Plan
Sheffield City Region Strategic Economic Plan
Derbyshire Economic Strategy Statement
Derbyshire Rural and Farming Network priorities
Enterprise Peak District package
Business Peak District Concordat

1.6

Whilst the draft Plan has a local flavour, it is careful to respond to these
existing strategies in order to bring Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) activity
to our area where beneficial. As well as including the important work we do
with partners (and identifying resources to support this), the Plan also sets out
where the District Council will act alone if necessary to fill gaps in provision.

1.7

The draft Plan was sent to partners for consultation on 21 August 2014, and
comments received up to the date of publication of committee papers have
been incorporated in the draft as attached. Any additional comments will be
reported verbally at the meeting. Consultees include:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Peak District National Park Authority
Derbyshire County Council
High Peak Borough Council
Staffordshire Moorlands District Council
Homes and Communities Agency
D2N2 Local Enterprise Partnership
Sheffield City Region Local Enterprise Partnership
Derbyshire Rural and Farming Network
Business Peak District

60

2

DRAFT DERBYSHIRE DALES ECONOMIC PLAN 2014-2019

2.1

The Economic Plan sets out the evidence of need in the Derbyshire Dales,
and highlights what to do in the Dales for the Dales. These actions include
those being undertaken by others which we can support, as well as actions
we will need to undertake ourselves. The plan also aims to set out what
outcomes are to be achieved.

2.2

Six action areas are proposed in the Economic Plan. Further reports will be
brought to Members to confirm actions in these areas as appropriate:

•

Derbyshire Dales Business Advice
The existing free small business advice service has in 30 months supported in
excess of 400 local firms in creating 219 new jobs. It is considered this is a very
successful initiative and that it should continue. The two LEPs covering the
Derbyshire Dales are planning to introduce a ‘Growth Hub’ which may offer
opportunities to expand this service, possibly for an additional cost.

•

Site promotion and development
Members have previously agreed to produce information to promote the
development of key employment sites in the Derbyshire Dales (Corporate
Committee, March 2014). These may include existing vacant employment sites,
new employment land identified in the Local Plan, and vacant workspace/office
accommodation. Production of information in the form of electronic and printed
brochures is inexpensive.
Officer time required to liaise with land owners and developers could be
considerable. Significant work is already underway with businesses on the
Ashbourne Airfield Industrial Estate to seek D2N2 funding for infrastructure
improvements. The aim is to unlock development and job creation.

•

Business engagement
Whilst there are many good examples where District Council officers engage
positively with local businesses, there is an opportunity to be more proactive in
building relationships at a senior level. Planned initiatives include ‘buddying’
CMT members with the largest employers in the district, producing a District
Council electronic newsletter for businesses, and trialling the establishment of
area Business Forums. The aim is to get a better understanding of business
needs and barriers to growth, whilst building positive relationships with key
employers.

•

Match funding
Members have approved the ‘Enterprise Peak District’ economic growth plan
(Corporate Committee, March 2014) which includes a number of priority
partnership projects that would benefit the Derbyshire Dales. In order for projects
to be implemented, match funding may be required from the District Council.
It is therefore proposed to set aside an initial £100,000 from the Economic
Development Reserve to send a signal to partners that the District Council is
ready to put its resources behind priority partnership projects within the
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Enterprise Peak District plan. Such projects would be chosen according to their
fit with the Derbyshire Dales Economic Plan.
•

Site development loans
Following the Members Workshop in June 2014, a feasibility study was
commissioned from Thomas Lister Ltd to examine the potential for establishing a
local fund, using the District Council’s prudential borrowing facilities, to develop
more modern premises for start-up and growing businesses – the demand for
which is anecdotally high.
The feasibility study has not yet concluded. Any future recommendation to
establish a local loan fund would be considered thoroughly by officers before
being brought to Members for their consideration.

•

Ongoing activity
Existing activity to continue includes support for the tourism industry, facilitating
Matlock Community Vision, supply chain events, supporting Business Peak
District marketing for the area, engaging with LEPs and Combined Authorities,
and updating the Tractivity business property search database.

2.3

A further action area is considered in the draft Plan: business loans or
grants. However this is not proposed for District Council activity at the
present time since other agencies are already developing schemes that
should benefit the Derbyshire Dales. Should these schemes not emerge, or
not benefit the Dales, then this action area would be reconsidered.

2.4

The draft Economic Plan highlights key sectors where the District Council’s
efforts will focus: Manufacturing (including advanced manufacturing and food
and drink manufacturing); Tourism; and Knowledge-based and creative
industries. It also specifies, where possible, what outcomes are intended to
result from the successful implementation of the Plan.

3

RESOURCES

3.1

Council (19 June 2014) transferred an additional £300,000 to the Economic
Development Reserve, increasing the one-off sum available to match-fund
projects. It is proposed to set aside an initial £100,000 from the Economic
Development Reserve for priority projects within the Enterprise Peak District
plan.

3.2

With regard to officer resources, Members will recall that, in order to facilitate
moving forward the District Council’s approach to economic prosperity in the
Dales, one element of the realignment of service areas that took place in
February 2014 was the move, to the Head of Regeneration and Policy, of the
Tourism team and Planning Policy team.

3.3

The Tourism Service Review, approved by the Environment Committee on 17
July 2014 also resolved that opportunities be taken to extend the remit of
existing staff into supporting wider economic development initiatives, including

62

promoting the district and developing employment sites. Prior to this, the
District Council had approximately 0.8 of a full time equivalent (FTE) post
allocated to economic development, and 1.6 to tourism.
3.4

The integration of tourism and economic development teams has already
provided an opportunity for the skills and experience of the tourism officers to
be utilised in delivering some of the activities identified in the draft Economic
Plan. For example, tourism officers have skills in marketing and promotion
(which are valuable in promoting employment sites to businesses), and in
business engagement (which are valuable in helping the District Council build
more extensive relationships with the private sector). As noted in the Tourism
Service Review, some tourism activities have been scaled back over recent
years, most notably the in-house provision of Tourist Information Centres.

3.5

On that basis, and given the considerable synergy between the two areas, the
tourism and economic development sections are now proposed to be merged.
This would result in a slightly changed allocation, such that there will now be
1.6 FTE allocated to economic development, and 0.8 to tourism. The new
structure will better place the District Council to take forward not only the
Economic Plan but also the proposed Visitor Strategy, work on which is
planned to commence in October.

4

RISK ASSESSMENT

4.1

Legal.
There are no legal risks arising from the report.

4.2

Financial.
At the present stage, the financial risk is assessed as low. However, the
resource implications of match funding initiatives and/or site development
loans will need to be considered when they arise, and the financial risk may
change at that time.

4.3

Corporate.
The risk of carrying out the actions identified in the draft Economic Plan will
need to be managed. However this approach will lessen the risk of not
achieving results on a corporate priority. Overall, the corporate risk is
assessed as Medium at present.

5

OTHER CONSIDERATIONS
In preparing this report, the relevance of the following factors has also been
considered: prevention of crime and disorder, equalities, environmental,
climate change, health, human rights, personnel and property.
ed Corp ED Plan report sept14.docx
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CONTACT INFORMATION
Steve Capes, Head of Regeneration and Policy
01629 761371, email steve.capes@derbyshiredales.gov.uk
BACKGROUND PAPERS
None
ATTACHMENTS
Appendix 1

Draft Derbyshire Dales Economic Plan
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for higher-value jobs
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1
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Corporate Plan 2011-15
Economic development is one of Members’ two
improvement priorities
“Increase business growth and job creation”

Targets currently to:
•
•
•

Help new businesses to start
Help existing businesses to grow
Promote key development sites

Peak District Strategy Vision:
…high-wage, high-skill jobs
3
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The Derbyshire Dales economy
WHY DOES THE DERBYSHIRE DALES NEED MORE HIGHERVALUE JOBS TO REPLACE LOW-SKILL, LOW-PAY JOBS?

Earnings in the Dales are among the lowest in Derbyshire
- average wage is £364 pw (county average £372 pw)
Strong manufacturing sector (at 13% of all employment) –
but shortage of modern workspace
Tourism accounts for 7% of employment, but pays wages
typically half the average of all sectors
Dependency on the public sector (largest employer locally)
9/10 businesses are microbusinesses (<10 employees) –
most survive but we need more to grow
Skilled residents (36% with degree or equivalent) – youth
flight and ‘brain drain’ as not enough high-value jobs here
68
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The Derbyshire Dales economy
BARRIERS TO CREATING HIGHER VALUE JOBS include:
Difficulty attracting Government funding to assist with
growing smaller businesses and smaller employment sites
Poor broadband (the speed gap with urban areas is
widening not narrowing)
Lack of good quality workspace in the right places for
businesses to be able to expand and take on more staff
Access to employment for people living in isolated rural
communities
Insufficient affordable housing for employees locally
5
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The Derbyshire Dales economy
OPPORTUNITIES: strengths of our economy include:
1. High business density and productivity
GVA per FTE £50,600 – higher than both D2N2 and SCR

2. A high rate of return on start up and growth support
Strong business survival rates: 70% of new firms survive at
least 3 years – higher than D2N2 (64%) and SCR (60%)
3. Skilled workforce – a key enabler of business growth
36% of Dales residents have a degree or equivalent –
higher than D2N2 (26%) or SCR (23%)
4. A high value manufacturing base
Manufacturing is widely seen as a key sector which will
help drive growth through innovation and export earnings
6
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The Derbyshire Dales economy
OPPORTUNITIES (continued):
5. High quality environment and high quality of life
Ideal location for knowledge-based and creative
businesses
6. Access to markets
We are closely surrounded by the UK’s major
conurbations (with the M1 only 20 minutes away)
7. The Peak District brand
A brand associated with landscape and quality
of life, and with high quality products
and services
7

71

The Derbyshire Dales economy

OUR FOUR PRIORITIES
1. Growing microbusinesses
2. Vibrant market towns as employment
and service centres

3. Broadband speed and access in rural

communities
4. Increasing employment opportunities for
young people in rural areas.
(Corporate Committee, September 2013)
8
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Economic Development
The evidence tells us that the Derbyshire Dales
needs more higher-value jobs (to replace lowerskilled, lower-paid jobs)
What works?

 growing existing higher-value businesses
(via grants/loans & good business advice)
 enabling development on appropriate sites
 better broadband

Less relevant to the Dales:

#
9

#

competing for larger-scale
inward investment
schemes based on very large sites
or very large employers
73

OUR CONTEXT
The Derbyshire Dales Economic Plan links with wider strategies
at the subregional and regional level as well as local priorities
Local Plan

Corporate Plan

Business Peak District
Concordat

Enterprise Peak District

DERBYSHIRE DALES
ECONOMIC PLAN
Derbyshire Economic
Strategy Statement

Defra Rural and Farming
Network Priorities

D2N2 Strategic Economic
Plan

SCR Strategic Economic
Plan

Details of these strategies and their links to the Dales are in Appendix 2
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Economic Development Plan
This Economic Development Plan…
•
•
•
•

is a doing document, not a glossy strategy
responds to existing strategies for wider areas
sets out what to do in the Dales for the Dales
has a local flavour but relates to themes in wider strategies
where relevant

The Plan sets out for the Derbyshire Dales
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

The evidence of need
Where wider strategies fail to meet local needs
Actions - where we can fill those gaps ourselves
Actions - where we are working with others to fill those gaps
Outcomes - to be achieved from investments and actions (e.g.
how many more higher-value jobs will be created)
75
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ACTIONS
Derbyshire Dales Business Advice
Site promotion and development

Business engagement
Match funding priority Peak District projects

Business loans or grants
Site development loans

Other activities
including timescales, targets, funding (amounts and sources) and
planned outcomes (e.g. nos. of jobs)

12
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Derbyshire Dales Business Advice
Supports small business growth





Free, independent, face to face advice
Two days per week
Helped create 219 jobs in 400+ businesses Dec ‘11 - Jun ‘14
Expertise in business plans and funding applications

Cost £16,000 p.a. from District Council budget
 LEP Growth Hubs may impact on funding and delivery

Outcomes 2015-2019
 100-120 new start businesses (25-30 p.a.)
 200-300 existing businesses helped to create 160-240 new
jobs (50-75 businesses p.a. and 40-60 jobs p.a.)
 40-50 Dales firms supported to access grants or loans from
Government or LEPs (10-13 p.a.)
77
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Site promotion and development
Unlocking stalled and vacant employment sites
 Draft Local Plan identifies 19ha of new employment land in
Ashbourne, Matlock and Wirksworth
 Other key sites in Bakewell and Matlock

We will work with owners to market these sites and
promote the Dales as a business location
Printed and online brochure aimed at existing firms
with growth potential (and possible new investors),
with information about the Dales, case studies, site
specific information, and assistance available
Cost up to £3,500 p.a. from District Council budget
 Plus significant officer time working with owners and LEPs

Outcomes 2015-2019
14
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 New jobs on stalled and vacant employment sites

Business engagement
Proactive engagement to promote access to finance
and other support available from LEPs
 CMT members to be ‘buddied’ with largest firms (Appendix 4)
 SMEs with growth potential to be targeted and microbusiness
growth support from DDBA to continue

Methods to include
 E-Newsletter (at least twice a year)
 Business Forums held in different locations
 Greater engagement with existing fora (e.g. Chambers of
Trade, Town Teams) to help them help themselves
 Support for the D2N2 ‘Better Business for All’ initiative

Main cost is officer time
Outcomes 2015-2019
 Better understanding of business needs & barriers to growth
 Positive relationships with key employers
79
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Match funding
Support Enterprise Peak District package delivery
Priority interventions include







Help deliver a Peak District LEADER scheme from 2015
Ensure LEP Growth Hubs reach into rural areas and are open to
any firm with growth potential (regardless of size)
Identify and help addressing gaps in broadband provision
Support the roll-out of the ‘Inspired by the Peak District’ brand as a
business promotion tool
Support business and employment projects associated with the
Pedal Peak initiative

Cost initially £100,000 from District Council ED reserve


Match contributions to be prioritised according to this Plan

Outcomes 2015-2019

16

Will be set for individual interventions (LEP Growth Hub proposals
are unfinished; gaps in broadband t.b.d. as rollout plans become
clear; Peak District brand evaluation design is in development)
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Business loans or grants
Access to finance is a key enabler of business growth. But smaller
businesses face barriers in obtaining credit

 The District Council will work with partners to improve access to finance for
businesses, aiming to influence criteria to encourage equal access to finance
for micro/small businesses with identified growth potential
 Subject to a successful bid, a new LEADER programme for the Peak District
should start in early 2015. This will provide grants to support the creation and
growth of micro-businesses in rural areas
 Grant support for smaller businesses is anticipated via the EAFRD funding
overseen by LEPs. The LEPs also control larger business grant and loan
funds which may cover the Dales. The District Council’s approach will be to
influence external funds so that they are aligned with local needs
 SCR is to consider expanding Finance Yorkshire gap funding into the Dales

17

Should these opportunities not materialise, assistance not
adequately reflect the size and nature of Dales businesses or
significant gaps in the ‘ladder’ of support be identified, the District
Council will consider the case for establishing its own loan/grant
schemes for business growth. At present this is not proposed.
81

Site development loans
Market failure preventing development of key sites
 Shortage of modern business units for new/growing firms
 Lack of infrastructure on some sites
 Developers failing to bring forward sites with approvals

Prudential borrowing might allow the Council to
make strategic investments in exceptional cases
Cost £TBD from District Council borrowing
 Recycling loan fund at commercial rates
 Costs offset by longer term uplift in Business Rates
 Thomas Lister Ltd commissioned to undertake feasibility
work. Report due in September 2014

Outcomes 2015-2019
18

 Dependent on feasibility study. Any future recommendation
would be brought to Members for their consideration
82

Other activities
Ongoing activity will include
 Support for the tourism industry, particularly where jobs
growth can be demonstrated
 Facilitating Matlock Community Vision to redevelop
Bakewell Road
 Helping businesses benefit from supply chain opportunities
such as through ‘Meet the buyer’ events
 Supporting Business Peak District (including marketing the
area), and engaging with LEPs/D2
 Updating Tractivity to enable business property searches
 Servicing inward investment enquiries
 Enabling market and affordable housing

Costs
19

 Officer time
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SECTORS

Key sectors are those parts of the Derbyshire
Dales economy where there is either
 significant existing employment (A)
 opportunity for higher-value jobs growth

(B)

The District Council will focus its efforts on the
following key sectors:

 Manufacturing, including advanced manufacturing
and food and drink manufacturing

(A)+(B)

 Visitor economy (A)
 Knowledge-based and creative industries
20
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(B)

KEY SITES
The District Council will focus its efforts on the
following six major economic growth sites:
Active employment sites

 Ashbourne Airfield
 Cawdor Quarry, Matlock
 Riverside Business Park, Bakewell
Potential employment sites

 Halldale Quarry, Matlock
 Middleton Road, Wirksworth
Town centre redevelopment site

 Bakewell Road, Matlock
21
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OUTCOMES
This Plan will be successful if it delivers the right kind
of growth in the right places, as measured by
indicators of economic health such as:
Growth in higher-value jobs

Manufacturing, professional, scientific and technical jobs to grow
from 6,200 in 2012 to 6,500 in 2020 (Source: Ekosgen/BRES)

Growth in workplace earnings

Differential between Dales and Derbyshire median weekly pay to reduce
from £6 in 2013 to zero in 2020 (Source: ASHE)

Growth in Gross Value Added (GVA)

from £1,421m in 2010 to £1,600m by 2020 (Source: Ekosgen/BRES)

Growth in occupied employment land
by 5 hectares

22
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APPENDIX 1
PEAK DISTRICT EVIDENCE BASE – SUMMARY
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Evidence Base
KEY ECONOMIC FACTS
GVA: the value of the output produced in the wider Peak
District (GVA) is £3.8bn
Sectors: the wider Peak District has a diverse economic
structure with manufacturing the largest sector, followed
by the public sector, retail and hospitality
Businesses: there are 10,900 businesses in the wider
Peak District area. The vast majority employ fewer than
10 people (91%), and survival rates are high
Higher level skills and occupations: 31% of residents of
working age have a degree, and 40% are employed in
managerial/professional occupations
24
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Evidence Base
The Peak District offers significant
growth potential arising from:
Employment growth
Strong productivity base on which
to generate high value growth.
High business density and
entrepreneurialism
Demonstrable and successful track
record in business start ups
Strong business survival rates
Good return from investment in start
up support and business growth.
High value manufacturing base
Strong manufacturing sector
Qualified workforce
25
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APPENDIX 2
CONTEXT – WIDER STRATEGIES AND THEIR LINKS TO THE DALES
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Context – wider strategies (1)
Enterprise Peak District, February 2014
•
•
•

an eight-point economic plan for the Peak District
developed alongside LEPs to fit their own Growth Plans
by Business Peak District, Visit Peak District, Nature Peak
District, and the Peak District Partnership LSP
Actions the Derbyshire Dales Economic Plan can help deliver incl:
1.

Accessing finance to grow local businesses
> We will help develop and deliver a new LEADER scheme from 2015

2.

Growth Spokes – advice and support for local businesses
> We will contribute ‘match’ in the form of Derbyshire Dales Business Advice

3.

Physical Developments - business sites
> We will seek funds to unlock stalled employment sites

4.

‘Inspired by the Peak District’ brand
> We will support the Peak District brand as a business promotion tool

5.

Digital Connectivity
> We will seek to help those plugging gaps in broadband coverage

6.
27

Pedal Peak Business Initiative
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> We will support associated business and employment projects

Context – wider strategies (2)
LEP Strategic Economic Plans (Growth Plans)
•

D2N2 and Sheffield City Region LEPs both published Strategic
Economic Plans in March 2014
• Both focus on ambitious private sector job creation targets, but
tend to emphasise large firms and large projects
• Priority sectors include specialist manufacturing, construction,
food and drink, creative industries, and the visitor economy
Actions the Derbyshire Dales Economic Plan can help deliver incl:
1. Support for new and existing businesses to grow
> We will contribute ‘match’ in the form of Derbyshire Dales Business Advice

2. Access to finance
> We can help with project appraisals for small grant schemes

3. Infrastructure
> We will seek funds to unlock stalled employment sites
> We will seek to help those plugging gaps in broadband coverage

4. Housing
28
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> We facilitate affordable and market housing
with strategic housing
and planning policies

Context – wider strategies (3)
Business Peak District Concordat 2011
• Ambition for an enterprising, growing, sustainable economy
• Business-led group supported by the District Council
• Formed to lobby LEPs covering the whole Peak District
Actions the Derbyshire Dales Economic Plan can help deliver incl:
1.

Business skills and support
> We will contribute ‘match’ in the form of Derbyshire Dales Business Advice

2.

Developments sites
> We will seek funds to unlock stalled employment sites

3.

Raise the brand profile of the Peak District
> We will support the Peak District brand as a business promotion tool

4.

Competitive broadband speed and availability
> We will seek to help those plugging gaps in broadband coverage

5.

Employment opportunities for local people
> We promote apprenticeships
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Context – wider strategies (4)
Derbyshire Economic Strategy Statement
•
•
•
•

Agreed by the Derbyshire Economic Partnership in June 2014
Grouping of local authorities and businesses
Three strategic themes, including a rural economy sub-objective
Some tendency to stress skills issues and inward investment
ahead of the needs of microbusinesses
Actions the Derbyshire Dales Economic Plan can help deliver incl:
1. Deliver a high quality business support offer
> We will contribute ‘match’ in the form of Derbyshire Dales Business Advice

2. Strengthen the rural economy
> We will help develop and deliver a new LEADER scheme from 2015

3. Invest in our infrastructure
> We will seek funds to unlock stalled employment sites
> We will seek to help those plugging gaps in broadband coverage

4. Raise business productivity
> We can help with project appraisals for small grant schemes
30
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Context – wider strategies (5)
Defra Rural and Farming Network
•
•
•

The Defra Rural and Farming Network in Derbyshire
champions rural issues in DEP and with LEPs
It is a direct link to Government
Its top four priorities were set in 2013 and match those of the
District Council:
1.
2.
3.
4.

Growing microbusinesses
Vibrant market towns as employment and service centres
Broadband speed and access in rural communities
Increasing employment opportunities for young people in
rural areas
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APPENDIX 3

EXTERNAL FUNDING SCHEMES
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LEADER – Method of delivering the Rural Development Programme for England (funded by the
EU and Defra) at the local level. Operated locally by Derbyshire Economic Partnership
ESIF – European Structural and Investment Funds, allocated to LEPs. Incl. European Regional
Development Fund (ERDF), European Social Fund (ESF) and European Agricultural Fund for
Rural Development (EAFRD), all aimed at promoting sustainable and inclusive economic growth
RGF – Regional Growth Fund, providing Government funding to help unlock private sector
investment to create economic growth and sustainable employment (six rounds to date)
GPF – Growing Places Fund, recyclable loan fund operated by LEPs (funded by Government)
used to unlock stalled job creation projects focusing on physical infrastructure and tackling site
constraints
Global Derbyshire - business support programme operated by Derbyshire Economic Partnership
providing grants of between £4,000 and £75,000 to pre-start, start-ups and existing SMEs looking
to grow, collaborate, innovate and export (RGF funded)
UI4G – Unlocking Investment for Growth, operated by D2N2 providing grants of between £50,000
- £500,000 to SMEs with major capital projects capable of sustainable job creation (RGF funded)

SCRIF – Sheffield City Region Investment Fund, operated by the LEP providing a framework for
funding streams to deliver essential strategic infrastructure to increase economic growth and jobs
in the Sheffield City Region
Growth Deals – devolved funding and decision making powers secured by LEPs in 2014 to
97
stimulate jobs and growth
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APPENDIX 4

LARGEST LOCAL PRIVATE SECTOR EMPLOYERS
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LARGEST PRIVATE SECTOR EMPLOYERS
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Company
Moy Park

Location
Ashbourne Airfield

Activities
Poultry processing

Approx. employees
850

Chatsworth Estate

Bakewell

Heritage attraction, holiday lets, retail

n/a

Aggregate Industries

Hulland Ward

Hard landscaping & drainage

300

H.J. Enthoven & Sons
(Eco-Bat)

South Darley

Smelting, refining, manufacture of lead and
lead products

200

Frank Wright (Trouw
Nutrition / Nutreco)

Ashbourne Airfield

Manufacture of animal feed and the provision
of haulage

190

Pinelog Group

Bakewell Riverside + Darwin
Forest

Manufacture of timber leisure buildings /
holiday lettings

190

Longcliffe

Brassington

Quarrying and supply of minerals and
aggregates

150

DSF Refractories &
Minerals

Newhaven

Processing of minerals and the manufacture of
refractory products

120

Artisan Biscuits

Ashbourne Airfield

Bakers of confectionary and speciality biscuits

120

Breasley Foam

Wirksworth

Foam conversion and the manufacture of
bedding

120

Holdsworth Holdings

Tideswell

Dry and frozen foods

120

Homelux Nenplas

Ashbourne Airfield

Manufacture moulded plastic products

110

Firth Rixson.

Darley Dale

Forgings for the aerospace, civilian nuclear and
power generation industries

100

Technolog Group
+Utilitec Services

Wirksworth

Electronic equipment for the water and gas
industry

100

99

Initial list of firms with 100+ employees in the Derbyshire Dales - July 2014

Derbyshire Dales
Economic Plan
for higher-value jobs
2014 - 2019
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Item No. 9

CORPORATE COMMITTEE
18th SEPTEMBER 2014
Report of the Head of Resources
___________________________________________________________________________
LETTER OF REPRESENTATION
SUMMARY
This report requests that Members consider the draft Letter of Representation as part of their
responsibility for approving the financial statements.
RECOMMENDATION
That the draft Letter of Representation be approved.
WARDS AFFECTED
All
STRATEGIC LINK
The Letter of Representation is an important aspect of the Council’s corporate governance
arrangements. As such, it contributes towards the achievement of all the Council’s aims,
priorities and targets.
__________________________________________________________________________
1

REPORT

1.1 The International Standard on Auditing (U.K. & Ireland) 580 (ISA 580) requires the
external auditor to obtain evidence that the Council’s management acknowledges its
responsibility for the fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with the
applicable financial reporting framework, and has approved the financial statements. The
auditor can obtain evidence of management’s acknowledgement of such responsibility
by obtaining a written representation from management and a signed copy of the
financial statements.
1.2 ISA 580 gives guidance on matters which might be included in a management “letter of
representation”. The Head of Resources’ letter of representation has been prepared in
accordance with that guidance and is given in Appendix 1. In preparing the letter, the
Head of Resources has consulted with the Council’s Chief Officers and senior
managers, and has discussed the draft contents with the External Auditor. The letter
contains one matter of concern (highlighted in blue in the letter) regarding a restatement
to the accounts, which needs to be brought to the attention of Members.
1.3 In addition, ISA 580 requires the external auditor to obtain evidence that those charged
with governance acknowledge their collective responsibility for the preparation of, and
have approved, the financial statements. Approval of the letter of representation by the
Corporate Committee prior to receiving the external auditor’s Annual Governance Report
contributes to that evidence.
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2

RISK ASSESSMENT
2.1

Legal
There are no legal risks arising from the report.

2.2

Financial
There are no financial risks arising from the report.

2.3

Corporate
There are no corporate risks arising from this report.

3

OTHER CONSIDERATIONS
In preparing this report the relevance of the following factors is also been considered
prevention of crime and disorder, equality of opportunity, environmental health, legal and
human rights, financial personal and property considerations.

4

CONTACT INFORMATION
Karen Henriksen, Head of Resources
Telephone: 01629 761284
Email: karen.henriksen@derbyshiredales.gov.uk

5

BACKGROUND PAPERS
International Standard on Auditing (UK & Ireland) 580 – Management
Representations

6

ATTACHMENTS
Appendix 1 – Letter of Representation
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Mrs S. Sunderland
KPMG LLP
St. Nicholas House
31 Park Row
Nottingham
NG1 6FQ

Please ask for:
Karen Henriksen
Direct Dial No:
01629 761284
Your Ref.
My Ref.
CE/KH
E-mail:
karen.henriksen@derbyshiredales.gov.uk

18 September 2014
Dear Mrs Sunderland,
Derbyshire Dales District Council - Audit for the year ended 31 March 2014
This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements
of Derbyshire Dales District Council (“the Authority”) for the year ended 31 March 2014, for
the purpose of expressing an opinion:
i. as to whether these financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position
of the authority as at 31st March 2014 and of the Authority’s expenditure and income
for the year then ended; and
ii. whether the financial statements have been prepared properly in accordance with the
CIPFA / LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United
Kingdom 2013/14.
These financial statements comprise the Authority’s:
•
Movement in Reserves Statement,
•
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement,
•
Balance Sheet,
•
Cash Flow Statement,
•
Collection Fund, and
•
the related notes.
The Authority confirms that the representations it makes in this letter are in accordance with
the definitions set out in the Appendix to this letter.
The Authority confirms that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, having made such
inquiries as it considered necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing itself:
Dorcas Bunton, B.Sc., C.P.F.A.
Chief Executive
Derbyshire Dales District Council, Town Hall, Matlock, DE4 3NN
For general enquiries, please telephone 01629 761100 or visit our web site
www.derbyshiredales.gov.uk
Information communicated to the District Council may be disclosed to the public under the Freedom of
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Information Act 2000

Financial statements
1. The Authority has fulfilled its responsibilities, as set out in regulation 8 of the Accounts
and Audit (England) Regulations 2011, for the preparation of financial statements that:
• give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Authority as at 31
March 2014 and of the Authority’s expenditure and income for the year then
ended; and
• have been prepared properly in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code
of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2013/14.
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.
2. Measurement methods and significant assumptions used by the Authority in making
accounting estimates, including those measured at fair value, are reasonable.
3. All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which IAS 10 Events
after the reporting period requires adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted or
disclosed.
4. There are no uncorrected misstatements.
5. In common with many local authorities, the Authority has re-stated prior year comparator
figures to reflect changes in the international accounting standard IAS19 Employee
Benefits. The external auditor has pointed out that strict application of accounting
standards say that a prior year adjustment should only be made if there is a change in
accounting policy or it results in material amendments. The external auditor considers
that the re-statement is not material and is not a change in the Authority’s accounting
policy, and therefore the re-statement should not have been made. However, the
Authority considers that the re-statement is appropriate as it provides consistency over
the two financial years and allows readers of the Accounts to focus on real changes from
the previous year by removing the effects of changes in accounting treatment. As the
external auditors consider that the re-statement is not material, they have not sought an
amendment to the accounts.
The effect of the re-statement was to increase the deficit on the ‘Surplus/Deficit on
Provision of Services’ line of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement by
£211,000 but this was offset by a reduction in the ‘Remeasurements of the net defined
benefit liability’ line on the same statement. The Movement in Reserves Statement, Cash
Flow Statement and Notes to the Statement of Accounts were also re-stated.
Information provided
6. The Authority has provided you with:
• access to all information of which it is aware, that is relevant to the
preparation of the financial statements, such as records, documentation and
other matters;
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• additional information that you have requested from the Authority for the
purpose of the audit; and
• unrestricted access to persons within the Authority from whom you
determined it necessary to obtain audit evidence.
7. All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the
financial statements.
8. The Authority confirms the following:
i) The Authority has disclosed to you the results of its assessment of the risk
that the financial statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud.
ii) The Authority has disclosed to you all information in relation to:
a) Fraud or suspected fraud that it is aware of and that affects the
Authority and involves:
• management;
• employees who have significant roles in internal control; or
• others where the fraud could have a material effect on the
financial statements; and
b) Allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting the Authority’s
financial statements communicated by employees, former employees,
analysts, regulators or others.
In respect of the above, the Authority acknowledges its responsibility for such internal
control as it determines necessary for the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In particular, the
Authority acknowledges its responsibility for the design, implementation and
maintenance of internal control to prevent and detect fraud and error.
9. The Authority has disclosed to you all known instances of non-compliance or suspected
non-compliance with laws and regulations whose effects should be considered when
preparing the financial statements.
10. The Authority has disclosed to you and has appropriately accounted for and/or disclosed
in the financial statements, in accordance with IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets, all known actual or possible litigation and claims whose effects
should be considered when preparing the financial statements.
11. The Authority has disclosed to you the identity of the Authority’s related parties and all
the related party relationships and transactions of which it is aware. All related party
relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in
accordance with IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures.
12. The Authority confirms that:
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The financial statements disclose all of the uncertainties surrounding the Authority’s
ability to continue as a going concern as required to provide a true and fair view.
Any uncertainties disclosed are not considered to be material and therefore do not cast
significant doubt on the ability of the Authority to continue as a going concern.
13. On the basis of the process established by the Authority and having made appropriate
enquiries, the Authority is satisfied that the actuarial assumptions underlying the valuation
of defined benefit obligations (pension scheme liabilities) are consistent with its
knowledge of the business and are in accordance with the requirements of IAS 19
(revised) Employee Benefits.
The Authority further confirms that:
(a) all significant retirement benefits, including any arrangements that:
• are statutory, contractual or implicit in the employer's actions;
• arise in the UK and the Republic of Ireland or overseas;
• are funded or unfunded; and
• are approved or unapproved,
•
have been identified and properly accounted for; and
(b) all plan amendments, settlements and curtailments have been identified and properly
accounted for.

This letter was tabled and agreed at the meeting of the Corporate Committee on 18th
September 2014.

Yours faithfully,

Karen Henriksen
Head of Resources

Councillor Albert Catt
Chairman of Corporate Committee
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Appendix to the Representation Letter of Derbyshire Dales District Council: Definitions
Financial Statements
IAS 1.10 states that “a complete set of financial statements comprises:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

a statement of financial position as at the end of the period;
a statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the period;
a statement of changes in equity for the period;
a statement of cash flows for the period;
notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information;
comparative information in respect of the preceding period as specified in paragraphs 38 and
38A; and
a statement of financial position as at the beginning of the preceding period when an entity
applies an accounting policy retrospectively or makes a retrospective restatement of items in its
financial statements, or when it reclassifies items in its financial statements in accordance with
paragraphs 40A-40D.

An entity may use titles for the statements other than those used in this Standard. For example, an
entity may use the title 'statement of comprehensive income' instead of 'statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income'.”
Material Matters
Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material.
IAS 1.7 and IAS 8.5 state that:
“Material omissions or misstatements of items are material if they could, individually or
collectively, influence the economic decisions that users make on the basis of the financial
statements. Materiality depends on the size and nature of the omission or misstatement judged
in the surrounding circumstances. The size or nature of the item, or a combination of both,
could be the determining factor.”
Fraud
Fraudulent financial reporting involves intentional misstatements including omissions of amounts or
disclosures in financial statements to deceive financial statement users.
Misappropriation of assets involves the theft of an entity’s assets. It is often accompanied by false or
misleading records or documents in order to conceal the fact that the assets are missing or have been
pledged without proper authorisation.
Error
An error is an unintentional misstatement in financial statements, including the omission of an amount
or a disclosure.
Prior period errors are omissions from, and misstatements in, the entity’s financial statements for one
or more prior periods arising from a failure to use, or misuse of, reliable information that:
a) was available when financial statements for those periods were authorised for issue; and
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b) could reasonably be expected to have been obtained and taken into account in the preparation
and presentation of those financial statements.
Such errors include the effects of mathematical mistakes, mistakes in applying accounting policies,
oversights or misinterpretations of facts, and fraud.
Management
For the purposes of this letter, references to “management” should be read as “management and,
where appropriate, those charged with governance”.
Related parties
A related party is a person or entity that is related to the entity that is preparing its financial statements
(referred to in IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures as the “reporting entity”).
a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to a reporting entity if that person:
i. has control or joint control over the reporting entity;
ii. has significant influence over the reporting entity; or
iii. is a member of the key management personnel of the reporting entity or of a parent of the
reporting entity.
b) An entity is related to a reporting entity if any of the following conditions applies:
i. The entity and the reporting entity are members of the same group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).
ii. One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the other entity is a member).
iii. Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.
iv. One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.
v. The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the
reporting entity or an entity related to the reporting entity. If the reporting entity is itself
such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also related to the reporting entity.
vi. The entity is controlled, or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).
vii. A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

A reporting entity is exempt from the disclosure requirements of IAS 24.18 in relation to related party
transactions and outstanding balances, including commitments, with:
a) a government that has control, joint control or significant influence over the reporting entity; and
b) another entity that is a related party because the same government has control, joint control or
significant influence over both the reporting entity and the other entity.
Related party transaction
A transfer of resources, services or obligations between a reporting entity and a related party,
regardless of whether a price is charged.
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Item No. 10

CORPORATE COMMITTEE
18th SEPTEMBER 2014

See also the Draft Statement of
Accounts 2013/14 circulated
with the agenda

Report of the Head of Resources

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2013/14
SUMMARY
This report provides interpretation of the Statement of Accounts for 2013/14 and
highlights the key issues. The Committee is requested to consider and approve the
Statement of Accounts.
RECOMMENDATION
That the Committee approves the Statement of Accounts for 2013/14.
WARDS AFFECTED
All.
STRATEGIC LINK
The Council’s financial position is taken into account in determining all the priorities in the
Corporate Plan.
The financial position as at 31st March 2014 will be reflected in the Sustainable Financial
Plan, which will be updated for the Council Meeting on 25th September, 2014, and in the
revenue spending proposals for 2015/16, which will be presented in early 2015.

1.

BACKGROUND

1.1 Under the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011 the District Council must:•

consider either by way of a Committee or by the Members meeting as a whole
the Statement of Accounts;

•

following that consideration, approve the Statement of Accounts by a resolution
of that Committee or meeting;

•

following approval, ensure that the Statement of Accounts is signed and dated
by the person presiding at the Committee or meeting at which that approval
was given; and

•

publish (which must include publication on the Council’s website), the
Statement of Accounts together with any certificate, opinion, or report issued,
given or made by the auditor.
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2.

REPORT

2.1 The Statement of Accounts 2013/14, distributed separately with this Agenda, has
been audited by the Audit Commission.
A report elsewhere on the agenda for this meeting entitled ‘Letter of Representation’
explains a material re-statement that the Council made to 2012/13 comparator
figures relating to employee benefits. In common with many local authorities, the
Authority has re-stated prior year comparator figures to reflect changes in the
international accounting standard IAS19 Employee Benefits. The external auditor
has pointed out that strict application of accounting standards say that a prior year
adjustment should only be made if there is a change in accounting policy or it results
in material amendments. The external auditor considers that the re-statement is not
material and is not a change in the Authority’s accounting policy, and therefore the
re-statement should not have been made. However, the Authority considers that the
re-statement is appropriate as it provides consistency over the two financial years
and allows readers of the Accounts to focus on real changes from the previous year
by removing the effects of changes in accounting treatment. As the external auditors
consider that the re-statement is not material, they have not sought an amendment
to the accounts.
Some minor changes have been made to the notes to the accounts in order to
address issues raised by the External Auditor. However, the overall financial position
remains the same as that reported to Council on 20th June 2014.
2.2 The Audit Opinion will be issued after the Committee has approved the Statement of
Accounts. As part of corporate governance, the External Auditor is required to report
relevant matters relating to the audit to the Committee. The Annual Governance
Report is included elsewhere on the Agenda of this meeting.
2.3 The Accounts and Audit Regulations state that the accounts must be prepared in
accordance with “proper practices”. The Local Government Act 2003 defines proper
practices as those:


Which the authority is required to follow by virtue of any enactment, or



Which are contained in a code of practice or other document which is
identified by the Secretary of State. The Secretary of State has determined
that the following documents are relevant:
 The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the
United Kingdom 2013/14 (the Code), published by the
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy
(CIPFA);
 The Service Reporting Code of Practice (SeRCOP), published
by CIPFA.
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2.4 The Council’s accounts have been prepared to comply with proper practices, as
demonstrated by the satisfactory completion of the external audit of the accounts.
Compliance can also be checked by reviewing the Statement of Accounts against
the Audit Commission’s Aide Memoire, which is included as Appendix 1 to this
report.
3

RISK ASSESSMENT

3.1 Legal
Legal Considerations are contained within the body of the report. The legal risk is
low.
3.2 Financial
The accounts have been prepared in accordance with proper practices, and have
been audited. There is therefore no financial risk arising from this report.
3.3 Corporate Risk
A risk assessment of the final accounts process has not identified any significant
corporate risks.

4

OTHER CONSIDERATIONS
In preparing this report the relevance of the following factors is also been considered
prevention of crime and disorder, equality of opportunity, environmental health, legal
and human rights, financial personal and property considerations.

5.

CONTACT INFORMATION
For further information contact:
Karen Henriksen, Head of Resources
Telephone: 01629 761284
E-mail: karen.henriksen@derbyshiredales.gov.uk

6.

BACKGOUND PAPERS
None

7.

ATTACHMENTS
Appendix 1 – Statement of Accounts 2013/14 – Aide Memoire for Members
Draft Statement of Accounts 2013/14 to be circulated separately, but with the
agenda for this meeting.
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APPENDIX 1
STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2013/14 - AIDE MEMOIRE FOR MEMBERS
The purpose of the questions below is to help establish and provide evidence of a robust
review of the accounts by the S151 officer and Members.
No.

Issue

Members comment and evidence

1

Was the closedown plan (which allows
the statement of accounts to be
approved by members by 30
September 2014) achieved?

The accounts were signed by the S151
Officer on 5th September and sent to
Members prior to Corporate Committee on
18th September.

Does this allow sufficient time for
member review?
2

Have the auditors received regular
updates on the plan and been warned
of potential problems?

The auditors received a copy of the plan in
March.
During the closure process discussions
have been held with the auditors regarding
various areas of accounting. The key
issues were:
• Accounting for Pensions
• Property, plant and equipment
• Related Party Transactions
• Accounting for Business Rates
The auditors were given a copy of the
completed disclosure checklist and draft
accounts at the commencement of the
audit – the disclosure checklist helps them
to identify potential problem areas.

3

Have staff preparing the accounts
attended CIPFA/Audit Commission
workshops and are they aware of the
key issues and changes in the CIPFA
Code of Practice 2013/14?

Yes.
The Accountancy and Exchequer Manager,
the Principal Accountant and the Senior
Accountant attended a CIPFA workshop on
2013/14 Accounts Closedown.
The Accountancy and Exchequer Manager
and the Principal Accountant attended the
KPMG Final Accounts Workshop.

4

Do staff preparing the accounts have
up to date CIPFA guidance notes for
practitioners?

Yes

112

No.

Issue

Members comment and evidence

5

Have the accounts been checked for
casting errors, internal inconsistency
and cross referencing? (All numbers
which are expected to agree do agree).

Yes. Extensive use of Excel is
incorporated into the document to reduce
the risk of casting errors and to check
internal consistency. Internal consistency
and cross referencing is also checked
thoroughly by senior accounting staff.

6

Does the explanatory foreword set out
the results for the year and comparison
to budget, commenting on the
significant items?

Yes – see pages 1 to 6 of the draft
Statement of Accounts.

Do the figures quoted reconcile to the
main statements?

Yes.

7

Has the audit of the accounts been
Adverts were placed in the Matlock
advertised and accounts made available Mercury and Ashbourne News Telegraph
for public inspection?
during the week ending 15th June 2014.
The accounts were available for public
inspection from 1st July to 28th July.
Have members of the public raised any
objections? (If so, what are they?)

No objections were received.

8

Has the disclosure checklist been
completed in detail and sent, together
with a set of the completed accounts, to
the auditor as part of the accounts
working papers protocol?

The auditors were given a copy of the
draft accounts on 30 June 2014 and a
copy of the completed disclosure
checklist on 22nd July 2014.

9

Has a bank reconciliation been
completed as at 31st March 2014 with
no unexplained entries?

Yes. The bank reconciliation for the year
ending 31st March 2014 was completed
on 8th April 2014. There were no
unexplained entries.

10

Have all year-end control accounts
been reconciled?

Yes.

How have you maintained control when Sufficient resources in the Accountancy &
staff are involved in budget preparations Exchequer Section and prioritisation of
Nov – Feb time?
tasks to suitably trained staff (see risk
register).
Any significant slippages in reconciling
suspense accounts e.g. cash
suspense?

No. Control and suspense accounts are
reconciled at least quarterly. The cash
suspense account is checked daily.

11

Are there any significant unexplained
budget variances and latest forecasts?

No unexplained variances.

12

Have working papers been completed in Yes. Working papers comply with the
accordance with the auditor’s final
protocol. They were substantially ready
accounts protocol? Were they ready for for the start of the audit in July.
the start of the audit?
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No.

Issue

Members comment and evidence

13

Is there a sufficient basket of evidence
gathered to allow the S151 officer and
members to conclude on the
effectiveness of Internal Audit, in
relation to the Annual Governance
Statement? E.g. Self-assessment by
Internal Audit Manager, External
Auditor’s view of Internal Audit, Heads
of Service view of Internal Audit.

The Annual Governance Statement
2013/14, identifying the Governance
Framework and a review of its
effectiveness, was approved by
Corporate Committee on 26th June 2014.
The Internal Audit Annual Report was
considered by Corporate Committee on
26th June 2014.
During 2013/14 a self- assessment was
undertaken to review compliance with the
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards.
This review confirmed that there were no
significant areas of non- compliance.
The Internal Audit section is subject to
regular inspection by the Council’s
external auditors, who place reliance on
the work undertaken by the section.

14

Has the action plan from the previous
year’s Annual Governance Statement
been complied with? Are there any
remaining control risks that undermine
the content of the Annual Governance
Statement or the Accounts?

The action plan for the 2012/13 Annual
Governance Statement has been
complied with, i.e.
• Efficiency savings have been
achieved to allow a balanced budget
to be set for 2014/15. The Council
continues to plan and monitor the
achievement of efficiency savings,
regularly updating the medium term
financial plan.
• Action to recover Housing Benefit
overpayments is continuing, and the
position is being regularly monitored.
• The performance of arvato is closely
monitored with monthly operational
board meetings and twice-yearly
strategic board meetings. There were
no significant problems during the
first year of the contract and all
performance indicators were
achieved.
• With regard to the vacancy created
by the retirement of the Chief Internal
Auditor, an agreement was reached
to buy in the management services of
a professionally certified auditor.

Prepared by Karen Henriksen, Head of Resources 08/09/2014.
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Item No. 11

CORPORATE COMMITTEE
18 September 2014
Report of the Chief Executive
________________________________________________________________________

NEW EMPLOYMENT POLICY- LEARNING AND DEVELOPMENT
SUMMARY
This report proposes the adoption and implementation of a new employment policy on
Learning and Development.
RECOMMENDATIONS
1. That the Corporate Committee approve the Learning and Development Policy.
2. That any future updates to the policy statement are approved at committee, but changes
to the guidance notes can be approved by Corporate Management Team.
3. That support for staff undertaking vocational learning and development over £300 is
supported at 50% of course fees and books and excluding any travel and subsistence and
that Human Resources monitor the change to 50% to determine that it is not a disincentive to
staff.
4. The sliding scale for repayment of course fees is set at 100% if leaving within a year of
qualification and then 50% if leaving at between 12 – 18 months of qualification and 25% if
leaving between 18 – 24 months of qualification.
WARDS AFFECTED
All
STRATEGIC LINK
The introduction of a Learning and Development supports the Districts Council’s corporate
value of fairness and equality.
1

BACKGROUND

1.1

The District Council’s approach to training has been part of the Personal Development
Review (appraisal) policy.

1.2

Plans for a separate and detailed Learning and Development Policy were in place and
discussed when the Investors in People re-assessment took place in January 2014.

1.3

Crucial to retaining the Investors in People accreditation was that a Learning and
Development Policy was developed and it’s key elements including a corporate
training needs analysis was undertaken and learning evaluation processes were
developed.

115

1.4

In February 2014 the Human Resources Manager led a workshop with the new
Corporate Management Team to undertake a Corporate Training Needs Analysis.
This led to approval in March of a corporate Learning and Development Plan for
2014/5 within a 3 year strategic planning horizon. Also in March, Corporate
Management Team also approved the draft of a Learning and Development Policy to
go out to staff consultation.

1.5

Undertaking the Corporate Training Needs Analysis, development of a draft Learning
and Development Plan and an evaluation process enabled the assessor to confirm
the retention of the Investors in People accreditation in April 2014.

1.6

The Employee Group was consulted on the draft Learning and Development Policy in
April.

1.7

Joint Consultative Group, on 17 July considered the proposed new policy
recommended that Corporate Committee approve the new policy.

2

REPORT

2.1

The proposed Learning & Development Policy is based on the Plan, Do Review
learning cycle at organisational, service and individual levels.

2.2

Plan: Strategic learning needs analysis at organisational level will be done by
Corporate Management Team with the Human Resources Manager. Looking ahead
over a rolling 3 year strategic planning horizon, they will identify internal and external
issues which might create learning and development needs. This will be prioritised
into an annual plan, within the Corporate Learning & Development budget in April
each year. Service learning and development will be done annually on completion of
the service planning process to ensure staff have the skills and knowledge to deliver
the service plan. Planning at the individual level will continue through the annual
Personal Development Review process.

2.3

Do: The proposed policy identifies that there are a number of ways employees can
access learning and development. In addition to the usual training course,
development can be obtained through a variety of ways including coaching and
mentoring, project work, work shadowing and job swaps. Some of these ways do not
require specific budget, other than the cost of staff time.

2.4

Review: Vital to retaining Investors in People and crucial in measuring the success of
any learning and development activity is learning evaluation. Managers should identify
learning outcomes with their employees before a learning activity and evaluate
afterwards if the outcomes were met. Traditionally evaluation has focused on the
participant evaluation form at the end of a training course. The proposed policy builds
on this by introducing a reflective learning evaluation. This will be done some months
after a learning activity in order to identify the impact of the training e.g. in changes to
service delivery. A database has also been created to record learning. The database
and the reflective evaluation together will enable us to see the total cost of learning
and development and judge its value for money.

2.5

The policy identifies the responsibilities of the manager, the employee and Human
Resources.
It also confirms that access to learning and development will be free from
discrimination. Support will be provided for specific learning needs or styles to give
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equal access to learning opportunities.
2.6

The Policy statement is accompanied by detailed guidance notes. It is proposed that
once approved any future changes to the policy statement will be agreed by Members
at Committee. It is further proposed that any changes to the guidance notes can be
approved by Corporate Management Team.

2.7

With regard to budgets, the Human Resources Manager is responsible for the annual
Corporate Learning and Development budget (to meet corporate needs identified with
Corporate Management Team) and the Vocational / Post Entry Training budget for
night school or college courses leading to a qualification. Services also hold their own
learning and development budgets for short courses and seminars i.e. learning that is
service specific where fees and travel is fully funded.

2.8

Existing practice has been that any employee undertaking vocational/ post entry
learning over £300 is required to enter into a Training Agreement. The agreement is
that if they leave the District Council within 2 years of completing the course/ obtaining
their qualification, a proportion of the fees are repaid. Course/exam fees and travel/
subsistence have been paid at 100% of cost. A reduction in the vocational/post entry
budget in recent years has meant that only a handful of employees have been able to
be supported.

2.9

In developing the proposed policy Corporate Management Team agreed that the
training agreement should be changed to enable more staff to be supported within the
budget available. It is proposed therefore that only course/exam fees are paid i.e. not
travel/subsistence at 50% of the cost. Further that the sliding scale for repayment is
changed from 100% if leaving within a year of qualification and 50% in year 2 to 100
in year 1, 50% if leaving between 12 – 18 months and 25% of leaving between 18-24
months.

2.10

Some feedback from the Employee Group felt that changing the level of support might
deter some staff from taking a qualification if they have to find 50% of the cost. Other
feedback was that it was reasonable to offer support at 50% as more staff would be
helped. It is also felt that 50% support is reasonable as by definition a vocational
qualification is of benefit both to the employee and their future career (hopefully with
the District Council but not necessarily so) as well as the District Council in the
employee’s current or next role.

2.11

At Joint Consultative Group, it was requested that Human Resources monitor the
change to 50% support (to enable more staff to be supported within the budget
available) in order to determine that it is not a disincentive to staff accessing learning
& development (particularly those on lower incomes).

3

RISK ASSESSMENT
Legal
The recommendations in the report are operational in nature and are supported by
reasonable safeguards to protect the employee and employer’s interest. The legal
risk is therefore low.
Financial
The financial risk is low since all learning and development activity is within available
budget provision.
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Corporate
The proposed policy has been subject to an Equality Impact Assessment, done by the
Human Resources Manager and the Policy Manager. The summary of the key issues
and improvement actions listed in Annex 2 have been incorporated in the draft policy.
The full Equality Impact Assessment is available from either the Human Resources
Manager or the Policy Manager.
4.

OTHER CONSIDERATIONS
In preparing this report, the relevance of the following factors has also been
considered: prevention of crime and disorder, equalities, environmental, climate
change, health, human rights, personnel and property.

5.

CONTACT INFORMATION
Deborah Unwin, Human Resources
Manager, Deborah.unwin@derbyshiredales.gov.uk, telephone 01629 761364

6.

BACKGROUND PAPERS
Equality Impact Assessment

7.

ATTACHMENTS
Annex 1: Proposed Learning and Development Policy (with 5 appendices)
Annex 2: Equality Impact Assessment improvement actions
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1.

POLICY

1.1

The District Council relies on the ability and commitment of its employees to
successfully achieve the District Council’s aims and objectives. The District
Council is committed to supporting and developing its employees throughout
their employment in order to continually improve delivery of services, meet future
organisational challenges and provide opportunities for personal development.

1.2

Staff are encouraged to take advantage of learning and development
opportunities that:
•
•
•
•
•

Contribute to meeting organisational goals and targets
Increase competency and efficiency in current roles
Develop skills and knowledge for future roles
Meet specific statutory, professional and technological requirements
Support continual professional /personal development.

1.3

The District Council aims to maximise its in-house learning capability, promote
innovative and cost-effective approaches to staff learning and development and
support continuous professional development.

2.

SCOPE

2.1

The policy applies to all District Council employees.

3.

PROCESS

3.1

This policy is based on the Learning Cycle of ‘Plan, Do, Review’ at
organisational, service and individual levels.
•

PLAN: A rolling 3 year Strategic Corporate Learning Needs Analysis will be
developed by the Corporate Management Team with the Human Resources
Page 2
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Manager. The resulting Corporate Learning & Development Plan will be
aligned to the District Council’s key strategies and reviewed annually in April.
Heads of Service will identify service learning and development needs in
order to deliver their annual service plan for the coming year. In addition they
can identify learning to deliver future service developments. Heads of Service
will provide the Human Resources Manager with a copy of their plan by end
of April each year to determine if any needs are cross service and could be
delivered more effectively (in terms of shared learning and cost) across
services. Individual learning and development will be identified through the
annual personal development review, to be supported where budget (Service
or Vocational/ post entry) and time allows.
•

DO: Learning and development will be accessed via a range of methods to
enable equality of opportunity and respond to differing learning styles and
needs:
o Coaching and mentoring
o On the job learning
o Action learning
o Work shadowing/job swaps
o Project work (in service and across services)
o Training courses (in house or external), workshops, seminars
o Further education/continual professional development.

•

REVIEW: All learning outcomes will be evaluated immediately at the end of
the learning event to ensure that the identified learning outcomes have been
met and provide feedback for future events to be continually improved. Some
months later, reflective evaluation will determine if the learning has delivered
value for both the employee and the District Council (taking into consideration
what changes or improvements have resulted from the learning) and how the
employee has developed their knowledge, skills and attitudes.
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The Learning & Development Cycle

PLAN
Identify needs through strategic corporate
needs analysis, annual corporate & service
plans and individual needs through
Personal Development Reviews

REVIEW
Evaluate learning outcomes. 1. Summative –
immediately after learning, i.e. what skills,
knowledge and competencies have been
acquired and did learning meet the outcomes
identified? 2. Formative – some time after
significant learning interventions to determine
how learning has been applied to improve performance?

DO
•
•

•

Support learning via a range of methods
Ensure equality of opportunity and
respond to differing learning styles and
needs
Agree learning outcomes and support
and mentor learners

Page 4
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4.

EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY

4.1

The District Council is Equality and Diversity Policy states that "We are
committed to equality of opportunity in the provision of training opportunities. We
seek to establish a working environment which is safe and supportive, where
employees are able to learn, develop and work to the best of their abilities”.

5.

ROLE OF THE MANAGER

5.1

As part of the annual service planning process, to identify learning and
development needs in order to deliver the coming years’ service plan and future
service developments. To provide the Human Resources Manager with a copy of
the service learning plan (Appendix 1) so that cross service needs can be
identified.

5.2

To allocate appropriate service budget for training. To investigate funding for
training, shared learning opportunities and in-house development, such as
coaching and mentoring via team members to share skills and knowledge. To
develop individuals to deliver in house learning through ‘train the trainer’.

5.3

To ensure that staff have the appropriate skills, knowledge and competencies to
fulfill their role throughout their employment (life-long learning). To identify
essential training and ensure that it is up to date and carried out taking account
individual needs to ensure equality of opportunity.

5.4

To discuss/ evaluate the previous year’s learning and to identify and agree future
learning needs and opportunities at the annual Personal Development Interview.
To ensure each employee has a personal learning plan and that learning is
provided where budget and time is available. To encourage and support
appropriate further learning via the range of methods available to personal, team
and organizational development.

5.5

To forward individual plans to Human Resources (Appendix 2) so that learning
across services can be delivered effectively and learning records maintained.

5.6

To procure authorised training in liaison with Human Resources.
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5.7

5.8

To agree learning outcomes with employees prior to all learning events. To
support and mentor employees during learning. To evaluate the learning
afterwards so that the learning can be implemented/applied.
To ensure Human Resources are informed of all Learning events, whether
formal or informal, for monitoring purposes, individual learning records and key
performance indicators. To support learning by providing budget and/ or time or
arranging study loans to be repaid through salary deductions.

6.

ROLE OF THE EMPLOYEE

6.1

To take responsibility for their own personal development, together with their line
manager. To review past and future learning needs throughout the year and at
the annual Personal Development Interview.

6.2

To identify learning opportunities, establish learning outcomes and evaluate how
learning has been incorporated into the workplace.

6.3

To be aware of the range of methods to access learning, recognising that
learning can be gained/shared without the specific need for budget including job
shadowing, on the job learning and project work.

6.4

To agree to repay any financial assistance granted for professional or vocational
qualifications on the terms and conditions set out in the training agreement
(Appendix 3).

6.5

Where funding is not available from Council budgets, to consider self-funding
through salary deductions where possible.

7.

ROLE OF HR

7.1

To give advice and guidance on the implementation of this Learning and
Development Policy and review it periodically.
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7.2

With the Corporate Management Team, develop a rolling 3 year Corporate
Learning and Development Needs Analysis aligned to the Authority’s key
corporate strategies, with an annual delivery plan. To procure and deliver
corporate learning and development events and evaluate their effectiveness.

7.3

To manage the Corporate and Vocational/Post Entry Training Budgets and
approve learning requests in line with vocational/post entry budget. To give
advice and guidance on available budgets, contributions and payment options via
salary deductions to support learning.

7.4

To maintain up to date employee learning records and provide relevant
management information.

8.

LEGISLATION AND RELEVANT DISTRICT COUNCIL POLICIES
Equality Act 2010
Employment Act 2002
Data Protection Act 1998
Work and Families Act 2006
Trade Union and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992
DDDC Equality and Diversity Policy
DDDC Safeguarding Policy
DDDC Corporate Values
DDDC Health and Safety Policy
Investors in People
Personal Development Scheme
Service Planning Guidance
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GUIDANCE NOTES
9.

PLAN – Identify Learning Needs

9.1

Each year in February the Corporate Management Team and the Human
Resources Manager will meet to undertake the rolling 3 year Strategic Learning
& Development Needs Appraisal. For the coming 3 years they will consider
internal and external impacts on the District Council and its ability to deliver and
continually improve its services.
Corporate Management Team (CMT) will then determine what needs to be
delivered in the coming financial year. The Human Resources Manager will turn
this needs analysis into the annual Corporate Learning & Development Plan
allocating budget for CMT’s approval in March/ April each year.

9.2

In February/ March each year Heads of Service will undertake their Service
Learning and Development Needs Analysis to ensure staff have the skills to
deliver the coming years’ service plan (together with any known learning needs
to enable future service improvement). The service learning and development
plan will be completed on the table in appendix 1 and sent to the Human
Resources Manager by the end of April to enable identification of cross cutting
learning.
The Head of Service must identify sufficient service budget to deliver their
service specific learning & development needs.

9.3

In March/ April, the learning and development needs of individual employees are
identified through the Personal Development Reviews. Both employee and
manager should consider learning and development throughout the period of
employment and not just at the commencement of employment/ a new role i.e.
life-long learning and personal development. In the PDR the manager and
employee will evaluate the previous learning and identify new learning to deliver
the coming years’ service plan and the employee’s personal development on
appendix 2. The manager must plan to meet the learning and development
needs of women absent through pregnancy and maternity including the offer to
attend events through ‘KIT’ keeping in touch days.
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These plans will be sent to Human Resources Officer by 30 June for collating
and incorporating into the annual training plan so that any common themes are
identified in order to enable efficient and effective delivery of learning. Advice will
be given regarding the different ways learning can be accessed, budgets that
might be available (internally and externally) and the need for equality in
planning.
For operational or legal reasons some training may be authorised outside the
annual plan.
9.4

Learning needs are identified at corporate, service and individual levels through
an iterative process with individual needs informing corporate learning plans and
vice versa. The resulting annual plan will be a management decision balancing
available resources, organisational priority, equality of opportunity and other
relevant factors.

10.

DO – Delivery of Learning

10.1

The Human Resources Manager will be responsible for coordinating delivery of
the annual Corporate Plan procuring providers within budget and arranging for
providers to be properly briefed and proper liaison prior to and during delivery.

.
10.2 For all Learning and development (corporate, service or individual) interventions
delivery of learning should take account of:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

operational and individual needs
individual and preferred learning styles
cost and time away from the service
developments in technology in relation to learning, e.g. e-learning
capitalising on staff sharing their knowledge and skills
innovative ways to access and share learning
opportunity to work with partners and national funding bodies, i.e. joint
workshops
equality of opportunity including
- lifelong learning (age);
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-

-

10.3

consideration of dietary needs is appropriate and days learning is
delivered (religious belief and part time employees),
access needs including physical access to locations/ hearing loops/ large
format materials (people with disabilities)
ability to be available outside normal working hours e.g. employees with
caring responsibility (gender)
ability to attend whilst on long term sick leave or leave related to
pregnancy/maternity/paternity/adoption (consider offering ‘KIT’- keeping in
touch days)
ability to travel to place other than normal work base (people living in rural
areas).

Learning budgets
•

The Corporate Learning & Development budget is set by HR/Corporate
Management Team in line with the annual learning and development plan.

•

The Human Resources Manager also has a Vocational (Post Entry) learning
budget for the partial support of further professional development, short
courses, e-learning or evening classes which lead to qualifications.

•

Heads of Service maintain budgets for essential service related training and
development, short courses and seminars.

•

Where financial support is not available, all efforts to support learning via
other methods will be considered, taking account of the needs of the service.
Part funding and opportunities to support learning via contributions and salary
payments will be considered as will seeking shared costs with partners and
other funding bodies

•

Learning requests will be supported by Training Agreements where the cost is
over £300 – See Training Agreement at Appendix 3.

•

When learning is identified the employee will meet with their line manager to
discuss the learning objectives. Joining instructions identifying the learning
outcomes will be provided in good time.
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10.4

In accordance with the positive action provisions of the Equality Act 2010, the
District Council may seek to develop, run or commission training and learning
opportunities aimed at developing employees who have a protected
characteristic that is under-represented in the workforce; or that people with that
characteristic suffer a disadvantage connected to that characteristic.

11.

REVIEW – Evaluation of learning
•

The Human Resources Manager will take an annual report to CMT to
report on learning undertaken (corporate and vocational/post entry) and its
evaluation.

•

Service Managers will evaluate service based training annually to ensure
that learning objectives were met and required skills developed.

•

Immediately after a learning event the employee’s line manager will meet
with the employee to ensure the learning met its objectives and to discuss
how learning can be implemented.

•

At the end of a learning event/course the trainer/ facilitator will seek
immediate/ summative feedback re the event/course (Appendix 4).
o What skills, knowledge and competencies have been acquired?
o Was the learning effective?
o Were the learning outcomes achieved?
o Was the learning value for money?
o If further delivery is planned, what improvements can be made?
(this can include improvements to access to learning).

•

Some months after a learning event/ course Human Resources will seek
reflective/formative evaluation of the learning in order to consider the
impact of the learning and the value for money (Appendix 5). The
evaluation will ask
o Were the learning outcomes achieved?
o What learning has been retained and what is being used?
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o How has it changed the way the role is undertaken/ service
delivered/ improved?
o What service improvements/ efficiencies can be attributed to the
learning event?
o What efficiencies can be quantified and compared against the cost
of learning (actual cost and cost of attending)?
o How can future learning events be continually improved as a result
of the evaluation?

12. RECORD – learning & development records
12.1

The Human Resources Officer will maintain a database of employee learning and
development records (from formal courses to more informal learning). This will
enable management information to be provided on training undertaken, value for
money/ return on investment and key performance indicators e.g. number of
training days/ cost.

Appendix 1: Service Learning & Development Needs (part of the Service
Planning process)
Appendix 2: Individual Learning Plan (part of the Personal Development Review
process)
Appendix 3: Training agreement and conditions (for training over £300)
Appendix 4: Immediate (summative) Learning evaluation
Appendix 5: Reflective (formative) learning evaluation
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Appendix 1:

Service Learning & Development Plan
2014/15

Service Action
to be delivered

Skills/ behaviours/
knowledge required

Employees requiring
development

How (e.g. formal
course/ workshop,
individual coaching,
shadowing others)

By when

Please send to the Human Resources Manager by 30 June to enable any needs across services to be identified & coordinated
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Appendix 2: Individual learning plan
TRAINING/LEARNING UNDERTAKEN LAST YEAR AND FUTURE TRAINING REQUESTS
•
•
•
•
•
•

This form must be completed by all Appraisers for every member of staff
Detail all training/development/learning received last year including on-the-job training, coaching, mentoring, seminars and other forms of
learning as well as formal courses and qualifications. This information is recorded centrally and can be provided to individuals on request.
Identify future training needs which are supported by you as line manager. Please provide as much detail as possible on cost, duration, dates,
etc, and how the training will be funded, ie. via Corporate Training Budget request, individual departmental budgets, or whether the training
can be done ‘in-house’ at no cost (see section 5.5).
All Corporate Training will be prioritised by CMT.
Heads of Service will determine priorities for service related training; the Human Resources Manager the priorities for Vocational Training
Where no training has been undertaken or is requested, please state ‘none’

Name of Appraisee

Appraiser:

Training/Learning
received last year

Training/Development
requested for next year

Department:

Section:

Cost or estimate of cost

How funded?
Corporate Training
Budget
request/Departmental
Budgets/In-house/FOC

Date:

PLEASE RETURN ALL TRAINING FORMS TO HUMAN RESOURCES OR EMAIL TO: training@derbyshiredales.gov.uk
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Appendix 3: Training agreement and conditions
APPLICATION FOR VOCATIONAL POST ENTRY TRAINING (PET)
Application for approval to attend a course of training resulting in a professional, technical or vocational
qualification. An application should be completed for each year of the course.
All Vocational/PET applications should be supported by the employee’s Head of Service and reflect the
training needs of the individual, as specified at their Personal Development Review and help their
section/work area achieve its business objectives.
Full Name:

……………………………………..

Service: ……………..……….…………….

Job Title:

……………………………………..

Team: ………………….……………

Current qualifications, dates undertaken, whether supported financially and by whom: ………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………………………………..…………………
…………………………………………………………………………………………………………….………………
Post Entry Training Details
Full Title of Proposed Course, details and venue: ………………………………………………………………..…
……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….…….
…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..…
Course dates: ……………………….…………………………. Stage, level, year: ……………….…………….…
Annual Costs:

*see note overleaf

Support Required: (tick all that apply)
£
Block Release
Part-time day
Evening only
Distance Learning
E-learning
Other (please state)

Course Fee
Registration Fee
Examination Fee
Assessment Fees
Certificate Fees
Other (please state)
Total
(Professional/membership fees will not be paid)

Type of Support Applied for: (tick all that apply)
Financial Assistance
Time off with Pay

Time off without pay
Time off for examinations only
Other (please state)

Information in support of your application: (continue on a separate sheet if necessary)
…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………
………………………………………………………………….………………..
Manager/Head of Service Support:
This training will meet Corporate/Service objectives by: (continue on a separate sheet if necessary)
…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………..…………………………………………………………….
Signed
Employee: …………………………………………………………….
Manager: …………………………………

Chief Officer: ………………………………. Date: ……………………
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PLEASE READ THE COUNCIL’S DOCUMENT “TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE FOR
VOCATIONAL/POST ENTRY TRAINING AND EDUCATION” VERY CAREFULLY BEFORE COMPLETING THIS
FORM.
COURSE TITLE: ……………………………………………………………………
I, ………………………………………………… hereby apply for grant assistance under the Council’s Vocational/ Post
Entry Training Scheme.
1.

I confirm that I have read the Council’s document “Terms and Conditions upon which Financial Assistance
for Vocational/Post Entry Training and Education will be granted” (hereinafter called the Terms and
Conditions) a copy of which is annexed hereto and agree to be bound by it.

2.

I accept that I will be required to repay the financial assistance granted to me using the sliding scale
indicated in section 6 if I leave the employment of Derbyshire Dales District Council within a period of two
years from (see exemptions in section 7 of Terms and Conditions):
the date on which the qualification, for which assistance has been given, is obtained, always
providing there is a post available for me requiring the qualification which I have secured; or
the date of the examination for which assistance was last given if I fail to take or pass the
examination

3.

I accept that I will be required to repay the financial assistance granted to me in the event that I fail to sit for
an examination within a reasonable period, fail to show satisfactory progress in my studies, discontinue or
fail to attend my course.

4.

I accept that the council will withdraw the facilities granted to me under the Scheme where I fail to
a)
b)
c)
d)

sit for an examination or
fail to attend or complete the course
pass an examination or
make progress in my studies

where such failure is attributable to a lack of diligence or effort on my part.
5.

I hereby authorise the council to deduct any sums I am required to repay to the Council under this scheme
from any monies due to me from the Council whether by way of salary or otherwise.

6.

I am entitled to study leave of half a day only where I am required to sit an externally assessed examination.

7.

Repayment Scales:
Terminating your employment with Derbyshire Dales District Council within:
0 – 1 year of the confirmation of the qualification – 100% payback
I year- 18 months of the confirmation of the qualification – 50% payback
18 months to 2 years of confirmation of the qualification – 25% payback
Repayment will be based on the course fees, registration fees and examination fees.

Important
* Employees should ensure that the cost section is filled in accurately to ensure sufficient funding
is available to complete the training. Any additional amount required which is not budgeted for
MAY NOT be funded by the Council if the Training Budgets have been fully allocated.

Signed: ………………………………………………………………………..… Date: ……………………………………
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VOCATIONAL/ POST ENTRY TRAINING AND EDUCATION
Terms and Conditions upon which Financial Assistance for
Vocational/Post Entry Training and Education will be granted
1.

The term vocational or post entry training” covers study leading to a qualification including a parttime day course, study by attendance at evening classes, private study and study by
correspondence courses.

2.

Grants of 50% are paid towards expenses (as outlined in 3 below) that are incurred on approved
courses or study appropriate to the field of work on which the employee is engaged. Approval of
courses proposed should be obtained from the Head of Service.

3.

The expenses ranking for grant are:
i) All prescribed course fees (Students should note that the Council does not pay membership
or registration fees for professional bodies).
ii)

The cost of any practical training which is a condition precedent to entry to the examination.

iii) The examination entry fee.
iv) The cost of borrowing or, if this is not possible, the cost of purchasing apparatus and other
equipment which the student is required to provide by the authority conducting the course.
Any such items purchased will remain the property of the District Council. Prior authorisation
must be obtained via the Departmental Training Representative.
v)

The cost of text books which the authority conducting the course require a student to obtain
and which are not available within the Authority, at the Public Library, the National Central
Library, Special Libraries, and other sources (claims for books not in the list of books
prescribed by the course authority will be disallowed).
Any books purchased under the scheme will remain the property of the District Council and
must be handed to the departmental Training Representative on completion of the course.
Prior authorisation must be obtained via Human Resources.

vi) No subsistence or travel allowances are made in respect of attendance at evening classes.
4.

If necessary, and if justified, grants are paid on second (but not subsequent) attempts at
examinations. Where a second attempt at a qualification is required the Chief Executive must
have a recommendation from the employee’s Head of Service, and, if required by the Chief
Executive, an official report from the College Lecturer stating the circumstances.

5.

Grants are paid as soon as practicable after expenditure has been incurred, or when the
employee has satisfactorily completed the part of the course for which a claim is made. Claims
must be accompanied by receipted accounts to support items where appropriate. A
separate application for assistance should be submitted in respect of each part or stage of the
appropriate qualification.

6.

Where an employee leaves the service of the District Council within a period of two years after
obtaining an appropriate qualification (or part thereof) or within two years of receiving assistance
under the scheme the arrangements indicated in relation to any post-entry training grant shall
apply (see exemptions below):
The employee will be required to repay the post entry training grant that has been made in
respect of the whole of the grant assistance given for a particular course/qualification which
has been undertaken or obtained in the preceding two year period on a sliding scale as
follows:
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Terminating your employment with Derbyshire Dales District Council within:
0 – 1 year of the confirmation of the qualification – 100% payback
1 year to 18 months of the confirmation of the qualification- 50% payback
18 months to 2 years of the confirmation of the qualification – 25%
payback
Repayment will be based on the course fees, registration fees and examination fees
7.

Exemptions
a) Training courses that are deemed to be of direct benefit to the Council, and of limited benefit to
the individual in terms of potential career advancement, will be exempt from the requirement to
enter into the Council's Training Agreement. Such Courses will currently include:
Sign Language
ASA Assistant Disability Tutor Training
GP Referral Training
Swimming Pool Plant Maintenance
It is accepted that the number of training courses in the above list will increase as further
courses are identified as fitting this category.
b) Short courses with a total cost not exceeding £300.
c) Other courses may be exempted at the discretion of the Human Resources Manager with the
agreement of the Head of Service.

8.

Where an employee fails to complete an approved course of training and or fails the
examinations, the Chief Executive in consultation with the employee’s Head of Service, and after
receiving a written report from the employee’s tutor, must be satisfied that the failure is not due to
any lack of diligence or effort on the part of the employee, otherwise repayment in full of the
training grant given shall be required in respect of that particular qualification.

9.

Where the employee is required to make any repayments of grant assistance under this scheme,
the Council shall be at liberty to deduct the same or any part thereof from any payments due from
the Council to the employee whether by way of salary or otherwise.

10.

Where repayment of financial assistance is required under this scheme this shall not include
salary paid in respect of time spent at approved courses of study.

DU/2014
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Appendix 4: DERBYSHIRE DALES DISTRICT COUNCIL
Summative Corporate Training Evaluation Form
In order to ensure that the training you receive is high quality and of relevance to you and your job,
please complete this evaluation form as frankly and as fully as possible.
Course Title:
Facilitator:

Date:

Name:

Job Title:

Department:

SCP Range:

1. Did you receive a pre-course briefing/explanation/discussion from your manager?
No

Yes

If yes, please indicate the extent to which the briefing helped your understanding why you were
on the course and how this would help with your job:
1 little/no help ………………..… 5 great help
1

2

3

4

5

2. What were the objectives of this training/development and to what extent do you feel the
objectives were met (1 not met at all ……..5 fully met)?

List the Objectives

Not met …………………….. Fully met

i.

1

2

3

4

5

ii.

1

2

3

4

5

iii.

1

2

3

4

5

iv.

1

2

3

4

5

3. Please indicate the practical relevance
of the course to you and your job.

1

2

3

4

5

4. How useful were the following training methods in the development of your knowledge
and skills? (as applicable)
1 no use ……………………….. 5 great use
Workshops/break out sessions
Trainer input sessions
Practical exercises
Role plays
Case Studies
Handouts
Other
____________________
(please state)

137

1
1
1
1
1
1
1

2
2
2
2
2
2
2

3
3
3
3
3
3
3

4
4
4
4
4
4
4

5
5
5
5
5
5
5

5. Please comment on the quality of your trainer in the development of your knowledge
and skills.
1 low quality ………………….. 5 high quality
Appropriate pace
Knowledgeable
Creating interest
Involving the group
Other
____________________
(please state)

1
1
1
1
1

2
2
2
2
2

3
3
3
3
3

4
4
4
4
4

5
5
5
5
5

6. Please comment on the quality of the facilities and administration (as applicable).
1 low quality ………….……….. 5 high quality
Timing of joining instructions
Adequacy of joining instructions
Training Room/facilities
Location
Catering
Timing/length of course
Other
____________________
(please state)

1
1
1
1
1
1
1

2
2
2
2
2
2
2

3
3
3
3
3
3
3

4
4
4
4
4
4
4

5
5
5
5
5
5
5

7. Was anything not included in the training that you feel should have been included?

________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________
8. Please add any comments which may help us to improve the quality of the training
course e.g. in terms of meeting your expectations, making the programme more
interesting or relevant.

________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________
9. Would you recommend this training for other employees?

Thank you for completing this evaluation, please hand in at the end of your training session or
return to Human Resources, Town Hall, Matlock.
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Appendix 5:

Reflective Learning &
Development Evaluation

It is good practise to reflect back on learning several months /a year
afterwards. This enables participants and the Council to consider what
difference the learning has made and if the investment was good value for
money.
Please complete as much as you can and this evaluation and return to Liz Aris,
Human Resources Officer.

Name
Learning
undertaken (event or
course name)

Dates

What were the stated learning
objectives/ outcomes?

What are the key messages
that have stayed with you/
changed what you do?

What was missing from the
learning?
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Reflecting back on the
learning, what are you now
doing differently as a result?
e.g.
•
•
•
•
•
•

Changed way of
working/ improved
service
Improved customer
service
Stopped doing
something
Started new service
Work differently/ better
with colleagues
Happier/ more
confidence

Value for money- what was
the cost of the learning v
savings or new services
provided as a result?
e.g.
•
•

•

What direct savings
have you made or
what is an approximate
value of more efficient/
effective ways of
working
What new services are
you offering
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Annex 2: Equality Impact Assessment Summary of key issues and actions taken in the final draft of the
proposed policy
Summary of the key issues resulting from the equality impact assessment and any measures identified to minimise or remove any adverse impact
and promote equality of opportunity?
Protected Key Issues:
Actions / Comments:
Group:
All

a)

Policy advises managers to ensure equality of
opportunity is promoted when identifying training needs
and in the provision of training and development activity
and that no discrimination, direct or indirect occurs.
However, guidance to managers could be more specific
to assist implementation.

a)

Promote better understanding amongst managers of ways to promote equality
of opportunity when implementing Learning & Development Policy – Action:
include within planned Equality & Diversity training for managers (general
action relevant to other groups)

Age

b) Learning to be made available to all staff irrespective of
length of service or age

b)

Policy to advocate ‘lifelong learning’

Disability

c)

c)

To add to the policy equality guidance to managers when considering learning
needs and the type of delivery managers will consider the access needs of
staff with disabilities - participant joining instructions will seek individual access
needs i.e. physical access to locations/ hearing loops etc, materials (e.g. large
formats) and individual preferred learning styles

Sex

d) Policy advises managers to ensure equality of
opportunity is promoted when identifying training needs
and in the provision of training and development activity
and that no discrimination, direct or indirect occurs.
However, guidance to managers could be more specific
to assist implementation.

d) To add to the policy equality guidance to managers when considering learning
needs and the type of delivery managers will consider the needs of staff with
dependents in case they are unable to attend full day events or those requiring
overnight stays to determine alternatives

Pregnancy
&
Maternity

e)

e)

Policy advises managers to ensure equality of
opportunity is promoted when identifying training needs
and in the provision of training and development activity
and that no discrimination, direct or indirect occurs.
However, guidance to managers could be more specific
to assist implementation.

Under the policy, a transsexual employee will not be
treated less favourably than they would be treated if
absent due to illness or injury. Absence related to gender
reassignment can be counted as sick leave and count
towards the triggers or it could be taken as unpaid leave
if the employee wishes
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To add to the policy equality guidance to managers to ensure that women on
pregnancy / maternity leave are considered and engaged in forward planning
of learning activity and offered the opportunity of KIT days to attend courses
which are rarely offered and fall during maternity leave

Religion or
Belief

f)

People in
rural areas

g) Consideration should be given to ability to access
training in locations away from the normal place of work.

g) To add to the policy equality guidance to managers when considering learning
needs and the type of delivery managers will consider the needs of staff to
travel to locations away from their normal base/ reconsider the location if it
causes access issues

h) Changing Council support to vocational learning to 50%
to enable more staff to access support within budget
available

h) To monitor that this does not become a disincentive to some staff particularly
those on lower incomes

Policy advises managers to ensure equality of
opportunity is promoted when identifying training needs
and in the provision of training and development activity
and that no discrimination, direct or indirect occurs.
However, guidance to managers could be more specific
to assist implementation

f)

To add to the policy equality guidance to managers when considering learning
needs and the type of delivery managers will consider the needs of staff with
particular dietary requirements or preferences not to work on religious days.

The HR Manager and CMT will monitor implementation of the policy.

From the information gathered above, does the policy, practice, service or function discriminate (either directly or indirectly) against any protected
groups? Explain why?
No. The draft policy takes account of the Equality Duty and seeks to apply a fair and consistent approach to providing learning and development opportunities
for staff across the council, taking account of different needs. The policy is not considered discriminatory.

Do you think this policy, practice, service or function should proceed to full EIA? Explain why
The full EIA process includes a stakeholder day to gain views on any key issues and the preparation of an action plan to address them.

No. District Council staff and local Trade Union representatives and Members on JCG have been consulted on the proposed policy and the EIA has identified the
main equalities issues ahead of consideration by the Council’s Corporate Committee. It is not considered that a further stakeholder day will add to the
information already available.
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NOT CONFIDENTIAL – For Public Release

Item No. 12

CORPORATE COMMITTEE
18 September 2014
Report of the Chief Executive
_________________________________________________________________________

EMPLOYEE SURVEY/INVESTORS IN PEOPLE ACTION PLAN 2014
SUMMARY
This report details an Employee Survey/Investors in People Action Plan resulting from
employee feedback from the employee survey focus groups in November and December
2013 and through the Investors in People assessment in January and April 2014.
The proposed action plan has been developed with the Employee Group and is supported by
Corporate Management Team.
RECOMMENDATIONS
1.

That the Employee Survey/Investors in People Action Plan is approved and that
progress is monitored and reviewed by the Employee Group.

2.

That the delivery of the action plan is measured by the employee survey in 2015.

3.

That future full employee surveys are done every 2 years, with short topic based ‘mini
surveys’ in between.

WARDS AFFECTED
All
STRATEGIC LINK
An Employee Survey/Investors in People Action Plan and the change to how we survey staff
both support the Districts Council’s core value of ‘valuing our employees’.
__________________________________________________________________________
1

BACKGROUND

1.1

One way of demonstrating the core value of ‘valuing our employees’, is to undertake
an employee survey in order to seek employee opinions about the council and their
employment (including their terms and conditions, training opportunities and
management leadership).

1.2

In previous years, the survey results have informed the development of an action
plan. The plan has been determined by Corporate Management Team and monitored
by the Employee Group.

1.3

Experience has shown that year on year the action plans have been similar. It is
believed that this is probably because the survey has been done annually with little
time in between to make and see improvements before the next survey was due.
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1.4

As a result a different approach has been taken following the 2013 survey. In order to
engage with staff and understand what was behind the survey results and to seek
ideas for improvement, staff focus groups were undertaken.

1.5

4 focus groups (1 at Northwood Depot, 1 at Wirksworth Leisure Centre and 2 at the
Town Hall) were arranged in November and December 2013. Employees were asked
to volunteer and 36 took part.

1.6

The draft action plan was considered at Joint Consultative Group (JCG) on 17 July
and JCG resolved to recommend to Corporate Committee that the action plan be
approved.

2

EMPLOYEE SURVEY RESULTS

2.1

The survey was conducted by an independent external provider. In 2013, 50%
(195/390) of employees took part. This compares favourably with 42% in 2012 and
44% in 2011. Of those who took part, 50% were based at the Town Hall, 29% in
Leisure Centres, 5% at the Harrison Way Depot, 1% from the Tourist Information
Centres, 1% First Stop Shops and 5% ‘other’. Across organisations, a 50% response
rate for this type of survey is a good response rate, all be it individual employers (and
the District Council) may wish for more staff to engage in their staff survey.

2.2

Areas where employees felt very positive (i.e. scoring over 60% satisfaction) were
• That Derbyshire Dales is a successful council (90%)
• With District Council as an employer (71%)
• That employees speak highly of the District Council to other people (67%)
• Satisfied with their job (70%) and their contribution to service provision (85%)
• Satisfied with family friendly working arrangements (76%)
• Employees like to be kept informed by StaffMATTERS (67%) and dalesMATTERS
(70%) and email (79%) and the intranet/dalesNET (62%)
• That team (70%) and 121 meetings are useful (68%), that employees like core
briefings (68%) and there’s reasonably effective communication between employees
and their manager (64%)
• Employees feel well managed (69%) and receive the support and guidance they
need from their manager (63%)
• 82% of employees had also had a Personal Development Interview/appraisal in the
last 12 months and 61% had discussed their training needs
• 68% of employees feel we follow the equality policy and 68% felt that the recruitment
& selection procedures are fair. 82% felt that they are treated with dignity and respect
by colleagues. 78% understood how equalities issues affect their role and 75% felt
that Council ensures that residents have equal access to services.
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2.3

Areas were employees felt less satisfied (scoring less than 50%) and therefore the
areas discussed at the Focus Groups were

3

a) Improving management of staff as
• 43% of respondents felt valued
• 48% felt pay was fair
• 48% felt opportunities for development & training were very or fairly good
• 47% felt supported by their managers/supervisors
• 43% felt recognised for good work
• 49% felt their manager motivated them
• 44% felt consulted
• 46% felt satisfied that poor performance is recognised and dealt with and
• 44% felt their manager provided useful and regular feedback on performance.
b) Improving communication as
Notice boards - 42% felt they were effective means of communication
Seminars/workshops on specific topics - 44%
Grapevine -42%
There is effective communication between departments - 23%
Overall I feel well informed - 48%.
c) Improving Chief Officer Communication
How what is happening in the council affects me and my work - 43%
Acts on the feedback they receive - 49%
Listens to employees - 48%
Communicates well - 44%

4

PROPOSED ACTION PLAN

4.1

Taking the outputs of the focus groups an action plan has been developed by the
Employee Group.

4.2

The action plan has been considered and supported by Corporate Management
Team.

4.3

The 3 yearly Investors in People assessment started in January and completed in
April also provided further employee feedback. Given the timing so close to the focus
groups, it felt appropriate to have improvement plan covering both the employee
survey and the Investors in People actions.

4.4

The Employee Survey/Investors in People Action Plan (attached at appendix A) is
now ready to be formally adopted and implemented. It will be ‘owned’ by the
Employee Group, who will monitor and review its implementation.

4.5

That the impact of the improvement actions will be measured in the next Employee
Survey in 2015.

4.6

It is advocated that instead of an annual employee survey, that we invest more time in
implementing actions and allowing time for changes to be made and recognised. Like
other partner Councils, it is proposed that the employee survey will be done every 2
years (from June 2015).
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4.7

Doing the survey every 2 years will enable the cost of the survey to be spread
enabling the survey to be done electronically and analysed by the external
independent survey provider. This will also save the cost of officer time as analysis of
the ‘raw data’ from past surveys has been completed in house together with the fact
that one post responsible has now been disestablished. The resulting reports will be
turned round quicker and will be easier for employees to understand as they will be
produced to survey industry standards.

4.8

Staff in the focus groups also felt that if the full Employee Survey is done every 2
years, it will enable instant/ mini surveys on specific topics to be done as and when
required.

4.9

Finally, there was feedback at the focus groups that some staff felt that some
questions were ambiguous. For example, some employees understood the term ‘chief
officers’, to be Corporate Management Team, others thought it was the Head of
Service and others the Chief Executive and Directors. Some work will therefore be
done on question design before the next survey.

5

RISK ASSESSMENT
Legal
There are no legal risks arising directly as a result of this report.
Financial
There are no legal risks arising directly as a result of this report.

6

OTHER CONSIDERATIONS
In preparing this report, the relevance of the following factors has also been
considered: prevention of crime and disorder, equalities, environmental, climate
change, health, human rights, personnel and property.

7

CONTACT INFORMATION
Deborah Unwin, Human Resources Manager
Deborah.unwin@derbyshiredales.gov.uk or telephone 01629 761364

8

BACKGROUND PAPERS
Investors in People Report

9

ATTACHMENTS
Appendix A: Employee Survey/Investors in People Action Plan 2014
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APPENDIX 1: Proposed staff survey/ Investors in people action planImprovement themes
1. Culture/
Management style

Staff survey feedback &
IIP recommended actions
* Review manager capabilities for current
and future needs

Improvement Action

By whom/ by when

* CMT team development programme; plus
defining & communicating a framework for
leadership i.e. capability, knowledge, skills,
behaviours with preferred management style,
360 feedback and consistency e.g. in
implementing terms and conditions

CMT with HR
Manager
March 15

* Build a continuous improvement culture,
motivating staff, and consulting with them
and developing ‘agile working’

* Continuous improvement by consulting staff
via focus groups, celebrating achievements in
staff matters, feeding back on delivery of this
plan- ‘you said we did’

Staff and manager to
feed info to
Communications
Immediate

* Review homeworking policy and lone
working to reflect review of the agile working
pilot

* Enabling employees to feel valued,
with regular feedback on performance,
dealing with poor performance, and
providing opportunities for training &
development

* Staff/ managers to have regular meetings
(individual & team) to discuss achievements
& issues/ concerns but also
* discuss different ways to access learning,
(e.g. consider team building activities/away
days to look at skills matrix/ using existing
skills e.g. train the trainer, plan for future skills
development; feedback outcome of on
training requests
*Support to managers to address
underperformance via Capability Procedure
and Disciplinary Procedure
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All managers and staff
Immediate
CMT/HR Manager in
corporate L&D Plan
March 15

HR & Managers
Immediate

* Align service, team and individual
performance plans to the new organisation
structure and reviewing core values to
ensure they are relevant for the future

2. Communication

* To align individual/ team work plans with
new service areas
*Review organisation’s core values with
associated behaviours

CMT with Policy
Manager
Spring 2014
CMT with HR
Manager and all staff
Summer 2014

*Improve depot procurement

*Operations manager to have authorisation/
set up accounts for frequent purchases

New procurement
team Summer14

* Listening to employees and
communicating well, acting on feedback
received

* Senior Managers (Chief Executive,
Directors and Heads of Service) to be more
visible (town Hall but also ABC, depot and
leisure centres) e.g. core briefs led by
different senior managers, with 2 way
communication to develop ideas and be
available afterwards for informal chats

CMT
Immediate

*Improve attendance at core briefs

*Choosing best time for all staff at Depot and
ABC to attend

CMT
immediate

* Discussing what’s happening in the
council, sharing organisation performance
and future plans/service reviews and how it
affects staff with staff having input (work
and job security)

*Staff to feed in ideas and suggestions via
their Employee Group reps
* In team meetings

Staff
immediate

* Consistency and focus in messages
cascaded from CMT with direct
communication from managers and less
reliance on the grapevine or notice boards
and improved communication between
services

* Senior managers to attend team meetings
CMT
quarterly/ 6 monthly; to recognise that change Immediate
can be stressful so communicate with, involve
and support staff

148

3. Employee
recognition

* Immediate cascade of CMT discussions
*With feedback from staff with ideas

CMT & team
managers
Staff
immediate

* In leisure & depot have protocol for notice
boards and individual allocated to take
responsibility to maintain/update notice
boards

Duty Manager/G&G
Supervisors
immediate

*More open plan offices/ staff room/

*To consider in accommodation review

CMT
Summer 14

*Improve future staff surveys

*Consider frequency of main survey- every 2
years, with mini surveys on specific issues as
a required in between. Clearer wording in
future surveys (e.g. who chief officers are)
and staff input to questions and feedback on
improvements
* Develop recognition strategy to motivate
people and improve performance linked to
the values
* Revise PDS process to improve
understanding & recognition of people’s
contribution

HR Manager with
CMT & Employee
Group
March 15

* Showcase work of teams- lunchtime talks,
staff matters and talk to staff who may feel
underpaid in comparison with colleagues but
aren’t sure what they do discuss with
manager in PDS

Staff and managers
Summer 2014

* Recognition for good work

* lunch time get togethers
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Human Resources
Manager with
Employee Group sub
group
March 15

4. Personal
development review

5. Learning

*Reports to CMT/ Committee- staff to be
present at meetings to hear discussion/ gain
recognition/ feedback for work involved in

CMT/ Report
contributors
Immediate

* Ensure everyone has a PDS

* Plan and deliver PDS with objectives linked
to Performance/Service Plans by end April
(unless agreed alternative due to operational
need) each year, with managers leading on
development needs and making it happen

Heads of ServiceJanuary annually

* Everyone to have a personal development
plan to equip staff to achieve council’s
objectives & personal development

* Ensure managers are confident and
competent to hold effective PDS’, publish
training opportunities and training resources
(e.g. how to guides) on the intranet

Heads of Service with
Human Resources
Manager
By winter 2014

* Create a learning and development policy
that communicates the principals,
responsibilities and guidelines for effective
learning & development

Create and implement a Learning &
Development Policy to include

Human Resources
Manager
By Summer 2014

* Develop a more formal way to evaluate
the impact of learning

- CMT strategic corporate learning &
development
- Service level and individual L&D planning
and
- evaluation tools
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NOT CONFIDENTIAL – For Public Release

Item No. 13

CORPORATE COMMITTEE
Thursday 18 September 2014
Report of the Chief Executive
_________________________________________________________________________

EMPLOYER PENSION DISCRETIONS IN THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT
PENSIONS SCHEME
SUMMARY
Derbyshire County Council as the District Council’s administrator of the local government
pension scheme has requested that the District Council determines a number of
discretionary policies allowed in the scheme.
This report proposes that the District Council adopts the same discretions that Derbyshire
County Council has adopted as an employer. There are no foreseen reasons to vary from
the lead given by the County Council. We have been advised that to vary from their lead
would make administration of the scheme more complex and costly.
RECOMMENDATION
1. That the District Council adopts the pension discretion policies in appendix 1.
2. That these discretions are confirmed to Derbyshire County Council as our Local
Government Pension Scheme Administrator.
WARDS AFFECTED
All
STRATEGIC LINK
Determining the pension scheme discretions supports the Districts Council’s corporate value
of fairness and equality and also valuing our employees.

1

BACKGROUND

1.1

From time to time, the Local Government Pension Scheme requires administering
authorities to confirm their policies on a number of discretionary scheme regulations.

1.2

The District Council have previously determined discretionary pension policies in 1997
with regard to Early Retirement and in 2007 with regard to Flexible Retirement.

1.3

Once the discretions in appendix 1 are agreed, it is proposed that the District Council
retain delegation to the Corporate Committee to determine pension matters and any
cases arising. This retains the previous position.

151

2

REPORT

2.1

Derbyshire County Council as an employer has recently confirmed their updated
pension discretions at their Pensions and Investment Committee.

2.2

As an Administrator of the Local Government Pension Scheme, the County Council
has requested that all employers for whom they administer the scheme determine and
confirm their own discretions. County Council advice, for ease of administration and to
reduce costs, is that scheme employers follow their lead and adopt the same
discretion policies.

2.3

There appears to be no reason why the District Council should wish to vary from the
discretion policies determined by the County Council. The only difference is that the
District Council’s own Corporate Committee determines any cases arising from these
policies.

2.4

The District Council is therefore requested to determine 15 discretions in appendix 1.
County Council pensions advise that of the 15, only one discretion is entirely new i.e.
discretion a) as this results from the introduction of CARE 2014 (the career average
pension scheme). The other discretions are already in place but we are being asked
to reconsider them now due to the recent changes in state retirement age and the
change in recent years that benefits previously payable at 50 are now payable from
55. Discretion g) enables an increased upper limit but the advice is not to grant
additional pension.

2.5

For clarity the up to date County Council guidance on Voluntary Early Retirement and
Flexible Retirement are attached as appendix 2 of this report so that up to date
guidance can be posted on our intranet.

2.6

To help determine these discretions, the following guidance has been given by
Derbyshire County Council.

2.5.1 Discretions in relation to post 31 March 2014 active members (excluding
councillor members) and post 31 March 2014 leavers (excluding councillor members)

a) Additional Pension Contribution - Regulation 16(2)(e) and 16(4)(d)
The Corporate Committee is asked to decide whether, how much, and in what circumstances
to contribute to a shared cost Additional Pension Contribution (APC). An APC is payment of
pension contributions to cover a break in pensionable service. If the break in service is an
authorised break, for example, the ‘no pay period’ of maternity leave and the person opts to
pay for the break within 30 days from the end of the break, the shared cost APC
automatically applies. The shared cost is split two thirds employer, one third scheme
member. The Corporate Committee is delegated to consider a shared cost APC in
exceptional circumstances, where a person opts to pay for the break after 30 days up to a
period of 12 months, from the end of the break.
If the person opts to pay an APC to buy extra pension the shared cost option does not apply.
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b) Flexible Retirement - Regulation 30(6) and Transitional Provision Regulation
11(2)
The Corporate Committee is asked to decide whether all or some pension benefits can be
paid if an employee reduces their hours or grade on flexible retirement.
Approval is sought that all pension benefits can be paid.

c) Flexible Retirement (Routine Cases) - Regulation 30(8)
The Corporate Committee is asked to decide whether to waive, in whole or in part, actuarial
reduction on pension benefits paid on flexible retirement.
Approval is sought not waive the actuarial reduction for routine flexible retirements.

d) Retirement at age 55 - Regulation 30(8)
The Corporate Committee is asked to decide whether to waive, in whole or in part, actuarial
reduction on benefits which a member voluntarily draws before normal pension age.
Approval is sought not to waive any actuarial reduction on benefits which a member
voluntarily draws before normal pension age.

e) Compassionate Grounds - Transitional Provision 3(1), Transitional Provision
Schedule 2, paragraph 2(1) and 2(2), B30(5) and B30A(5)
The Corporate Committee is asked to decide whether to waive any actuarial reduction on pre
and/or post April 2014 benefits paid early on compassionate grounds.
Approval is sought to continue to take cases to the Corporate Committee in order for it to
consider whether an actuarial reduction is appropriate.

f) ‘Switching on’ the Rule of 85 - Transitional Provision Schedule 2, paragraph
2(2)
The Corporate Committee is asked to decide whether, to "switch on" the 85 year rule for a
member voluntarily drawing benefits on or after age 55 and before age 60.
Approval is sought not to switch on the 85 year rule for a member voluntarily drawing
benefits on or after age 55 and before age 60.

g) Additional Pension - Regulation 31
The Corporate Committee is asked to decide whether to grant additional pension to an active
member or within six months of ceasing to be an active member by reason of redundancy or
business efficiency (by up to £6,500 p.a.)
Approval is sought not to grant any additional pension to an active member or within six
months of ceasing to be an active member by reason of redundancy or business efficiency.
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2.5.2

Discretions in relation to scheme members (excluding councillor members) who
ceased active membership on or after 1 April 2008 and before 1 April 2014

h) Augmented Pension - Regulation B12
The Corporate Committee is asked to decide whether, for a member leaving on the grounds
of redundancy or business efficiency on or before 31 March 2014, to augment membership
(by up to 10 years). This resolution has to be made within six months of leaving, so
effectively this discretion is spent after 30 September 2014.
Approval is sought not to grant any augmentation to a member leaving on the grounds or
redundancy or business efficiency.

i) Early Payment of Deferred Benefits - Regulation B30(2)
The Corporate Committee is asked to decide whether to grant application for the early
payment of deferred benefits on or after age 55 and before age 60.
Approval is sought to only grant application for the early release of deferred benefits on or
after age 55 and before age 60 where there is no cost to the council.

j) Compassionate Grounds - Regulation 30(5)
The Corporate Committee is asked to decide whether to waive, on compassionate grounds,
the actuarial reduction applied to deferred benefits paid early under B30
Approval is sought to continue to take cases to Corporate Committee in order for it to
consider whether an actuarial reduction is appropriate.

k) Suspended Tier 3 Ill Health - Regulation 30A(3)
The Corporate Committee is asked to decide whether to grant an application for early
payment of a suspended tier three ill health pension on or after age 55 and before age 60.
Approval was made to grant an application for early payment of a suspended tier three ill
health pension on or after age 55 and before age 60, where there is no cost to the council.

l) Compassionate Grounds - Regulation 30A(5)
The Corporate Committee is asked to decide whether to waive, on compassionate grounds,
the actuarial reduction applied to benefits paid early under B30A.
Approval is sought to continue to take cases to Corporate Committee in order for it to
consider whether an actuarial reduction is appropriate.

2.5.3

Discretions in relation to active councillor members and councillor members who
ceased active membership on or after 1 April 1998 and any other scheme members
who ceased active membership on or after 1 April 1998 and before 1 April 2008
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m) Early Payment - Regulation 31(2)
The Corporate Committee is asked to decide whether to grant application from a post 31
March 1998/pre 1 April 2008 leaver or from a councillor for early payment of benefits on or
after age 50/55 and before age 60.
Approval is sought to grant an application from a post 31 March 1998/pre 1 April 2008 leaver
or from a councillor for early payment of benefits on or after age 50/55 and before age 60,
where there is no cost to the council.

n) Compassionate Grounds - Regulation 31(5)
The Corporate Committee is asked to decide whether to waive, on compassionate grounds,
the actuarial reduction applied to benefits paid early for a post 31 March 1998/pre 1 April
2008 leaver or councillor leaver.
Approval is sought to continue to take cases to Corporate Committee in order for it to
consider whether an actuarial reduction is appropriate.

o) Optant Out Payments - Regulation 31(7)
The Corporate Committee is asked to decide whether councillor optants out and pre 1 April
2008 employee optant outs only get benefits paid from normal retirement date (NRD) if
employer agrees.
Approval is sought to allow councillor optants out and pre 1 April 2008 employee optant outs
to only get benefits paid from normal retirement date (NRD).

3

RISK ASSESSMENT
Legal
The proposed discretions recommended within the report seek to amend Regulations
underpinning the pension scheme to which the Council’s employees are contributors
and beneficiaries. The amendments seek to make the pension scheme more robust
and sustainable in the longer term. The legal risk is therefore low.
Financial
The pension discretion policies set out in this report provide a framework to ensure
that where there is likely to be an additional cost to the Council each case will be
referred to the Corporate Committee for determination, with costs and savings being
taken into account in determining the financial risk of each individual case. The
financial risk of this report is, therefore, assessed as low.

4

OTHER CONSIDERATIONS
In preparing this report, the relevance of the following factors has also been
considered: prevention of crime and disorder, equalities, environmental, climate
change, health, human rights, personnel and property.
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5

CONTACT INFORMATION
Deborah
Unwin,
Human
Resources
Manager;
Deborah.unwin@derbyshiredales.gov.uk, telephone 01629 761364

6

BACKGROUND PAPERS
None

7

ATTACHMENTS
Appendix 1: Pension discretions to be determined
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email:

Derbyshire County Council (DCC) pension discretions– the schedule below is to be read in conjunction with guidance found
at http://www.lgpsregs.org/index.php/guides/hr-guide-to-the-2014-scheme?showall=&start=20 and DCC Employers Discretions and Policies found at
http://www.derbyshire.gov.uk/working_for_us/pensions/governance/policy_statements/default.asp

Discretion

a) Whether, how much, and
in what circumstances to
contribute to a shared
cost APC scheme

b) Whether all or some
benefits can be paid if an
employee reduces their
hours or grade (flexible
retirement)
c) Whether to waive, in
whole or in part, actuarial
reduction on benefits paid
on flexible retirement
d) Whether to waive, in
whole or in part, actuarial
reduction on benefits
which a member
voluntarily draws before
normal pension age
e) Whether to waive any
actuarial reduction on pre
and/or post April 2014
benefits paid early on
compassionate grounds

Required to
Publish by
30/06/2014

Derbyshire County Council (DCC) Published
Discretion

Adopt DCC
discretion?
Yes/No

Published Discretion if Not
adopting DCC Discretion (attach
additional sheet if required)

Y

Policy is for Pensions and Investment
Committee to consider a shared cost APC in
exceptional circumstances, where a person
opts to pay for the break after 30 days up to a
period of 12 months, from the end of the
break. If the person opts to pay an APC to buy
extra pension the shared cost option does not
apply.

Y

Policy is for Corporate Committee
to consider a shared cost APC in
exceptional circumstances, where
a person opts to pay for the break
after 30 days up to a period of 12
months, from the end of the
break. If the person opts to pay an
APC to buy extra pension the
shared cost option does not apply.

R16(2)(e) &
R16(4)(d)

R30(6) &
TP11(2)

Y

Policy is that all pension benefits can be paid.

Y

R30(8)

Y

Policy is to not waive the actuarial reduction
for routine flexible retirements.

Y

R30(8)

Y

Policy is to not to waive any actuarial
reduction on benefits which a member
voluntarily draws before normal pension age.

Y

Y

Policy is to continue to take cases to Pensions
and Investment Committee in order for it to
consider whether an actuarial reduction is
appropriate.

Regulation

TP3(1), TPSch 2,
paras 2(1) and
2(2), B30(5) and
B30A(5)
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Y

Policy is to take cases to Corporate
Committee in order for it to
consider whether an actuarial
reduction is appropriate.

Discretion
Whether to “switch on”
the 85 year rule for a
member voluntarily
drawing benefits on or
after age 55 and before
age 60.
g) Whether to grant
additional pension to an
active member or within 6
months of ceasing to be
an active member by
reason of redundancy or
business efficiency (by up
to £6,500 p.a.)
h) Whether, for a member
leaving on the grounds of
redundancy or business
efficiency on or before
31st March 2014, to
augment membership (by
up to 10 years). The
resolution to do so would
have to be made within 6
months of the date of
leaving. Hence this
discretion is spent entirely
after 30th September
2014.
i) Whether to grant
application for early
payment of deferred
benefits on or after age 55
and before age 60

Regulation

Required to
Publish by
30/06/2014

Derbyshire County Council (DCC) Published
Discretion

Adopt DCC
discretion?
Yes/No

TPSch 2, paras
1(2) and 2(2)

Y

Policy is to not to switch on the 85 year rule
for a member voluntarily drawing benefits on
or after age 55 and before age 60.

Y

R31

Y

Policy is to not to grant any additional pension
to an active member or within six months of
ceasing to be an active member by reason of
redundancy or business efficiency.

Y

B12

Y

Policy is not to grant any augmentation to a
member leaving on the grounds or
redundancy or business efficiency.

Y

Y

Policy is to only grant application for the early
release of deferred benefits on or after age 55
and before age 60 where there is no cost to
the council.

Y

f)

B30(2)
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Published Discretion if Not
adopting DCC Discretion (attach
additional sheet if required)

Discretion
Whether to waive, on
compassionate grounds,
the actuarial reduction
applied to deferred
benefits paid early under
B30
k) Whether to grant an
application for early
payment of a suspended
tier 3 ill health pension on
or after age 55 and before
age 60
l) Whether to waive, on
compassionate grounds,
the actuarial reduction
applied to benefits paid
early under B30A
m) Grant application from a
post 31.3.98. / pre 1.4.08.
leaver or from a councillor
for early payment of
benefits on or after age
50/55 and before age 60
(see Note below)
n) Waive, on compassionate
grounds, the actuarial
reduction applied to
benefits paid early for a
post 31.3.98. / pre 1.4.08.
leaver or a councillor
leaver

Regulation

Required to
Publish by
30/06/2014

Derbyshire County Council (DCC) Published
Discretion

Adopt DCC
discretion?
Yes/No

Published Discretion if Not
adopting DCC Discretion (attach
additional sheet if required)

Y

Policy is to continue to take cases to Pensions
and Investments Committee in order for it to
consider whether an actuarial reduction is
appropriate.

Y

Policy is to take cases to Corporate
Committee in order for it to
consider whether an actuarial
reduction is appropriate.

Y

Policy is to grant an application for early
payment of a suspended tier three ill health
pension on or after age 55 and before age 60,
where there is no cost to the council.

Y

Y

Policy is to continue to take cases to Pensions
and Investments Committee in order for it to
consider whether an actuarial reduction is
appropriate.

Y

Y

Policy is to grant an application from a post 31
March 1998/pre 1 April 2008 leaver or from a
councillor for early payment of benefits on or
after age 50/55 and before age 60, where
there is no cost to the council.

Y

Y

Policy is to continue to take cases to Pensions
and Investments Committee in order for it to
consider whether an actuarial reduction is
appropriate.

j)

B30(5)

B30A(3)

B30A(5)

31(2)

31(5)
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Y

Policy is to take cases to Corporate
Committee in order for it to
consider whether an actuarial
reduction is appropriate.

Policy is to take cases to Corporate
Committee in order for it to
consider whether an actuarial
reduction is appropriate.

Discretion
o) Councillor optants out and
pre 1.4.08. employee
optants out only to get
benefits paid from NRD if
employer agrees

Regulation

31(7A)

Required to
Publish by
30/06/2014

Derbyshire County Council (DCC) Published
Discretion

Adopt DCC
discretion?
Yes/No

Y

Policy is to allow councillor optants out and
pre 1 April 2008 employee optant outs to only
get benefits paid from normal retirement date
(NRD).

y

Published Discretion if Not
adopting DCC Discretion (attach
additional sheet if required)

Please note that where an Employer does not wish to adopt Derbyshire County Council Discretions, it is possible to have discretions to review each case on a “case by case
basis”, however please be wary of the extra work involved if you have a large number of staff in reviewing each case individually and also of the risk of setting precedents.

Employer:
Name:

Signature:

Job Title:

Date:
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Appendix 2:

Policies for Voluntary Early Retirement (VER), Flexible Retirement
(Routine Cases) and Flexible Retirement (Workforce Reduction)

Voluntary Early Retirement (VER)
1. The VER Scheme will only be applied to those areas of employment where
the District Council wishes to reduce its workforce. Application of the Scheme
shall be solely at the District Council's discretion and confers no rights or
entitlements.
2. Employees must be aged 55 or over at the date of leaving, have at least
three months' service for pension purposes and contribute to the Local
Government Pension Scheme.
3. All applications will be subject to the approval of Corporate Management
Team.
4. The District Council may amend or withdraw the Scheme at any time after
giving 1 months’ notice.
5. An employee whose application for VER is accepted by the District Council
will be required to enter into a consensual agreement with the District Council
which will include mutual agreement as to the date of retirement. Retirement
will be on the grounds of business efficiency. The date of leaving must not be
later than the date the employee would have left had a period of contractual
notice been applicable.
7. The annual leave entitlement for the year is limited to that earned up to the
date of leaving and must be taken before leaving.
8. The Scheme provides for the immediate payment of an unreduced pension
and lump sum from the Local Government Pension Scheme. The cost of the
early payment (i.e. the Pension Fund shortfall) will be met by the District
Council.
9. The District Council will not make compensation payments under the VER
Scheme.
10. There is no right of appeal against the Corporate Management Team’s
decision not to allow an employee to take VER or the amounts payable under
the terms of the Scheme.

161

Flexible Retirement (Routine Cases)
The District Council can consent to a reduction in an employee's hours or
grade and consent to the release of pension benefits where the employee is
aged 55 and over.
For the purpose of this policy, requests for flexible retirement can be
categorised as follows:
•

•

•

Category one - Employee is age 60 or over - There is no cost to the
council as the employee is at or past their earliest retirement date. If
they do not meet the Rule of 85 (*1) their pension benefits will be
reduced to reflect early payment.
Category two - Employee is age 55 or over but less than 60 and does
not meet the Rule of 85 until on or after their 60th birthday. In this case
the regulations allow for the cost of the early payment of pension
benefits to be borne by the employee so as to avoid a pension fund
shortfall. The benefits are actuarially reduced to reflect the fact that
they are paid early.
Category three - Employee is age 55 or over but less than 60 and does
meet the Rule of 85 either at the date of flexible retirement or at a later
date that is before their 60th birthday. In this case the District Council
would have to meet the Pension Fund shortfall arising from the early
payment of pension benefits from the date when the Rule of 85 is met.

For those cases that fall within categories one and two above, the general
policy is to consent to the payment of benefits from the Local Government
Pension Scheme subject to a reduction of half of the employee's contractual
hours.
A reduction of less than half of the employee's contractual hours may be
considered:
i) in exceptional circumstances, and provided that this would also bring an
ongoing financial benefit to the District Council or
ii) where service delivery requires whole shifts to be worked.
The Corporate Management Team, taking account of HR, legal and financial
advice under the established process, makes the decision.
Where the benefits payable are reduced to reflect early payment the District
Council can agree to waive in whole or in part the reduction and pay the cost
to the pension fund. It is the policy, as a general rule, not to agree to this.
However, Corporate Committee will consider recommendations from
Corporate Management Team where it is considered that it would be in the
District Council’s interests to meet this cost.
For category three cases, as there would be a cost to the District Council, the
general policy is not to agree to the early release of pension benefits.
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However, where it is considered to be in the District Council’s interests, taking
into account all the relevant factors including the cost, the Corporate
Committee will consider recommendations of the Corporate Management
Team.
In every case the needs of the service must be paramount.
For a reduction in grade - the current policy does not provide for flexible
retirement in this situation. Further guidance will be formulated if the policy
needs to be extended to include this.

Flexible Retirement (Workforce Reductions) Scheme
The District Council can consent to a reduction in an employee's hours or
grade and consent to the release of pension benefits where the employee is
aged 55 and over.
The Flexible Retirement (Workforce Reductions) Scheme will only be applied
to those areas of employment where the Council wishes to reduce its
workforce. Application of the Scheme shall be solely at the Council's
discretion and confers no rights or entitlements.
Employees must be age 55 or over at the date of leaving, have at least three
months' service for pension purposes and contribute to the Local Government
Pension Scheme (LGPS).
All applications will be subject to the approval of the Corporate Management
Team, taking account of HR, legal and financial advice under the established
process.
In every case the needs of the service must be paramount and the application
of the Scheme affordable.
For the purpose of this Scheme, requests for flexible retirement can be
categorised as follows:
Category A - Where an employee is age 60 or over and past their earliest
retirement date at which unreduced LGPS benefits are payable, there is no
cost to the District Council.
Category B - Employee is age 55 or over but has not passed their earliest
retirement date at which unreduced LGPS benefits are payable. The District
Council may agree to flexible retirement and, in those cases where the
benefits are reduced, may waive the whole of any such reduction.
Under Category B, the cost of the Pension Fund shortfall and waiving a
reduction shall be met by the District Council and where Corporate
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Management Team support an application final approval will be given by
Corporate Committee given the potential cost of waiving the reduction.
As a general rule, a reduction of half of the employee's contractual hours is
required.
A reduction of less than half of the employee's contractual hours would only
be considered in exceptional circumstances and provided that this would bring
a significant financial benefit to the Council or where service delivery requires
whole shifts to be worked.
For a reduction in grade - the current policy does not provide for flexible
retirement in this situation. Further guidance may be formulated if the policy
needs to be extended to include this.
Appeals
There is no right to appeal against a request for a reduction in hours so as to
secure Flexible Retirement under the workforce reductions Scheme.

Increases in hours after taking flexible retirement
Where an employee has been allowed to reduce their hours for the purposes
of flexible retirement, the reduction will be permanent. No temporary
increases in hours will be permitted.
An employee who has reduced their hours and taken flexible retirement must
only be allowed to work additional hours or overtime in proportion to the level
that applied prior to the reduction in contractual hours. The aim is to prevent
employees compensating for a reduction in contractual hours by working
additional hours and overtime. The Corporate Management Team must
approve requests for additional hours and overtime in advance.
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NOT CONFIDENTIAL – For public release

Item No. 14

CORPORATE COMMITTEE
18th SEPTEMBER 2014
Report of the Head of Resources
__________________________________________________________________________

INTERNAL AUDIT REPORTS CONCLUDED TO DATE UNDER THE
2014/2015 OPERATIONAL AUDIT PLAN
SUMMARY
This report asks the Committee to consider the internal audit reports produced to date in
accordance with the internal audit reviews undertaken in compliance with the 2014/2015
Operational Audit Plan.
RECOMMENDATION
That the Committee note the findings and conclusions of the internal audit reviews.
WARDS AFFECTED
All wards.
STRATEGIC LINK
The internal audit reviews test and report on the effectiveness of internal control systems
within service functions and support the Council’s core values of providing value for money
and quality of service.

1

BACKGROUND
The current Operational Audit Plan was approved by Corporate Committee on 20
March 2014. It provides a framework by which service functions are reviewed to test
and report on the adequacy and effectiveness of risk management systems and the
internal control environment within the Council. This supports the Annual Governance
Statement by contributing to the economic, efficient and effective use of resources.

2

REPORT

2.1

Attached, as Appendix 1, is a summary of reports issued covering the period 1st April
2014 – 13th August 2014, for audits included in the 2014/15 Internal Audit Plan.

2.2

Reports are issued as Drafts with five working days being allowed for the submission
of any factual changes, after which time the report is designated as a Final Report.
Fifteen working days are allowed for the return of the Implementation Plan.

2.3

The Appendix shows for each report a summary of the Overall Audit Opinion of the
audit and the number of recommendations made / agreed where a full response has
been received. Appendix 1 also shows the number of recommendations analysed
between High, Medium and Low priority.
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2.4

The overall opinion column of Appendix 1 gives an assessment of the reliability of the
internal controls examined in accordance with the classifications shown in the
following table:
Control Level
Good

Definition
A few minor recommendations (if any).

Satisfactory
Marginal

Minimal risk; a few areas identified where changes would
be beneficial.
A number of areas have been identified for improvement.

Unsatisfactory

Unacceptable risks identified, changes should be made.

Unsound

Major risks identified; fundamental improvements are
required.

2.5

Six reports have been issued to date for the current financial year. Three reports were
issued with a good conclusion and three with a satisfactory conclusion. Eight
recommendations have been made, all of which have been accepted.

2.6

In respect of the audits being reported, it is confirmed that there were no issues
arising relating to fraud that need to be brought to the Committee’s attention.

3

RISK ASSESSMENT

3.1

Legal
Each review concludes with an assessment of the relevant risk. As no rule of law has
been breached the legal risk is therefore low.

3.2

Financial
There are no financial considerations arising from the report.

4

OTHER CONSIDERATIONS
In preparing this report, the relevance of the following factors has also been
considered: prevention of crime and disorder, equalities, environmental, climate
change, health, human rights, personnel and property.

5

CONTACT INFORMATION
Jenny Williams, Interim Head of the Internal Audit Consortium
(Jenny.Williams@chesterfield.gov.uk)

6

BACKGROUND PAPERS
None

7

ATTACHMENTS
None
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Appendix 1

DERBYSHIRE DALES DISTRICT COUNCIL
Internal Audit Consortium - Report to Corporate Committee
Summary of Internal Audit Reports Issued – 1st April 2014 to 13th August 2014
Report
Ref No.

Report Title

Scope and Objectives

Overall Opinion

Date
Report Issued

D001

D002

D003

D004

D005

D006

Gifts and Hospitality

To ensure that Gifts and
Hospitality are recorded,
declared and approved in
line with policy
Economic Development
To ensure there is a Strategy
in place that is being
monitored and reported on
Transport, Public
To review the controls and
Conveniences and Street procedures in place
Cleaning
Corporate Targets
To ensure that Corporate
targets are calculated
correctly and reported
accordingly
Parks and Recreation
To ensure all income is in
Grounds
line with fees and charges
and received promptly
Refuse Collection
To ensure that the contract is
being monitored and that the
payments made to the
contractor are correct
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Satisfactory

16/04/2014

Response
Due
9/05/2014

Good

8/08/2014

Satisfactory

Number of
Recommendations
Made Accepted
3M

3

N/A

0

0

2/05/2014

11/06/2014

3H

3

Satisfactory

2/7/2014

23/07/2014

2H

2

Good

22/07/2014

N/A

0

0

Good

22/07/2014

N/A

0

0

NOT CONFIDENTIAL – For public release

Item No. 15

CORPORATE COMMITTEE
18 SEPTEMBER 2014
Report of the Chief Executive
________________________________________________________________________

RISK MANAGEMENT – CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S ANNUAL REPORT
SUMMARY
The Council’s Risk Management Strategy requires the Chief Executive to report to Members,
by way of an annual report on the Council’s Risk Management arrangements and how Key
Strategic Risks are being managed. This report describes the processes and working
practices, which have been significantly developed following an extensive review and refresh
exercise of our current Risk Management provisions. This will ensure they continue to be
effective, timely and fit for purpose, providing the Council with the correct levels of insight
and support in relation to its risk exposure.
RECOMMENDATION
That the report be noted.
WARDS AFFECTED
Not applicable
STRATEGIC LINK
Effective Risk Management provisions enable significant risks to be identified, controlled and
monitored so contributing to the provision of excellent services.
__________________________________________________________________________________
1.0

BACKGROUND

1.1

The Council operates a risk management programme whereby risks associated with
the Corporate Plan and its Key Strategic Objectives and individual Service Plan Key
Actions are formally assessed.
The Council identifies risks at two levels:

1.2



Strategic Risks – These are the risks that will significantly impact the
Council in the delivery of its Strategic Objectives and Corporate Plan; and



Service Risks – These are the risk which will impact on the delivery of each
service at an operational level. Managing these risks will assist each Head
of Service in the delivery of their Service Plan objectives and key actions.

Relevant individuals meet on a quarterly basis to discuss the risks facing the Council
and the delivery of its objectives. Those risks highlighted during these sessions are
analysed, prioritised and further actions identified. These are captured within the
Service and Strategic Risk Registers.
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An essential part of the process involves ensuring all risks have clear ownership.
Service Managers are required to identify the key internal controls for each risk they
are responsible for and to identify mitigating controls. The risk management
methodology provides guidance for risks to be scored, enabling Officers to report risks
which may prevent them from achieving their required aims.
1.3

Risks are regularly reported to the Risk Continuity Group, who in turn reports to the
Corporate Management Team, ensuing that risks, risk management etc. are
challenged and reporting effectively.
Further guidance on the Council’s risk management processes and procedures can
be found in the Risk Management Policy and Strategy, dated March 2014.

2.0 RISK MANAGEMENT DEVELOPMENT
2.1

Recent Developments and Achievements
A significant amount of work has been completed in 2013, and continues during 2014,
to refresh and improve the Council’s risk management activities and governance.
In September 2013 as part of our risk improvement commitment, Zurich was
commissioned by Derbyshire Dales District Council to conduct a rigorous assessment
of our current arrangements and develop a comprehensive action plan that would
address areas for improvement.
As a result of this process, areas of improvement were identified. All of these, with the
exception of one have been implemented and are noted in the table below. The one
exception is the defining of risk appetite for the Council/Services. In December 2013,
the Risk Continuity Group (RCG) agreed that it was critical to fully implement the risk
enhancements and further embed the risk management process during 2014 prior to
re-considering the development of risk appetite. The topic of risk appetite is
scheduled for further discussion at the December 2014 meeting of the Risk Continuity
Group.

Area
Risk Management
Framework



Policy & Strategy



Risk Registers





Action undertaken
Refocused the Risk Management Framework to
consider the Council’s new Management
Structure; allowing ease of capturing and
reporting risks at a Head of Service level.
Revised the Risk Management Policy and Strategy,
which was approved in March 2014.
Implemented a new risk register format.
Refreshed the risks within the risk register.
Separated the Strategic and Operational risks
through the creation of a Strategic Risk register,
along with a number of Service Risk Registers,
aligned with the new management structure.
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2.2

Area
Risk Registers



Training



Business Continuity &
Assurance
Risk Continuity Group



Risk reporting





Action undertaken
Scheduled quarterly risk refresher meetings with
external support to allow a greater sharing and
exploring of risks.
Trained Heads of Service and relevant
individuals in risk and risk management.
Continued to strengthen the interconnectivity of
risk, business continuity & assurance.
Reinvigorated the Risk Continuity Group.
Re-energised the risk reporting to create a risk
dashboard, which visually represents the risks
facing the organisation; along with identified
emergent risks.

Continued Improvement
The Council will continue to develop and enhance its Risk Management processes
and procedures over the forthcoming months. This will be performed through the Risk
Continuity Group, who routinely assess the effectiveness of the risk management
processes and recommend enhancements where required.

2.3

Current Strategic Risks
Strategic risks are considered by relevant officers and documented within the
Strategic Risk Register. Risks are scored as follows:
0–5
5 – 20
20 – 25

Low Risk
Medium Risk
High Risk

Green
Yellow
Red

Those risks identified and reported to the Corporate Management Team in July 2014
are shown in Appendix 1 to this report. The chart shows current and target risks.
There are no high risks at the present time.

2.4

Strategic Risk Action Plan
Heads of Services and the Risk Continuity Group have identified additional mitigating
actions to further manage the strategic risks and reduce the Council’s risk profile,
bringing the target risk score lower than the existing residual risk score. These actions
are shown in the Strategic Risk Action Plan in Appendix 2. Heads of Services and the
Risk Continuity Group will monitor these actions to ensure that progress is being
made to reduce risks.
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3.0

RISK ASSESSMENT

3.1

Legal
The report documents an effective system of risk management, which aims to
identify, control and mitigate risk. Whilst not all risk can be mitigated, the measures
currently in place provide for low legal risk.

3.2

Financial
There are no financial risks arising from this report.

4.

OTHER CONSIDERATIONS
In preparing this report the relevance of the following factors has also been
considered: prevention of crime and disorder, equality of opportunity, environmental
health, legal and human rights, financial, personnel and property considerations.

5.

CONTACT INFORMATION
Karen Henriksen, Head of Resources, Telephone 01629 761284
Or email: karen.henriksen@derbyshiredales.gov.uk

6.

BACKGROUND PAPERS
None.

7.

ATTACHMENTS
Appendix 1 Current Strategic Risks
Appendix 2 Strategic Risk Action Plan (2 pages)
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Current Strategic Risks

Appendix1

Strategic Risks are consider by relevant Officers and documented within the Strategic Risk Register. Those risks identified and
reported to the Corporate Management team in July 2014 are as follows:

Process & Change Management

12

Continuity of Service

12

Business Continuity

12
12

Contract Challenge

Health & Safety

16

Partners repercussions

16

Capacity and Capability

16

Information Governance & DPA

20

Budget

20

0

5

10
Target Risk172

15
Residual Risk

20

25

Strategic Risk Action Plan

Appendix 2

The following additional mitigating actions have been identified by Services and the Risk Continuity Group in order to further manage the strategic risks and
reduce the Council’s risk profile, bringing the target risk score lower than the existing residual risk score.
Strategic Risk

Budget

Capability &
Capacity

Further mitigating actions identified













Data Protection
& Information
Governance

Economical
conditions may
heighten risk of
contract
challenge







Budgets have been set and balanced for 2014/15 and 2015/16. Reserves have been built in 2014 for future years.
Action plans are in place to deliver the savings.
Scheduled on-going future services reviews to identify process improvements etc.
Review other impacts with regards to the lack of segregation of duties and marry up with the delegated authorities as
outlined in the Constitution. Consideration of barriers and amendments to authorities or processes should be highlighted
and approved.
Succession planning for key roles and staff need to be identified and an action plan for developing individuals within the
Council or recruitment is generated, monitored and actioned upon.
Preventative stress management and other soft skill training needs to be made available to staff.
Ensure arrangements are in place, so that should resources be required, these could be obtained from neighbouring
authorities.
Service reviews are being completed and outcomes require implementing.
Document a document management policy.
Perform contract reviews to ensure IG has been enclosed and data sharing agreements are in place.
Understand if the sharing of data with contractors is accepted and what measures are required to safeguard DDDC against
IG breaches.
Discuss with all contractors their policies and document retention methods and gain assurance that these are in line with the
Councils expectations.
Review the information governance policies and procedures within the Council and refresh/improve, where necessary.
Continue with the IG Board and ensure actions are delivered.
Seek guidance and support on what is required for a strong IG control environment.
Potentially implement a self assessment tool kit.

 Consideration of contract management and procurement operations to ensure that risks are assessed and performed at the
relevant levels/timelines etc.
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4

Strategic Risk Action Plan
Strategic Risk

Business
Continuity

Continuity of
Services
A number of
Priorities
Process &
Business
Change

Appendix 2
continued

Further mitigating actions identified
 Need to update/refresh the Business Continuity Plans in place and ensure that these now cover all of the Councils
arrangements (including outsourced arrangements, such as Arvarto).
 An exercise around the premises should be conducted, once a plan has been established. Finally a debrief is performed
and lessons learned are incorporated into the plan etc.
 IT has also been noted that due to the changing in ICT (virtual desktop etc) in the spring, that the Council would benefit from
further test/review of the disaster recover plan.
 Disaster recovery Plans (IT related) need to be developed and documented.
 Review contracts to ensure exit strategies are included and documented. Where these are not in place discuss with
suppliers how these could be implemented.
 Ensure exit strategies are in place and these are sufficient to cover the time required to implement next stages.
 Consider the outcomes of the recent reviews and action.
 Maintain oversight and manage SLAs performance etc.
 Review the performance of the implementation of the Business support team change management programme and
ascertain success factors and lessons learned in 6 -12 months time.

Impact on
partnering/agen  Continue to work with members etc to understand and address issues arising.
cy reduction in  Understand the Councils appetite in these areas.
budgets & the  Consider the impact on the Councils services, reputation and Public prior to decisions being made.
impact on DDDC
Health & Safety

 Continue to grow and develop the Board.
 Review the H&S processes and procedures and accountability to ensue that relevant, complete and accurate data is
presented to the Board.
 Ensure that the RCG is informed of risks on a regular basis to reflect risks in the department and strategic risk registers.
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Item No. 16

CORPORATE COMMITTEE
18 SEPTEMBER 2011
Report of the Head of Corporate Services

COMMUNICATIONS AND MARKETING STRATEGY
SUMMARY
The Communication and Marketing Strategy sets out how residents, employees and
service users are kept informed about what the District Council is doing, how it is
spending public money, and the District Council services they can access.
RECOMMENDATIONS
1. That the Communications and Marketing Strategy is adopted.
2. That the action plan for 2014/2015 is approved.

WARDS AFFECTED
All
STRATEGIC LINK
Good communications with residents, employees and service users is key to all the
District Council’s corporate priorities and pivotal to providing excellent services.

1

BACKGROUND

1.1

The District Council last adopted a Communications Strategy in September
2011. Since then, technology has developed and the needs of both the public
and the District Council have evolved. It is therefore timely to review the
current strategic framework and to set ambitious yet realistic targets to
support the Council’s Corporate Objectives and core values.

1.2

The aim of the strategy is to ensure our communications help to promote a
positive image of the Council, and, in marketing terms, help us to meet the
needs and wants of our customers in a fast moving digital world.

1.3

The Strategy therefore sets out a multi-channel approach to reach a wide
variety of customers and stakeholders, underlining traditional forms of
communication while embracing more modern approaches.
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1.4

The Strategy is attached as Appendix 1. The Strategy is without a timeframe.
This is deliberate and seeks to set a strategic framework with a more dynamic
approach to actions which can be measured by way of an Annual Action Plan.

2

COMMUNICATIONS CURRENTLY
Newsletters

2.1

The dalesMATTERS (issued twice a year to all residents) newsletter is
successful. 75% of Citizens Panel respondents read half or most of it.
Media releases and coverage

2.2

The Communications and Marketing Manager issues on average two press
releases each week to the local and/or national media (more than 70 so far in
2014).

2.3

As well as local independent weekly paid-for newspapers, relationships have
been developed with free newspapers, local radio stations and the growing
number of community websites created to serve individual villages and towns
in the Derbyshire Dales.
Digital Media

2.4

Our own website derbyshiredales.gov.uk is increasingly key for
communications. However it is also important for transactions – as a means
of providing services direct to people (booking facilities, applying for services,
informing them what they need to know etc.).
The website has around
10,400 visits per week (more than half a million per year), an increase of 24%
on this time last year.
Customer interactions via other social media channels such as Facebook,
Twitter, YouTube and Flickr have seen the greatest increase in interactions.
Our Twitter channel has 3,665 followers and our various Facebook pages (we
currently have 10) are ‘Liked’ by 5,661 people. Another area of digital
communications growth is our e-newsletter database, where 1,650 local
residents have signed up to be kept informed of all manner of subjects – from
leisure centres and markets to bin collection updates and the progress of the
Matlock Bakewell Road project.
Campaigns, Signs, Posters

2.5

A means of reaching the public directly is through campaigns, posters and
signage. Signs can be a weakness if there is inconsistency of style (old
logos, different colours) or negativity (such as a list of “don’ts”), and efforts
have been made to improve signage, particularly in our parks and refurbished
public toilets.

2.6

Printed material includes leaflets promoting our monthly Bakewell farmers’
markets, the leaflet explaining waste collection changes, bin stickers, Matlock
Bath Illuminations banners and display boards,, Community Safety newsletter,
stickers and leaflets, Area Community Forum posters and posters in our pay
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and display car parks, leisure centres, reception areas and public toilets
promoting services we provide including our parks, markets and special
events such as the Illuminations. Internal posters around District Council
premises promote council achievements to employees and visitors, and
screensaver messages are used to inform staff of events and policies.
4

COMMUNICATIONS AND MARKETING STRATEGY

4.1

In light of the above, it is evident that communication plays an important role
in everything the District Council does. Communicating well is the
responsibility of everyone and the Strategy is designed to be a useful tool for
the corporate management team, heads of services and all employees and
elected members. It sets a framework for communications and gives direction
to all media, online, internal, marketing, publications and public relations
communications actively undertake on behalf of the district council.

4.2

The Communications and Marketing Strategy therefore sets out ways to:
• Make the Council easy to understand and talk to
• Co-ordinate and direct communications
• Ensure that everyone understands our targets and what the outcomes will
be
• Ensure that staff and partners understand their contribution
• Make sure people know the outcome of the changes the District Council
makes
• Ensure openness and transparency
• Make people feel better informed, prod to live in Derbyshire Dales, proud
to work for the Council and proud to work with it.

5

RISK ASSESSMENT

5.1

Legal
An effective communications strategy helps to reinforce the District Council’s
ambition and raises proper accountability. The Strategy has been framed
within the legislative framework regarding publicity. The legal risk is therefore
low.

5.2

Financial
The Communications Strategy can be delivered within existing budgets and,
therefore, the financial risk arising from this report is low.

6

OTHER CONSIDERATIONS
In preparing this report, the relevance of the following factors has also been
considered: prevention of crime and disorder, equalities, environmental,
climate change, health, human rights, personnel and property.
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7

CONTACT INFORMATION
Jim Fearn, Communications and Marketing Manager on 01629 761195 or
email jim.fearn@derbyshiredales.gov.uk
Sandra Lamb, Head of Corporate Services Tel. 016289 761282 or email
sandra.lamb@derbyshiredales.gov.uk

8

BACKGROUND PAPERS
None

9.

ATTACHMENTS
Communications and Marketing Strategy
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Derbyshire Dales District Council
New Communications & Marketing Strategy
(2nd draft, July 2014)

Introduction
Communication plays an important role in everything we do at Derbyshire Dales District
Council.
Communicating well is the responsibility of everyone at the District Council, not just the
communications team. This strategy is designed to be a useful tool for the corporate
management team, heads of services, all employees and council members.
It sets a framework for district council communications and gives direction to all media,
online, internal, marketing, publications and public relations communications activity
undertaken on behalf of the district council.
Our commitment is to use a multi-channel approach to reach the wide variety of customers
and stakeholders we serve, including residents, employees, businesses, community
partners, visitors to the district and all levels of government.
Externally, a key focus is to promote the district council's services to give us a competitive
edge, supporting and enhancing regular activities.
Internal communications will involve all staff in shaping services as the district council
continues to go through major changes.
We will seek to provide communications services on the most cost-effective basis, for
example by accelerating our shift towards digital communications and taking a “digital first”
position on crisis management
We will commit to continuing improvement of the usefulness of our website and keep content
fresh and updated as we move a greater share of our communications activity online,
utilising free social media channels.
Communication works best when it is a two-way process (we need to listen as well as talk)
and when messages are clear and easy to understand. Our social media channels
(particularly Facebook and Twitter) provide a voice for local people to air their views and
discuss issues with the council.
The challenge for an organisation with more than 100,000 customers and a large range of
services is how it communicates clearly and simply in a complex and constantly changing
Derbyshire Dales Communications & Marketing Strategy (2nd draft) July 2014
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environment, with ever increasing financial pressures. This strategy seeks to address that
challenge.
Research shows that communication with residents is a key driver to overall satisfaction with
council performance. It is also at the heart of good customer service and effective,
meaningful consultation – and critical to delivery of the council’s role in the community.
This strategy sets out the framework within which we can respond to this challenge.

Aims, Vision and Objectives
Aims
The ultimate aim of our communications is that all staff, residents, partners and everyone
who deals with the council will have a clear understanding and a positive perception of our
vision, aims, values, services and achievements, leading to higher levels of satisfaction and
engagement.

Vision
What are we trying to do?
To make its vision come alive, the district council must be able to communicate with (and
influence) a wide range of organisations, individuals and partners.
We therefore need to …


make the council easy to understand and talk to



coordinate and direct communications so that all parts of the district council are
working towards shared objectives, in support of council strategy



ensure that everyone understands our targets, and what the outcomes will be –
showing people what success looks like



ensure staff and partners understand their contribution through clear objectives,
milestones and deadlines



make sure people know the outcome of the changes the district council makes



ensure openness and transparency



make people feel better informed, proud to live in Derbyshire Dales, proud to work for
the council, and proud to work with it.

In other words, we need to continue to build the district council as a brand.
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The visual element of this brand – our corporate identity – is generally understood by staff
and customers. Our brand is an important communications tool, made up of these
components…


Our overall purpose – what are we here for?



Our values – what drives us to do the things we do?



Our key messages – what are we saying about what we offer?



Our service delivery – what do we provide, compared with what we promise?



Our behaviour – how do we treat our customers and our staff?

It is important we bring these elements together in a unified approach across all
communications channels, so that we are consistent in tone, look and feel. People need to
understand who we are and what we stand for.
In this, our Communications Strategy will dovetail with the council’s Customer Access
Strategy.

Objectives


To secure and strengthen the reputation of the council in the community and an
effective and efficient provider of high quality outcomes - focused on our values and
priorities



To build and maintain a professional corporate identity for consistent and coordinated use throughout the organisation



To promote the image of the council as an effective, efficient and listening
organisation focused on the public and their needs



To ensure that communications are consistent and co-ordinated across all channels
to give maximum support to the council’s strategic priorities



To ensure all staff understand the priorities of the council and feel valued and able to
contribute to major changes affecting services they provide



To ensure that our communications activities reflect the full diversity of the
community and help ensure equality of access to all our services.

It is important also that the district council increases its efforts to understand what local
communities are saying.
This strategy will dovetail with our Consultation Strategy in sharing information gained
through consultation programmes such as citizens’ panel consultation, channel shift
initiatives and increasing use of new technology devices to generate instant feedback on
topical issues.
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Delivering our objectives
The district council’s reputation is based on perceptions – how people see us. Managing our
reputation means first of all understanding what those perceptions are, deciding how we
want to be seen, and planning how to get there.
We will tackle this by focusing internal capacity on the district council’s key messages and
ensuring that the most appropriate level of resource is available for our key priorities and
activities.


Our communications platforms can be broken down into three:Traditional Media,
Publications, Campaigns and PR



Digital Media



Internal Communications

Traditional Media, Publications, Campaigns and PR
We will seek to maintain and further improve positive media coverage and develop our
media relations service to promote and defend the council, recognising the proven link
between the public’s sense of feeling informed and feeling satisfied. Our target is to issue
two positive media releases every week of the year, alongside, where possible, engaging
photography (chiefly taken in-house).
It will also be the responsibility of the communications team to handle a communications
problem or bundle of problems by identifying:


the nature of the problem or challenge



the key considerations in addressing it



the key drivers of those decisions (crucially, insight into audiences)



the resources required



the stages to go through

We will issue reactive statements to media on request after gaining advice and approval first
from the head of service (corporate management team member) and/or council leaders.
Despite our increasing focus on e-communications channels, the twice-yearly
dalesMATTERS newsletter, delivered to all 33,000 homes in the district, remains an
important communications tool. 90% of our citizens’ panel (surveyed November 2013) had
seen a copy of dalesMATTERS and 75% read half or most of it.
We will continue to edit, design and organise publication and distribution of dalesMATTERS,
directed by an editorial panel comprising a representative from every service area.
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Similarly, we will edit, design and organise publication of other special publications such as:


Council Tax information leaflet



Agricultural Business Centre annual leaflet (including Bakewell Farmers’ Market
dates)



Community Safety newsletter (twice yearly)



Various leisure publications



Other leaflets and fact sheets (including an A-Z of council services)

We will maintain and develop our programme of media and integrated campaigns that
underpin the district council’s values and priorities.
We will use no/low-cost external sites such as poster frames in our pay & display car parks
and public toilets to promote our services, including:


Leisure centres



Markets



Parks and open spaces



Special events such as our Matlock Bath Illuminations



Do it online campaigns (channel shift)

The communications team, in consultation with the head of corporate services, will regularly
change the organisation’s corporate email sign-off as another channel to promote ongoing
campaigns.
We will continue to evaluate and cost the potential of paid-for media (including local
commercial radio stations and newspapers/magazines) to further promote our campaigns.

Digital Media
We recognise the value of our website as a source of information, as a point for customer
transactions and as a low-cost alternative to face-to-face and telephone contact.
Our communications going forward will have a digital focus, building on the platform created
by our website, relaunched in 2012 using an open source (Joomla) content management
system to serve the public and businesses of Derbyshire Dales.
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We will further develop the website to make it even easier to find the information you need,
to report faults and incidents, to ask questions and to conduct many different types of
transactions, all in a 24/7 environment.
Not only is this usually faster than alternative methods of contact, it means you can conduct
your business with the district council when and where you like, while doing so at a lower
cost to the taxpayer. We will aim to further increase use of the website, which currently
attracts more than 40,000 visits every month and is the "hub" of our communications.

PRESS RELEASES
& CAMPAIGNS

WEBSITE

E-NEWSLETTERS

SOCIAL MEDIA

We are committed to continuing to improve visitor numbers and the accessibility of the
website, creating new web forms and payment portals.
We are applying the same principles to the development of a new intranet site for staff
(launching autumn 2014).
Social media platforms have become an integral part of our communications strategy. We
recognise the opportunities that social media can deliver in terms of reputation
enhancement, engaging with the public using their medium of choice, greater two-way
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dialogue and the insights that social media can provide, and as an opportunity to reduce cost
versus other communications channels.
We will exploit the penetration of social media in dealing with crisis communications,
providing regular news updates on our digital channels to create a channel shift away from
phone calls to service centres during busy periods.
While operating and monitoring established Facebook, Twitter and YouTube channels, we
will examine the potential of other social media platforms. District council service areas will
be assisted in setting up their own social media channels on request.
We will continue to use social media management tools such as Hootsuite to monitor our
own social media activity and also gain a better understanding of the conversations about us
in which we are not currently participating.
In parallel with the development of this Communications Strategy, we will continue to
promote and, where necessary, update, our social media policy and staff guidelines.
We will seek to build our e-newsletter (MailChimp) database, enabling us to target key
messages on a regular basis to engaged people in our communities. We recognise the
huge potential of e-newsletters as an effective communications channel

Internal communications
Internal communications play a key role in ensuring staff keep in touch with the district
council’s plans and priorities, and the challenges ahead.
Employees need to understand how their actions contribute to the overall achievement of
priorities and how their behaviour affects the way the organisation is perceived internally and
externally.
Our internal communications will include:


Publication of the staffMATTERS internal newsletter, published six times a year



A new (autumn 2014) more accessible intranet site



An online forum where staff can advertise activities and events (internal and external)
and suggest good ideas



Regular all-staff emails



In-house posters



Screensaver messages on staff PCs



Core briefings videos to get our messages across
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Through all the channels listed above, we will support our consultation teams in their work to
help the district council understand what the public truly want, to deliver on our values and
priorities and to provide the best possible value for money.

Looking ahead
A Peer Review carried out in 2013 helped the district council re-set its vision – which is to
use the reduced resources available to us more efficiently to maintain and - where possible improve the quality of life for Derbyshire Dales people. A key aim of our communications is
to help local people understand the financial challenges faced by the district council and the
hard choices it is having to make in terms of service delivery.
Our plans are built on clear values that will help to steer us through the years ahead.
Applying these values will mean that the district council is not only smaller, but also more
flexible and more responsive to local people’s needs and expectations.
We value:





the uniqueness of our communities, businesses and residents
working in partnership to deliver affordable, quality services
creative thinking and ambition
working as a team across the organisation.

Supporting our values:



staff will show integrity, courtesy and respect, listening and responding to the very
best of our ability and treating everyone fairly
the District Council will make decisions with openness and transparency, using public
resources responsibly.

Providing the basics
In the coming years, we will have less money and will have to make sure we spend it where
the need is greatest. Our role is to make sure local people get good outcomes from their
services and we understand that it is the quality of the service that matters to local people,
not who provides it.
Our focus should be on:
Promoting and regularly reinforcing the distinctive qualities both of the Derbyshire Dales and
the district council. It is appropriate therefore to build communications skills across the
organisation, supported by an in-house communications resource that is empowered to
identify and solve communications problems, and resourced to implement solutions.
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Helping communities help themselves
The district council is at its most effective when it is helping people to live successful lives as
independently as possible and helping communities to help themselves. We believe that if
power is in the hands of local people, you get better results and achieve better value.
Our approach will be to:


Give individuals more say about the services they receive and the support they
receive



Empower communities to do more themselves and give them the tools they need for
community action



Recognise that some areas need more help than others and that, with a little support,
they can get their ideas off the ground



Support the transfer of buildings and other assets to community ownership so that
they can become a hub for local activity – flexible and responsive to local needs.

Evidence and analysis
What do our customers and stakeholders say?
We continue to invite customers and stakeholders to help us set some key priorities that
support our values. Research (notably through our most recent citizens’ panel survey –
November 2013) has revealed the following as our customer and stakeholder priorities:
1. Housing which meets local needs
Increase the availability of affordable housing for vulnerable people
2. A clean, green and prosperous Dales
Minimise waste and increase recycling. Enable development sites and business growth.
3. Safe and healthy communities
Keep alcohol-related crime low. Encourage active and healthy lifestyles.

Action Plan 2014/15


Approve and embed a new intranet for the organisation by the end of 2014



Trial use of video to make Core Briefings more accessible



Ensure all leases and licences include District Council branding to enhance the
authority’s reputation
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Review and re-publish the corporate identity guide



Drive website transactions and aim to increase monthly visitor numbers from 40,000
to 44,000



Increase followers on our corporate Twitter feed from 3,540 to 4,000



Increase the number of ‘Likes’ across our Facebook pages from 5,227 to 6,000



Make the website more useable by working with service areas to reduce the number
of pages from 1,778 to 1,500



Carry out an analysis of the potential of web advertising to make our website a
revenue stream in addition to a one-stop shop for information



Continue to develop a range of corporate online forms, prioritising forms by need
rather than ad hoc internal requests



Aim to increase our e-newsletter database by 10% from 1,000 names and addresses
to 1,100 names and addresses



Increase awareness of the dalesMATTERS publication, increasing the number of
people who read half or most of it from 75% (citizens’ panel November 2013) to 78%



Encourage a “digital first” approach to crisis communications



Spend £10k on enhancing the reputation of the District Council, highlighting the great
work we do



Support members and managers with media training (especially as part of induction
process)



Issue a minimum of two media releases every week



Continue to increase the number of email recipients of media releases, tapping into
the ever increasing number of community websites



Introduce video option to make Core Briefings more accessible
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Item No. 17

CORPORATE COMMITTEE
18 September 2014
Report of the Monitoring Officer

COMPLAINTS MONITORING
SUMMARY
This report provides information on formal complaints made about the District Council’s
services and against individual elected member behaviour at town, parish and District
Council level.
RECOMMENDATION
That the report be noted.
WARDS AFFECTED
Various
STRATEGIC LINK
Complaints monitoring has direct links to the Council’s core values of fairness and
equality, listening to people and quality of service. Additionally it links to the Council’s aim
of providing excellent services.

1.

FORMAL COMPLAINTS ABOUT THE DISTRICT COUNCIL’S SERVICES

1.1

This section of the report provides details of complaints against the Council that
were dealt with through the Council’s Complaints Procedure as formal complaints.

1.2

During 2013/14 the District Council received 59 official complaints, a decrease of 44
on the previous year, when the figures were inflated by the volume of complaints
received following the introduction of the new waste contract.

1.3

This reduction is almost entirely accounted for by the reduction in waste complaints
from 53 to 13.

1.4

The complaints received during 20012/13 can be broken down into the following
categories:
2012/13
53
10
10
7
5
3
3
2
2

Refuse Collection/Recycling
Planning
Parking
Leisure
Litter/street cleansing
Benefits
Council Tax
Environmental Health / pest control
Licensing
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2013/14
13
6
4
6
4
0
1
3
0

Housing
Jubilee Bridge
Toilets
Markets
Traveller sites
Matlock Bath Illuminations
Allotments
Play areas
Committee procedure
Customer services

2
2
1
1
1
1
0
0
0
0
__
103

6
0
4
2
1
0
1
3
2
2
__
59

1.5

The distribution of the complaints this year appears to reflect the level of usage of
particular services and no area stands out as having received a disproportionate
number.

1.6

Anyone who is unhappy with the initial response to their complaint can ask for it to
be reviewed by the Chief Executive. Four three complaints were referred during the
year and two further complaints were directed to the Chief Executive on receipt
because the normal respondent was either the subject of the complaint or had
already provided a full response on an unofficial basis.

1.7

The Local Government Ombudsman’s annual review letter shows that they
considered a total of 11 complaints relating to the District Council during this period.
Four of these were premature and were referred back to the District Council for
processing through the Official Complaints procedure, one was adjudged to be
invalid, one was not upheld, three were closed after initial enquiries and advice was
given in the remaining case. A summary is attached at appendix 1. This also
shows that Derbyshire Dales compares favourably with neighbouring authorities in
terms of the number and outcome of complaints considered by the Ombudsman.

2.

COMPLAINTS ABOUT INDIVIDUAL MEMBER BEHAVIOUR

2.1

The Monitoring Officer received 2 complaints about individual Member behaviour
during the period. Under the provisions of the Localism Act, the Monitoring Officer
is required to assess such complaints against agreed criteria and the relevant
authority’s Code of Conduct, in consultation with the Independent Person. A
reserve Independent Person is available for the subject member to consult at any
time during the assessment process.

2.2

The first complaint was a self-referral by a member of Tideswell Parish Council
regarding the potential to bully an employee of the Council. The matter was
assessed and an investigation took place. The outcome concluded that there was
no breach of the Code of Conduct and the matter was dismissed. The outcome of
the complaint was agreed by the Parish Council.
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2.3

The second concerned the alleged conduct of two members of Darley Dale Town
Council who had apparently used their influence to change the date of the Annual
Meeting. Following assessment, it was concluded that the complaint was not within
the remove of the Code and the matter was dismissed.

3.

RISK ASSESSMENT

3.1

Legal
There was no breach of a rule of law in any of the complaints submitted. The legal
risk is therefore low.

3.2

Financial
There are no financial considerations arising from this report.

3.

OTHER CONSIDERATIONS
In preparing this report the relevance of the following factors has also been
considered:
prevention of crime and disorder, equality of opportunity,
environmental, health, legal and human rights, financial, personnel and property
considerations.

4.

CONTACT INFORMATION
Sandra Lamb, Monitoring Officer, Tel: 01629 761281
e-mail sandra.lamb@derbyshiredales.gov.uk

5.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION
None
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LOCAL GOVERNMENT OMBUDSMAN COMPLAINTS FOR PERIOD ENDING 31/3/14
LOCAL AUTHORITY

ADULT CARE
SERVICES

BENEFITS AND
TAX

CORPORATE
AND OTHER
SERVICES

EDUCATION
AND
CHILDRENS
SERVICES

ENVIRONMENTAL
SERVICES AND
PUBLIC
PROTECTION
AND
REGULATION

HIGHWAYS
AND
TRANSPORT

HOUSING

PLANNING AND
DEVELOPMENT

TOTAL

DERBYSHIRE
DALES
AMBER VALLEY
BOLSOVER
CHESTERFIELD
BC
EREWASH BC
HIGH PEAK
NORTH EAST
DERBYSHIRE
SOUTH
DERBYSHIRE

0

1

0

0

2

1

4

3

11

0

0
0

2
9
2

2
3
2

0
0
0

2
1
2

1
0
2

3
1
4

12
4
4

22
18
16

0
0
0

3
2
1

0
3
3

0
0
0

1
3
2

0
0
0

0
3
2

5
9
5

10
20
13

0

0

1

0

0

0

3

3

7

DETAILED INVESTIGATION
CARRIED OUT
LOCAL AUTHORITY

UPHELD

NOT UPHELD

ADVICE GIVEN

CLOSED AFTER
INITIAL ENQUIRIES

INCOMPLETE/INVALID

REFERRED BACK
FOR LOCAL
RESOLUTION

TOTAL

DERBYSHIRE
DALES
AMBER VALLEY
BOLSOVER
CHESTERFIELD
BC
EREWASH BC
HIGH PEAK
NORTH EASH
DERBYSHIRE
SOUTH
DERBYSHIRE

0

1

1

3

1

4

10

3
1

0

7
1
3

0
2
0

6
6
7

3
1
0

7
9
7

26
20
17

3
2
1

2
3
3

1
2
0

1
5
7

0
0
0

5
7
5

12
19
16

1

0

1

4

2

2

8

NB: THE DISCREPANCIES IN THE FIGURES OVER THE TWO TABLES RELATE TO ONGOING COMPLAINTS AND THOSE
RESOLVED FROM THE PREVIOUS YEAR
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Item No. 18

CORPORATE COMMITTEE
18 SEPTEMBER 2014
Report of the Head of Corporate Services

DISTRICT AND PARISH COUNCIL ELECTIONS 2015
SUMMARY
This report outlines the key dates and arrangements for the District and Parish Council
Elections on 7 May 2015.
RECOMMENDATION
That the report be noted.
WARDS AFFECTED
All
STRATEGIC LINK
The proposal links with the Council’s aim, of ‘Leading the Communities of the Derbyshire
Dales’.

1.

BACKGROUND

1.1

Elections to the UK Parliament, the District Council and all 71 parish councils within
the District will be held on 7 May 2015. The date may also be used to conduct any bielections occurring at other levels of local government, making the event the most
complex combination and one which will see the election of 558 candidates to
represent the people of the Derbyshire Dales.

1.2

Whilst all elections are governed by comprehensive legislation, the Returning Officer
has some discretion regarding the conduct of the District and Parish Council elections
and this report sets out for information, the key events underpinning the project plan.

2.

PROJECT PLAN

2.1

Key events are shown in the following table with further explanation below.
Agents meeting – run through timetable, key contacts
Area Community Forums – recruitment and promotion ‘Ever
thought of becoming elected?’
Preliminary staff appointments by
Notice of Election – County, District and Parish – beginning of
purdah
Nominations – Southern area at Ashbourne Leisure Centre
Nominations – Northern area at ABC Bakewell
Nominations – open day Saturday at Town Hall, Matlock
193

21 October 2014
February 2015
28 February 2015
16 March 2015
26 March 2015
27 March 2015
28 March 2015

Nominations Close – all
Last date to register to vote
Last date for proxy
Count Set up Arc Leisure from 4pm
Verification of all votes cast from 10pm
Parliamentary count to declaration of result
District and County Council count from 1pm
Parish Council Count, Town Hall, ABC and ALC from 10am
2.2

9 April 2015
20 April 2015
28 April 2015
7 May 2015
7 May 2015
7 May 2015
8 May 2015
9 May 2015

Notice of Election
The election timetable begins formally with the publication of the Notice of Election
and the date from which nominations may be received. This date also signifies the
beginning of the election purdah period where local authority publicity is tightly
controlled. To create capacity within the election team to deal with the volume of
nominations expected, the date for the District and Parish Council elections will be
earlier in the programme to separate it from the Parliamentary Election timetable. All
future key dates within the timetable are then combined.

2.2

Nominations
Nominations may be received between 10am and 4pm, usually by appointment, up to
the close of nominations. To make the process easier and to encourage early
registration, dates have been set to take the process closer to the rural communities
and an additional date has been set on a Saturday.

2.3

Verification and Count
Depending on the level of contest throughout the District, some polling stations may
see a 2, 3 and potentially 4 way election. To ease the Verification process, polling
stations will use a separate ballot box for all parliamentary ballot papers and a second
for the district and parish combinations. In order to provide the best facilities to
maximise the number of counting assistants and observers alike, the verification will
take place at Arc Leisure Matlock. The main hall at Arc will be closed for public use
from 4pm on Thursday 5 May until the start of business on the Saturday.
The
Verification of all votes cast will commence at the close of poll and continue until
complete for all elections. The Parliamentary election count will then commence and
complete overnight.
The count for the District Council elections will then take place at the Arc on the
following day commencing at 1pm, providing rest time for staff and candidates. Parish
Council counts will take place on the Saturday at smaller venues based around the
central, northern and southern parts of the District.

7.1

Legal
The outline of the project plan follows the legislative framework. The legal risk is
therefore low.

7.2

Financial
The cost of the District Council elections can be met from the Election Reserve and
parliamentary, county, and all parish council election costs will be fully recharged.
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Parish and town councils will be advised of the estimated cost of a contested and
uncontested election in September to assist councils in making the necessary precept
in 2015/16 to meet the cost.
3.

OTHER CONSIDERATIONS
In preparing this report the relevance of the following factors has also been
considered: prevention of crime and disorder, equality of opportunity, environmental,
health, legal and human rights, financial, personnel and property considerations.

4.

CONTACT INFORMATION
Sandra Lamb, Head of Corporate Services, Tel. 01629 761281 or email
sandra.lamb@derbyshiredales.gov.uk

5.

BACKGROUND PAPERS
None

6.

ATTACHMENTS
None
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